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As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August _ , 2001

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10

GENERAL FORM FOR REGISTRATION OF SECURITIES
Pursuant to Section 12(b) or (g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

California 33-0056054
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification
Incorporation or Organization) No.)

1935 Avenida del Oro, Suite F
Oceanside, California 92056

(Address of Principal (Zip Code)
Executive Offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (760) 806-8922
Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act: None
Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock, no par value per share

(Title of Class)

SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.

INFORMATION INCLUDED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT
AND INCORPORATED IN FORM 10 BY REFERENCE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET BETWEEN INFORMATION STATEMENT
AND ITEMS OF FORM 10

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Item No. Caption Location in Information Statement

<S> <C> <C>

1. Business "Summary," "Risk Factors," "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" and
"Description of Our Business"

2. Financial Information "Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

3. Properties

4. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management

5. Directors and Executive Officers

6. Executive Compensation

7. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

8. Legal Proceedings

9. Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrant's Common

Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

10. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
11. Description of Registrant's Securities to be Registered
12. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
13. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
</TABLE>
2
<TABLE>
<S> <C>
14. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants

on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

15. Financial Statements and Exhibits
</TABLE>
Item 10 Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Item 15 Financial Statements and Exhibits
(a) Financial Statements filed as part of this Registration
Statement

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Audited Financial Statements
For fiscal years ending February 28,
February 28, 1999

2001, February 29, 2000, and

Statements of Operations

Balance Sheets
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Financial Condition and Results of
Operations," "Selected Financial Data,"
and "Index to Our Financial Statements"

"Our Business--Our Facilities"

"Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management"

"Management" and "Liability and
Indemnification of Our Officers and
Directors"

"Management"

"Summary," "Arrangements with SeraCare
relating to the Spin-0ff," and "Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions"”

"Description of Our Business--Legal
Proceedings"

"The Spin-Off--Listing and Trading of Our
Common Stock"

Not Included (see below)

"Description of Our Capital Stock"

"Liability and Indemnification of Our
Officers and Directors"

"Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of
Operations," "Selected Financial Data,"
and "Index to Our Financial Statements"

<C>
Not applicable

"Index to Our Financial Statements" and
"Index to Our Exhibits"
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Statements of Shareholders' EQUILY ..t iiiiini ittt ennenens F-5

Statements O0f Cash FLOWS ..ttt ittt ittt neeeneenneens F-6
Summary of Accounting POliCies ..ttt iiii ittt ettt F-7
Notes to Financial Statements . ... ..ttt teennnnnns F-10

Unaudited Financial Statements
For the three months ending May 31, 2001 and May 31, 2000

10.1

10.1.1

10.2

10.2.1

10.3

10.4%*

10.4.1

10.5*

10.6**

Financial Statement TndeX ...ttt ettt eneeeeeeeeeeneeeeeenens F-17
Statements of Operations ...ttt et e e e F-18
Balance Sheets v ittt ittt e e e e e e e e F-19
Statements of Shareholders' EQUILY ...ttt ittt F-20
Statements Of Cash FlOWS ..ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt aeeeeeennn F-21
3
Notes to Financial Statements . ... ..ttt ineeeeennnnnns F-22
(b) Exhibits
Description

Articles of Incorporation.

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to be effective at the
time of the spin-off.

Bylaws.

Amended and Restated Bylaws to be effective at the time of the spin-
off.

Employment Agreement between American Blood Institute, Inc., Avre
Inc., Binary Associates, Inc., and Jerry L. Burdick dated November
14, 1995.

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 12, 2001.
Employment Agreement between American Blood Institute, Inc., Avre
Inc., Binary Associates, Inc., and Barry Plost dated February 5,
1996.

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 12, 2001.

Employment Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and Michael F. Crowley II
dated November 1, 2000.

Albumin Supply Agreement with Instituto Grifols, S.A. dated June 22,
1999.

Amendment No. 1 dated June 10, 2001 to Albumin Supply Agreement dated
June 22, 1999.

Collaboration Agreement between Quest Diagnostics, Inc. and SeraCare,
Inc. dated January 1, 2001.

Agreement between AMPC, Inc, (n.k.a. Proliant) and SeraCare, Inc.
dated October 1999.
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10.7 Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tennant Lease - Gross between
Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. and The Western States Group, Inc.,
n/k/a SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated as of April 16, 1998, and
addendums thereto dated on or about October 12, 1998 and January 7,
1999.

10.7.1 Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated October 19, 1999 among Del
Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. and Arthur Kazarian as Trustee for the
General Wood Investment Trust.

10.8 Master Separation and Distribution Agreement between SeraCare, Inc.
and SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

10.9 General Assignment and Assumption Agreement between SeraCare, Inc.
and SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

10.10 Trademark License Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

10.11 Employee Matters Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

10.12 Tax Sharing Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

10.13 Supply and Services Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare
Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

99.1 SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. Information Statement dated ,
2001.

*Confidential Treatment Requested
** To be filed by amendment

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City
of Los Angeles, State of California, on August 3, 2001.

SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.
By: /s/ JERRY BURDICK

Name: Jerry Burdick
Title:Chief Financial Officer

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Incorporation.

3.2 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to be effective at the

time of the spin-off.

3.3 Bylaws.
3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws to be effective at the time of the spin-
off.
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10.

10.

99.
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Employment Agreement between American Blood Institute, Inc., Avre
Inc., Binary Associates, Inc., and Jerry L. Burdick dated November
14, 1995.

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 12, 2001.

Employment Agreement between American Blood Institute, Inc., Avre
Inc., Binary Associates, Inc., and Barry Plost dated February 5,
1996.

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 12, 2001.

Employment Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and Michael F. Crowley II
dated November 1, 2000.

Albumin Supply Agreement with Instituto Grifols, S.A. dated June 22,
1999.

Amendment No. 1 dated June 10, 2001 to Albumin Supply Agreement dated
June 22, 1999.

Collaboration Agreement between Quest Diagnostics, Inc. and SeraCare,
Inc. dated January 1, 2001.

Agreement between AMPC, Inc, (n.k.a. Proliant) and SeraCare, Inc.
dated October 1999.

Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tennant Lease - Gross between
Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. and The Western States Group, Inc.,
n/k/a SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated as of April 16, 1998, and
addendums thereto dated on or about October 12, 1998 and January 7,
1999.

Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated October 19, 1999 among Del
Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. and Arthur Kazarian as Trustee for the
General Wood Investment Trust.

Master Separation and Distribution Agreement between SeraCare, Inc.
and SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

General Assignment and Assumption Agreement between SeraCare, Inc.
and SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

Trademark License Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

Employee Matters Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

Tax Sharing Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

Supply and Services Agreement between SeraCare, Inc. and SeraCare
Life Sciences, Inc. dated June 10, 2001.

SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc. Information Statement dated ,
2001.

*Confidential Treatment Requested
** To be filed by amendment
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EXHIBIT 3.1
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

SOUTHWEST BIOLOGICAL SERVICES
WESTERN STATES PLASMA CO., INC.

The name of the corporation is SOUTHWEST BIOLOGICAL SERVICES WESTERN STATES
PLASMA CO., INC.

IT

The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which a corporation may be organized under the General Corporation Law of
California other than the banking business, the trust company business or the
practice of a profession permitted to be incorporated by the California
Corporations Code.

IIT

The name and address in the State of California of this corporation's initial
agent for service of process is:

GARY R. KING 200 East Sandpointe, Suite 400
Santa Ana, California 92707

Iv
This corporation is authorized to issue only one class of shares of stock; and

the total number of shares which this corporation is authorized to issue is
100, 000.

DATED: August 17, 1984

/s/ Michael F. Crowley

MICHAEL F. CROWLEY

I declare that I am the person who executed the forgoing Articles of
Incorporaiton, which execution is my act and deed.
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/s/ Michael F. Crowley

MICHAEL F. CROWLEY

Southwest Biological Services
Western States Plasma Co., Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Michael F. Crowley and Mary A. Crowley certify that:

1. They are the president and secretary, respectively, of Southwest Biological
Services Western States Plasma Co., Inc., California corporation.

2. Articles I of the articles of incorporation of this corporation is amended
to read as follows:

The name of the corporation is The Western States Group, Inc.

3. The foregoing amendment of articles of incorporation has been duly approved
by the board of directors.

4. The foregoing amendment of articles of incorporation has been duly approved
by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with Section 902 of the
Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding shares of the
corporation is 1,000. The number of shares voting in favor of the
amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote
required was more than 50%.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
California that matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of
our own knowledge.

DATE: June 17, 1993

/s/ Michael F. Crowley

Michael F. Crowley, President
/s/ Mary A. Crowley

Mary A. Crowley, Secretary

2
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
THE WESTERN STATES GROUP, INC.,
a California corporation

The undersigned certify that:

1. They are the president and the secretary, respectively, of The
Western States Group, Inc., a California corporation.

2. Article I of the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation is
amended to read as follows:

"Article I: The name of the corporation is "SeraCare Life Sciences,
Inc."

3. The foregoing amendment of the Articles of Incorporation has been
duly approved by the Board of Directors of this corporation.

4. The foregoing amendment of the Articles of Incorporation has been
duly approved by the required vote of shareholders in accordance with Section
902, California Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding shares of
this corporation is 1,000. The number of shares voting in favor of the

amendment equaled 100% of the outstanding shares.

3

The undersigned further declare under penalty of perjury under the
laws of the State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate
are true and correct of our own knowledge.

Date: June 5, 2001

/s/ Michael Crowley Jr.

Michael F. Crowley, Jr.
President

Jerry L. Burdick
Secretary

The undersigned further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
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State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and
correct of our own knowledge.

Date: June 5, 2001

Michael F. Crowley, Jr.
President

/s/ Jerry L. Burdick

Jerry L. Burdick
Secretary
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EXHIBIT 3.2

AMENDED AND RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.

Michael Crowley, Jr. and Jerry Burdick hereby certify that:

1. They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc., a California corporation.
2. The Articles of Incorporation of this corporation are amended and restated

in their entirety to read as follows:

"Name

One: The name of the corporation is:

SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.

Two: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or
activity for which a corporation may be organized under the General
Corporation Law of California other than the banking business, the trust
company business or the practice of a profession permitted to be
incorporated by the California Corporations Code.

Authorized Shares

Three: The corporation shall have authority to issue fifty million
(50,000,000) shares of stock, consisting of twenty five million
(25,000,000) shares of common stock, no par value per share (the "Common
Stock™), and twenty five million (25,000,000) shares of preferred stock, no
par value per share (the "Preferred Stock").

The Board of Directors is authorized to fix by resolution the
designations, powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights (including voting rights, if any, and
conversion rights, if any), and qualifications, limitations or
restrictions thereof, of any such series of Preferred Stock, and the
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been

4.
been

number of shares constituting any such series, or all or any of them;
and to increase or decrease the number of shares of any series
subsequent to the issue of shares of that series, but not below the
number of such shares then outstanding. Except as otherwise provided
(i) by law, (ii) by these Articles of Incorporation as amended from
time to time, or (iii) by resolutions of the Board of Directors fixing
the powers and preferences of any class or series of shares as to
which the Board of

Directors has been expressly vested with authority to fix the powers
and preferences, (a) the Common Stock shall possess the full voting
power of the Corporation and (b) the number of authorized shares of
any class or classes of stock may be increased or decreased (but not
below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the stock of the
Corporation entitled to vote.

No Cumulative Voting

Four: No holder of any class of stock of the corporation shall be entitled
to cumulate votes at any election of directors of this corporation. This
provision shall become effective only when this corporation becomes a
listed corporation within the meaning of Section 301.5 of the California
General Corporation Law.

Director Liability

Five: The liability of the directors of the corporation for monetary
damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under
California law.

Indemnification of Agents

Six: The corporation is authorized to provide indemnification of agents (as
defined in Section 317 of the General Corporation Law of California) to the
fullest extent permissible under California law, in excess of that
indemnification otherwise permitted by Section 317 of the General
Corporation Law of California."

The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles of Incorporation has
duly approved by the Board of Directors of this corporation.

The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles of Incorporation has
duly approved by the required vote of the shareholders of this corporation

in accordance with Sections 902 and 903 of the General Corporation Law of
California. The total number of outstanding shares of each class and series
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entitled to vote with respect to the foregoing amendment and restatement of
Articles of Incorporation was 1,000 shares of Common Stock. There are no shares
outstanding of Preferred Stock of this corporation of any class or series. The
number of shares voting in favor of the foregoing amendment and restatement
equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required was a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock voting
together as a single class.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
State of California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and
correct of our own knowledge.

2
DATED: , 2001
Michael Crowley III
President
Jerry Burdick
Secretary
3
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EXHIBIT 3.3

Bylaws for the regulation, except as otherwise provided by statute or its
Articles of Incorporation ("Articles"), of

The Western States Group, Inc.
(a California Corporation)

ARTICLE I.
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Section 1. ANNUAL MEETINGS. The annual meeting of shareholders shall be held
between 30 and 120 days following the end of the fiscal year of the corporation
and at such precise date and time and at such place as fixed by the resolution
of the Board of Directors ("Board"). At such meeting, directors shall be
elected, reports of the affairs of the corporation shall be considered, and any
other business may be transacted which is within the powers of the shareholders.

Section 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the shareholders, for any
purpose or purposes whatsoever, may be called at any time by the Board, the
Chairman of the Board, the President, or by the holders of shares entitled to
cast not less than 10% of the votes at the meeting or by such other persons as
may be provided in the Articles or in these Bylaws.

Section 3. NOTICE. Written notice of each meeting shall be given to each
shareholder entitled to vote, either personally or by mail or other means of
written communication, charges prepaid, addressed to such shareholder at his
address appearing on the books of the corporation or given by him to the
corporation for the purpose of notice. If no such address appears or is given,
notice shall be deemed to have been given to him if sent by trail or other means
of written communication addressed to the place where the principal executive
office of the corporation is situated, or by publication of notice at least once
in some newspaper of general circulation in the county in which said office is
located. All such notices shall be sent to each shareholder entitled thereto not
less than 10 (or if sent by third-class mail, 30) nor more than 60 days before
such meeting. Such notice shall specify the place, the date and the hour of such
meeting.

In the case of a special meeting, the notice shall state the general nature
of business to be transacted and no other business shall be transacted at such
meeting.
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In the case of an annual meeting, the notice shall state those matters
which the Board, at the time of the mailing of the notice, intends to present
for action by the shareholders. However, any proper matter may be presented at
the meeting for action but action on the following matters shall be valid only
if the general nature of the proposal so approved was stated in the notice of
the meeting or in a written notice, unless the matter was unanimously approved
by those entitled to vote:

(a) the approval of a contract or other transaction between the
corporation and one or more of its directors or with any
corporation, firm or association in which one or more of its
directors has a material financial interest;

(b) an amendment to the Articles;

(c) a reorganization (as defined in (S)181 of the General Corporation
Law) required to be approved by (S)1201 of the General
Corporation Law;

(d) the voluntary winding up and dissolution of the corporation; or

(e) a plan of distribution under (S)2007 of the General Corporation
Law in respect of a corporation in the process of winding up.

The notice of any meeting at which directors are to be elected shall
include the names of the nominees intended at the time of the notice to be
presented by the Board for election.

The notice shall state such other matters, if any, as may be expressly
required by statute.

Section 4. ADJOURNED MEETING AND NOTICE THEREOF. When a shareholders'
meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the
adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at
which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting, the corporation may
transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting.
If the adjournment is for more than 45 days or if after the adjournment a new
record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned
meeting shall be given to each shareholder of record entitled to vote at the
meeting.

Section 5. QUORUM. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles, the presence
in person or by proxy of the persons entitled to vote a majority of the voting
shares at any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
The shareholders present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is
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present may continue to transact business until adjournment notwithstanding the
withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum, if any action
taken (other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the shares
required to constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of
shareholders may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the
shares represented either in person or by proxy, but no other business may be
transacted, except as provided above.

Section 6. CONSENT OF ABSENTEES. The transactions of any meeting of
shareholders, however called and noticed and wherever held are as valid as
though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum is
present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the
meeting, each of the persons entitled to vote, not present in person or by
proxy, signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of the
meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents and
approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the
minutes of the meeting.

Section 7. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING. Unless otherwise provided in the
Articles, any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of
shareholders may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a
consent in writing, setting forth the action so

-2-

taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding shares having not less than
the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such
action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present
and voted; provided, however, that:

(a) unless the consents of all shareholders entitled to vote have
been solicited in writing, notice of any shareholder approval:

(1) of a contract or other transaction between the corporation
and one or more of its directors or with any corporation,
firm or association in which one or more of its directors
has a material financial interest;

(2) of an indemnity pursuant to (S)317 of the General
Corporation Law;

(3) of a reorganization (as defined in (S)181 of the General
Corporation Law) required to be approved by (S)1201 of the
General Corporation Law; or

(4) of a plan of distribution under (S)2007 of the General
Corporation Law in respect of a corporation in the process
of winding up, which approval was obtained without a meeting
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by less than unanimous written consent, shall be given at
least 10 days before the consummation of the action
authorized by such approval; and

(b) prompt notice shall be given of the taking of any other corporate
action approved by shareholders without a meeting by less than
unanimous written consent, to those shareholders entitled to vote
who have not consented in writing. Notice of such approval shall
be given in the same manner as required by Article I, Section 3
of these Bylaws.

Any shareholder giving a written consent, or the shareholder's proxyholder
or proxyholders, or a transferee of the shares, or a personal representative of
the shareholder, or their respective proxyholder or proxyholders, may revoke the
consent by a writing received by the corporation prior to the time that written
consents of the number of shares required to authorize the proposed action have
been filed with the Secretary of the corporation, but may not do so thereafter.
Such revocation is effective upon its receipt by the Secretary of the
corporation.

Notwithstanding the above provisions, directors may not be elected by
written consent except by unanimous written consent of all shares entitled to
vote for the election of directors.

Section 8. RECORD DATES. For purposes of determining the shareholders
entitled to notice of any meeting or to vote or entitled to exercise any other
rights, the Board may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not be more
than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of such meeting nor more than 60
days prior to any other action. If no record date is fixed by the Board:

(a) the record date for determining shareholders entitled to notice
of or to vote at a meeting of shareholders shall be at the close
of business on the business day next preceding the day on which
notice is given or, 1if notice is waived, at the close of business
on the business day next preceding the day on which the meeting
is held;

(b) the record date for determining shareholders entitled to give
consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no
prior action by the Board is necessary, shall be the day on which
the first written consent is given; and

(c) the record date for determining shareholders for any other
purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the
Board adopts the resolution relating thereto, or the 60th day
prior to the date of such other action, whichever is later. A
determination of shareholders of record entitled to notice of or
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to vote at a meeting of shareholders shall apply to any

adjournment of the meeting unless the Board fixes a new record
date for the adjourned meeting, but the Board shall fix a new
record date if the meeting is adjourned for more than 45 days.

Section 9. PROXIES. Every person entitled to vote shares may authorize
another person or persons to act by proxy with respect to such shares. No proxy
shall be valid after the expiration of 11 months from the date thereof unless
otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy continues in full force and effect
until revoked as specified in (S)705(b) of the General Corporation Law or unless
it states that it is irrevocable. A proxy which states that it is irrevocable
is irrevocable for the period specified therein when it is held by a person
specified in (S)705(e) of the General Corporation Law.

Section 10. VOTING; CUMULATIVE VOTING AND NOTICE THEREOF. Votes on any

matter may be viva voce but shall be by ballot upon demand made by a shareholder
at any election and before the voting begins. No shareholder shall be entitled
to cumulate votes for election of directors (i.e., cast for any candidate for
election as directors a number of votes greater than the number of votes which
such shareholder normally is entitled to cast) unless such candidate or
candidates' names have been placed in nomination prior to the voting and the
shareholder has given notice at the meeting prior to the voting of the
shareholder's intention to cumulate the shareholder's votes. If any one
shareholder has given such notice, all shareholders may cumulate their votes for
candidates in nomination. If cumulative voting is proper, every shareholder
entitled to vote at any election of directors may cumulate such shareholder's
votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors
to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which the shareholder's
shares are normally entitled, or distribute the shareholder's votes on the same
principle among as many candidates as the shareholder thinks fit. In any
election of directors, the candidates receiving the highest number of
affirmative votes of the shares entitled to be voted for them up to the number
of directors to be elected by such shares are elected; votes against the
director and votes withheld shall have no legal effect.

Except for election of directors, provided above, votes on other
substantive and procedural matters shall be taken on the basis of one vote for
each shares represented at the meeting.

Fractional shares shall not be entitled to any voting rights.

Section 11. CHAIRMAN OF MEETING. The Board may select any person to preside
as Chairman of any meeting of shareholders, and if such person shall be absent

from the meeting, or fail or be unable to preside, the Board may name any other
person in substitution therefor as
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Chairman. In the absence of an express selection by the Board of a Chairman or
substitute therefor, the Chairman of the Board shall preside as Chairman. If the
Chairman of the Board shall be absent, fail or be unable to preside, the
President shall preside. If the President shall be absent, fail or be unable to
preside the Vice President or Vice Presidents in order of their rank as fixed by
the Board, the Secretary, or the Chief Financial Officer, shall preside as
Chairman, in that order. The Chairman of the meeting shall designate a secretary
for such meeting, who shall take and keep or cause to be taken and kept minutes
of the proceedings thereof.

The conduct of all shareholders' meetings shall at all times be within the
discretion of the Chairman of the meeting and shall be conducted under such
rules as he may prescribe. The Chairman shall have the right and power to
adjourn any meeting at any time, without a vote of the shares present in person
or represented by proxy, if the Chairman shall determine such action to be in
the best interests of the corporation and its shareholders.

Section 12. INSPECTORS OF ELECTION. 1In advance of any meeting of
shareholders, the Board may appoint any persons other than nominees for office
as inspectors of election to act at the meeting and any adjournment thereof. If
inspectors of election are not so appointed, or if any such persons fail to
appear or refuse to act, the Chairman of any such meeting may, and on the
request of any shareholder or his proxy shall, make such appointment at the
meeting. The number of inspectors shall be either one or three. If appointed
at a meeting on the request of one or more shareholders or proxies, the majority
of shares present in person or by proxy shall determine whether one or three
inspectors are to be appointed.

The inspectors of election shall determine the number of shares outstanding
and the voting power of each, the shares represented at the meeting, the
existence of a quorum, the authenticity, wvalidity and effect of proxies, receive
votes, ballots or consents, hear and determine all challenges and questions in
any way arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all
votes or consents, determine when the polls shall close, determine the result
and do such acts as may be proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness
to all shareholders.

If there are three inspectors of election, the decision, act or certificate
of a majority is effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate
of all.

ARTICLE TIT.
DIRECTORS
Section 1. POWERS. Subject to any limitations in the Articles or these

Bylaws and to any provision of the General Corporation Law relating to action
required to be approved by the shareholders or by the outstanding shares, or by
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less than a majority vote of a class or series of preferred shares, the business
and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall
be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. The Board may delegate the
management of the day-to-day operation of the business of the corporation to a
management company or other person provided that the business and affairs of the
corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under
the ultimate direction of the Board.

Section 2. NUMBER. The number of directors which shall constitute the whole
board shall be not less than three (3) nor more than five (5), with the precise
number of directors to be determined by the board from time to time. The
initial number of directors of the corporation shall be four (4). After the
issuance of shares, a Bylaw amendment specifying or changing a fixed number of
directors or the maximum or minimum number of directors or changing from a fixed
to a variable board or vice versa may only be adopted by approval of the
outstanding shares; provided, however, that a Bylaw or amendment of the Articles
reducing the fixed number or the minimum number of directors to a member less
than five cannot be adopted if the votes cast against its adoption at a meeting
or the shares not consenting in the case of action by written consent are equal
to more than 16 2/3 percent of the outstanding shares entitled to vote.

Section 3. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE. The directors shall be elected at
each annual meeting of shareholders, and the directors may be elected at any
special meeting of shareholders held for that purpose. Each director, including
a director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until the expiration of
the term for which elected and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

Section 4. ORGANIZATION MEETING. Immediately following each annual meeting
of shareholders the Board shall hold a regular meeting for the purpose of
organization, election of officers, and the transaction of other business.

Section 5. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at
such times and places within or without the state as may be designated in the
notice of the meeting or which are designated by resolution of the Board. 1In
the absence of designation of place, regular meetings shall be held at the
principal office of the corporation.

Section 6. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board for any purpose
or purposes may be called at anytime by the Chairman of the Board, the
President, or by any Vice President or the Secretary or any two directors.
Special meetings of the Board may be held at such times and places within or
without the state as may be designated in the notice of the meeting or which are
designated by resolution of the Board.
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Section 7. NOTICE OF MEETINGS. When notice of a meeting of the Board is
required, at least four days notice by mail or 48 hours notice delivered
personally or by telephone or telegraph shall be given to each director. Such
notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting need
not be given to any director who signs a waiver of notice or consent to holding
the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof, whether before or after the
meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its
commencement, the lack of notice to such director. All such waivers, consents
and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the
minutes of the meeting.

Section 8. PARTICIPATION BY TELEPHONE. Members of the Board may participate
in a meeting through use of conference telephone or similar communications
equipment, so long as all members participating in such meeting can hear one
another. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section constitutes
presence in person at such meeting.

Section 9. QUORUM. A majority of the authorized number of directors
constitutes a gquorum of the Board for the transaction of business. A meeting at
which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business
notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by
at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting. A majority of the
directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting
to another time and place.

Section 10. VOTING. Every act or decision done or trade by a majority of the
directors present at a meeting duly held at which a gquorum is present is the act
of the Board, subject to Section 9 of this Article and to:

(a) the provisions of (S)310 of the General Corporation Law regarding
votes in respect of a contract or other transaction between the
corporation and one or more of its directors or with any
corporation, firm or association in which one or more of its
directors has a material financial interest, and

(b) Corporation Law regarding votes in respect of indemnification of
agents of the corporation who are members of the Board.

Section 11. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING. Any action required or permitted to be
taken by the Board may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board
shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such

written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings
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of the Board. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and
effect as a unanimous vote of such directors.

Section 12. RESIGNATION. Any director may resign effective upon giving
written notice to the Chairman of the Board, the President, the Secretary or the
Board of the corporation, unless the notice specifies a later time for the
effectiveness of such resignation. If the resignation is effective at a future
time, a successor may be elected to take office when the resignation becomes
effective.

Section 13. VACANCIES. Except for a vacancy created by the removal of a
director, vacancies on the Board may be filled by the unanimous written consent
of the directors then in office, the affirmative vote of a majority of the
directors then in office at a meeting held pursuant to notice or waivers of
notice complying with Section 307, or by a sole remaining director. Vacancies
occurring in the Board by reason of the removal of directors may be filled only
by approval of the shareholders. The shareholders may elect a director at any
time to fill any vacancy not filled by the directors. Any such election by
written consent other than to fill a vacancy created by removal requires the
consent of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote.

No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of
removing any director prior to the expiration of his term of office.

Section 14. ADJOURNMENT. A majority of the directors present, whether or not
a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the
meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of any adjournment to
another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting
to the directors who were not present at the time of the

-7 -

adjournment. Such notice need not comply with the time in which notice must be
given prior to a meeting as required by Section 7 of Article II of the Bylaws,
but should be given as far in advance as 1is reasonably practicable under all the
circumstances existing at the time of adjournment.

Section 15. VISITORS. No person other than a director tray attend any
meeting of the Board without the consent of a majority of the directors present;
provided, however, that a representative of legal counsel for the corporation
and a representative of the independent certified public accountant for the
corporation may attend any such meeting upon the invitation of any director.

Section 16. FEES AND COMPENSATION. Directors and members of committees may

receive such compensation for their services and such reimbursement for expenses
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as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board.

Section 17. CODES. The Board may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the
authorized number of directors, designate one or more committees, each
consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. The
Board may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee,
who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. The
appointment of members or alternate members of a committee requires the vote of
a majority of the authorized directors. Any such committee, to the extent
provided in the resolution of the Board or in the Bylaws, shall have all the
authority of the Board, except with respect to:

(a) the approval of any action for which the General Corporation Law
also requires shareholders' approval or approval of the
outstanding shares;

(b) the filling of vacancies on the Board or in any committee;

(c) the fixing of compensation of the directors for serving on the
Board or on any committee;

(d) the amendment or repeal of Bylaws or the adoption of new Bylaws;

(e) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by
its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;

(f) a distribution to the shareholders of the corporation (as defined
in (S)166 of the General Corporation Law), except at a rate, in
the periodic amount or within a price range set forth in the
articles or determined by the Board; and

(g) the appointment of other committees of the Board or the members
thereof.

ARTICLE III.
OFFICERS

Section 1. OFFICERS. The officers of the corporation shall be a Chairman of
the Board or a President, or both, a Secretary and a Chief Financial Officer.
The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board, one or more Vice
Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Financial Officers,
and such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of
Section 3 of this Article. One person may hold two or more offices.

Section 2. ELECTION. The officers of the corporation, except such officers
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as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5
of this Article, shall be chosen annually by the Board, and each shall hold
office until resignation or removal or other disqualification to serve, or the
election of a successor.

Section 3. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS. The Board, the aims and the President
shall each have the power to appoint such assistant vice presidents, assistant
secretaries and assistant treasurers or financial officers as the business of
the corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period,
have such authority and perform such duties as the appointing officer or the
Board may from time to time determine. In the case of subordinate officers
appointed by the Chairman or the President, such appointment shall be reported
to the Board at its next meeting, but the failure to so report shall not affect
the validity of the appointment. The Board may remove any subordinate officer
at any time.

Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION. Any officer may be removed, either with
or without cause, by action of the Board duly taken, or, except in case of an
officer chosen by the Board, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may
be conferred by the Board.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
corporation, to the attention of the Secretary. Any such resignation shall take
effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified
therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. VACANCIES. A wvacancy in any office shall be filled in the manner

prescribed in the Bylaws for regular appointments to such office.

Section 6. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. The Chairman of the Board, if there shall
be such an officer, shall, if present, preside at all meetings of the Board,
cause minutes thereof to be taken, and exercise and perform such other powers
and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him by the Board or
prescribed by the Bylaws. In the event the corporation shall not have an
elected President, the Chairman of the Board shall also have the authority and
perform the duties as provided for the President in the following Section of
this Article.

Section 7. PRESIDENT. Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be
given by the Board to the Chairman of the Board, if there is such an officer,
the President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and shall,
subject to the control of the Board, have general supervision, direction and
control of the business and affairs of the corporation., In the absence of the
Chairman of the Board, or if there is none, the President shall preside at all
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meetings of the

Board. He shall be ex officio a member of all the standing committees, including
the Executive Committee, if any, and shall have the general powers and duties of
management usually vested in the office of President of a corporation, and shall
have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the
Bylaws.

Section 8. EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT. In the absence or disability of the
President, the Executive Vice Presidents, if there shall be such officers
designated by the Board, shall, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board or,
if not ranked, the Executive Vice President designated by the Board, shall
perform all the duties of the President, or if there be none, the Chairman of
the Board, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to
all the restrictions upon, the President or Chairman of the Board. The
Executive Vice Presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other
duties as from time to time may be prescribed for each of them by the Board or
the Bylaws.

Section 9. VICE PRESIDENT. In the absence or disability of the President
and the Executive Vice President, the Vice Presidents in order of their rank as
fixed by the Board or, if not ranked, the Vice President designated by the
Board, shall perform all the duties of the President, or, if there be none, the
Chairman of the Board, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be
subject to all the restrictions upon, the President or Chairman of the Board.
The Vice Presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties
as from time to time may be prescribed for each of them by the Board or the
Bylaws.

Section 10. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept at the
principal executive office a book of minutes of all meetings and consents to
action without a meeting of directors, committees and shareholders, with the
time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how
authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of those present at directors'
and committee meetings, the number of shares present or represented at
shareholders' meetings, and the proceedings thereof.

The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive
office or at the office of the corporation's transfer agent or registrar, a
record of its shareholders showing the names of the shareholders and their
addresses, the number and classes of shares held by each, the number and date of
certificates issued for the same, and the number and date of cancellation of
every certificate surrendered for cancellation.

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all the meetings
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of the shareholders and of the Board required by the Bylaws or by law to be
given.

The Secretary shall .keep the seal of the corporation in safe custody, and
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed
by the Board or by the Bylaws.

Section 11. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER. The Chief Financial Officer shall keep
and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts
of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including
changes in financial position, accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts,
disbursements, gains, losses, capital, surplus and shares. Any surplus shall be
classified according to source and shown in a separate account.

_10_

The Chief Financial Officer shall deposit all monies and other valuables in
the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositaries as may be
designated by the Board. He shall disburse the funds of the corporation as may
be ordered by the Board or by any officer having authority therefor, shall
render to the President and directors, whenever they request it, an account of
all of his transactions and of the financial condition of the corporation, and
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed
by the Board or the Bylaws.

ARTICLE TV.
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 1. LOANS TO OR GUARANTIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF OFFICERS OR DIRECTORS;
LBA;Q_GE;N THE SECURITY OF SHARES OF THE CORPORATION.
(a) Except as expressly provided in subsection (b) hereof, the

corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to or
guarantee the obligation of:

(1) any director or officer of the corporation or of its parent,
or
(2) any person upon the security of shares of the corporation or

of its parent, unless the loan or guaranty is otherwise
adequately secured, or unless approved by the vote of the
holders of a majority of the shares of all classes,
regardless of limitations or restrictions on voting rights,
other than shares held by the benefited director, officer or
shareholder.

(b) Upon consent of the Board of Directors, the corporation may lend
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money to, or guarantee any obligation of any officer or other
employee of the corporation or of any subsidiary, including any
officer or employee who is also a director, pursuant to an
employee benefit plan (including, without limitation, any stock
purchase or stock option plan) available to executives or other
employees, whenever the Board determines that such loan or
guaranty may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation.
If such plan includes officers or directors, it shall be approved
by the shareholders after disclosure of the right under such plan
to include officers or directors thereunder. A loan or guaranty
under this subdivision may be with or without interest and may be
unsecured or secured in such manner as the Board shall approve,
including, without limitation, a pledge of shares of the
corporation. The corporation may advance money to a director or
officer of the corporation or of its parent or any subsidiary for
expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance
of the duties of such director or officer, provided that in the
absence of such advance such director or officer would be
entitled to be reimbursed for such expenses by such corporation,
its parent or any subsidiary.

Section 2. RECORD DATE AND CLOSING STOCK BOOKS. When a record date is
fixed, only shareholders of record on that date are entitled to notice of and to
vote at the meeting or to receive a dividend, distribution, or allotment of
rights, or to exercise the rights, as the case
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may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any shares on the books of the
corporation after the record date.

The Board may close the books of the corporation, against transfers of
shares during the whole or any part of a period not more than 60 days prior to
the date of a shareholders' meeting, the date when the right to any dividend,
distribution, or allotment of rights vests, or the effective date of any change,
conversion or exchange of shares.

Section 3. INSPECTION OF CORPORATE RECORDS. The record of shareholders, the
accounting books and records of the corporation, and minutes of proceedings of
the shareholders, the Board and committees of the Board shall be open to
inspection upon the written demand of any shareholder or holder of a voting
trust certificate, at any time during usual business hours for a purpose
reasonably related to his interests as a shareholder or as the holder of a
voting trust certificate. Such inspection may be made in person or by an agent
or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts. Demand of
inspection shall be made in writing upon the corporation to the attention of the
Secretary.
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A shareholder or shareholders holding at least five percent in the
aggregate of the outstanding voting shares of the corporation or who hold at
least one percent of such voting shares and have filed a Schedule 14-B with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the election of
directors of the corporation shall have an absolute right to access to a list of
shareholders as provided in (S)1600(x) of the General Corporation Law.

Section 4. WAIVER OF ANNUAL REPORT. The annual report to shareholders
referred to in Section 1501 of the General Corporation Law is expressly waived,
but nothing herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting the Board from issuing
annual or other periodic reports to the shareholders of the corporation as they
deem appropriate.

Section 5. EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS. Any contract or other instrument in
writing entered into by the corporation, when signed by the Chairman of the
Board, the President or any Vice President and the Secretary, any Assistant
Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Financial Officer is not
invalidated as to the corporation by any lack of authority of the signing
officers in the absence of actual knowledge on the part of the other party to
the contract or other instrument that the signing officers had no authority to
execute the same. Contracts or other instruments in writing made in the name of
the corporation which are authorized or ratified by the Board, or are done
within the scope of authority, actual or apparent, conferred by the Board or
within the agency power of the officer executing it, bind the corporation.

Section 6. SHARE CERTIFICATES. A certificate or certificates for shares of
the capital stock of the corporation shall be issued to each shareholder when
any such shares are fully paid. Every shareholder in the corporation shall be
entitled to have a certificate signed in the name of the corporation by the
Chairman of the Board or the President or a Vice President and by the Chief
Financial Officer or an Assistant Financial Officer or the Secretary or any
Assistant Secretary, certifying the number of shares and the class or series of
shares owned by the shareholders. Any or all of the signatures on the
certificate may be facsimile.
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The corporation may issue the whole or any part of its shares as partly
paid and subject to call for the remainder of the consideration to be paid
therefor. On the certificates issued to represent any partly paid shares or,
for uncertificated securities, on the initial transaction statement for such
partly paid shares, the total amount of the consideration to be paid therefor
and the amount paid thereon shall be stated.

No new certificate for shares shall be issued in lieu of an old certificate
unless the latter is surrendered and canceled at the same time; provided,
however, that a new certificate may be issued without the surrender and
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cancellation of the old certificate if:
(a) the old certificate is lost, stolen or destroyed;

(b) the request for the issuance of the new certificate is made within a
reasonable time after the owner of the old certificate has notice of
its loss, destruction, or theft;

(c) the request for the issuance of a new certificate is made prior to the
receipt of notice by the corporation that the old certificate has been
acquired by a bona fide purchaser; and

(d) the owner satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the
corporation including, at the election of the Board, the filing of
sufficient indemnity bond or undertaking with the corporation or its
transfer agent. In the event of the issuance of a new certificate,
the rights and liabilities of the corporation, and of the holders of
the old and new certificates, shall be governed by the provisions of
(S) (S)8104 and 8405 of the California Commercial Code.

Section 7. REPRESENTATION OF SECURITIES OF OTHERS. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board or the Executive Committee, the President, or any other
officer of the corporation designated in writing by the President, is authorized
to vote, represent and exercise on behalf of the corporation all rights incident
to any and all securities of any other person or entity standing in the name of
the corporation. The authority herein granted may be exercised either in
person, or by proxy.

Section 8. INSPECTION OF BYLAWS. The corporation shall keep in its
principal executive or business office in this state, the original or a copy of
its Bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the
shareholders at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 9. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE AND OPTION PLANS. The corporation may
adopt and carry out a stock purchase plan or agreement or stock option plan or
agreement providing for the issue and sale for such consideration as may be
fixed of its unissued shares, or of issued shares acquired or to be acquired, to
one or more of the employees or directors of the corporation or of a subsidiary
or parent thereof or to a trustee on their behalf and for the payment for such
shares in installments or at one time, and may provide for aiding any such
persons in paying for such shares by compensation for services rendered,
promissory notes or otherwise.

A stock purchase plan or agreement or stock option plan or agreement may
include, among other features, the fixing of eligibility for participation
therein, the class and price of shares to be issued or sold under the plan or
agreement, the number of shares which may be
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subscribed for, the method of payment therefor, the reservation of title until
full payment therefor, the effect of the termination of employment, an option or
obligation on the part of the corporation to repurchase the shares upon
termination of employment, subject to the provisions of Chapter 5 of the
California Corporations Code, restrictions upon transfer of the shares and the
time limits of and termination of the plan.

Section 10. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS. Unless the context otherwise
requires, the general provisions, rules of construction and definitions
contained in the California General Corporation Law shall govern the
construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular number
includes the plural and the plural number includes the singular, and the term
"person" includes a corporation as well as a natural person.

Section 11. INDEMNIFICATION OF CORPORATE AGENTS. The corporation 1is
authorized to provide indemnification of its agents (as defined in Section
317(a) of the California Corporations Code) to the fullest extent permissible
under California law through bylaw provisions, agreements with its agents, vote
of the shareholders or disinterested directors, or otherwise, in excess of the
indemnification otherwise permitted by Section 317 of the California
Corporations Code. This corporation is further authorized to provide insurance
for agents as set forth in Section 317 of the California Corporations Code.

Section 12. LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS. The liability of the directors of the
corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent
permissible under California law. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing
provisions of Sections 11 and 12 hereof by the shareholders of this corporation
shall not adversely affect any right or protection of an agent of this
corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

Section 13. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF GENERAL INFORMATION. The corporation shall
file each year with the Secretary of State of the State of California, on the
prescribed form, a statement setting forth the number of vacancies on the Board,
if any, the names and complete business or residence addresses of all incumbent
directors, the Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer,
the street address of its principal executive office or principal business
office in this state and the general type of business constituting the principal
business activity of the corporation, together with a designation of the agent
of the corporation for the purpose of service of process, all in compliance with
Section 1502 of the Corporations Code of California.

Section 14. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS. All checks, drafts or
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other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness,
issued in the name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed
by such person or persons and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be
determined by resolution of the Board.
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ARTICLE V.
AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

Section 1. POWER OF SHAREHOLDERS. New Bylaws may be adopted or these Bylaws

may be amended or repealed by the vote or written consent of shareholders
entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the corporation.

Section 2. POWER OF DIRECTORS. Subject to the right of shareholders as

provided in Section 1 of this Article to adopt, amend or repeal Bylaws, Bylaws
may be adopted, amended or repealed by the Board provided, however, that after
the issuance of shares a Bylaw specifying or changing a fixed number of
directors or the maximum or minimum number or changing from a fixed to a
variable Board or vice versa may only be adopted by the vote or written consent
of shareholders entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the
corporation.

_15_

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
I certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of The Western States
Group, Inc., a California corporation; and

That the foregoing Bylaws, comprising 23 pages, constitute the Bylaws of
such corporation on the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate and affixed the seal
of such corporation on the 11th day of February, 1998.

/s/ Michael F. Crowley

Michael F. Crowley, Secretary
[SEAL]
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EXHIBIT 3.4

AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS
SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.
a California corporation

ARTICLE I
Offices

Section 1. Principal Executive Office. The principal executive
office of the corporation is hereby fixed and located at 1935 Avenida del Oro,
Suite F, Oceanside, California. The Board of Directors is hereby granted full
power and authority to change the principal executive office from one location
to another. Any such change shall be noted on the Bylaws by the secretary,
opposite this section, or this section may be amended to state the new location.

Section 2. Other Offices. Other business offices may at any time be
established by the Board of Directors at any place or places where the
corporation is qualified to do business.

ARTICLE IT
Meetings of Shareholders

Section 1. Place of Meetings. All annual or other meetings of
shareholders shall be held at the principal executive office of the corporation,
or at any other place within or without the State of California which may be
designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Annual Meetings. The annual meetings of shareholders
shall be held on such dates and at such times as shall be designated by the
Board of Directors and stated in the notice of the meeting given to each
shareholder as provided below. At such meetings, directors shall be elected,
reports of the affairs of the corporation shall be considered, and any other
business may be transacted which is within the powers of the shareholders.
Written notice of each annual meeting shall be given to each shareholder
entitled to vote, either personally or by mail or other means of written
communication, charges prepaid, addressed to such shareholder at its address
appearing on the books of the corporation or given to the corporation for the
purpose of notice. If any notice or report addressed to the shareholder at the
address of such shareholder appearing on the books of the corporation is
returned to the corporation by the United States Postal Service marked to
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indicate that the United States Postal Service is unable to deliver the notice
or report to the shareholder at such address, all future notices or reports
shall be deemed to have been duly given without further mailing if the same
shall be available for the shareholder upon written demand of the shareholder at
the principal executive office of the corporation for a period of one year from
the date of the giving of the notice or report to all other shareholders. 1If a
shareholder gives no address, notice shall be deemed to have been given if sent
by mail or other means of written communication addressed to the place where the
principal executive office of the corporation is situated, or if published at
least once in some newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the
principal executive office is located.

All such notices shall be given to each shareholder entitled thereto
not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days before each annual
meeting. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time when
delivered personally of deposited in the mail or sent by other means of written
communication. An affidavit of mailing of any such notice in accordance with
the foregoing provisions, executed by the secretary, assistant secretary or any
transfer agent of the corporation, shall be prima facie evidence of the giving
of the notice.

Such notices shall specify:
(a) the place, the date, and the hour of such meeting;

(b) those matters which the Board, at the time of the mailing of
the notice, intends to present for action by the shareholders at the

meeting;

(c) if directors are to be elected, the names of nominees
intended at the time of the notice to be presented by management for
election;

(d) the general nature of a proposal, if any, to take action
with respect to approval of (i) a contract or other transaction with an
interested director, (ii) amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, (iii)
a reorganization of the corporation as defined in Section 181 of the
California General Corporation Law, (iv) voluntary dissolution of the
corporation, or (v) a distribution in dissolution other than in accordance
with the rights of outstanding preferred shares, if any; and

(e) such other matters, if any, as may be expressly required by
statute.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the shareholders
for the purpose of taking any action permitted by the shareholders under the
General Corporation Law and the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation,
may be called at any time by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer or President, or by one or more shareholders
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entitled to cast not less than ten percent (10%) of the votes at the meeting.
Upon request in writing that a special meeting of shareholders be called for any
proper purpose, directed to the chairman of the Board, president, vice president
or secretary by any person (other than the Board) entitled to call a special
meeting of shareholders, the officer forthwith shall cause notice to be given to
shareholders entitled to vote that a meeting will be held at a time requested by
the person or persons calling the meeting, not less than thirty-five (35) nor
more than sixty (60) days after receipt of the request. Except in special cases
where other express provision is made by statute, notice of such special
meetings shall be given in the same manner as for the annual meeting of
shareholders. 1In addition to the matters required by items (a) and, if
applicable, (c) of the preceding Section, notice of any special meeting shall
specify the general nature of the business to be transacted, and no other
business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 4. Quorum. The presence in person or by proxy of the persons
entitled to vote a majority of the shares at any meeting shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business at that meeting. The shareholders
present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may
continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of
enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum, if any action taken (other than
adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the shares required to
constitute a quorum.

Section 5. Adjourned Meeting and Notice Thereof. Any shareholders'
meeting, annual or special, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned
from time to time by the vote of a majority of the shares, the holders of which
are either present in person or by proxy thereat, but in the absence of a gquorum
no other business may be transacted at such meeting, except as provided in
Section 4 above. When any shareholders' meeting, either annual or special, 1is
adjourned for forty-five days or more, or if after adjournment a new record date
is fixed for the adjourned meeting, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given as in the case of an original meeting. Except as provided above, it shall
not be necessary to give any notice of the time and place of the adjourned
meeting or of the business to be transacted thereat, other than by announcement
of the time and place of the adjourned meeting at the meeting at which the
adjournment is taken.

Section 6. Voting. Unless a record date for voting purposes be fixed
as provided in Section 1 of Article V of these Bylaws, then, subject to the
provisions of Sections 702 and 704, inclusive, of the Corporations Code of
California (relating to voting of shares held by a fiduciary, in the name of a
corporation, or in joint ownership) only persons in whose names shares entitled
to vote stand on the stock records of the corporation at the close of business
on the business day next preceding the day on which notice of the meeting is
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given or if such notice is waived, at the close of business on the business day
next preceding the day on which the meeting of shareholders is held, shall be
entitled to vote at such meeting, and such day shall be the record date for such

meeting. Such vote may be viva voce or by ballot; provided, however, that all
elections for directors must be by ballot upon demand made by a shareholder at
any election and before the voting begins. If a gquorum is present, except with

respect to election of directors, the affirmative vote of the majority of the
shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on any matter shall be
the act of the shareholders, unless the vote of a greater number or voting by
classes is required by the General Corporation Law or the Articles of
Incorporation.

Section 7. No Cumulative Voting. ©No holder of any class of stock of
this corporation shall be entitled to cumulate votes at any election of
directors of this corporation. This provision shall become effective only when
this corporation becomes a listed corporation within the meaning of Section
301.5 of the California General Corporation Law.

Section 8. Validation of Defective Called or Noticed Meetings. The
transactions of any meeting of shareholders, either annual or special, however
called and noticed, shall be as wvalid as though had at a meeting duly held after
regular call and notice, if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy,
and if, whether before or after the meeting, each of the persons entitled to
vote, not present in person or by proxy, or who, though present, has, at the
beginning of the meeting, properly objected to the transaction of any business
thereat because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened, or to
particular matters of business legally required to be included in the notice,
but not so included, signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the
holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such
waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made
a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 9. Proxies. Every person entitled to vote shall have the
right to do so whether in person or by one or more agents authorized by a
written proxy executed by such person or such person's duly authorized agent and
filed with the secretary of the corporation. Any proxy duly executed is not
revoked and continues in full force and effect until (i) an

instrument revoking it or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date is filed
with the secretary of the corporation prior to the vote pursuant thereto, (ii)
the person executing the proxy attends the meeting and votes in person, or (iii)
written notice of the death or incapacity of the maker of the proxy is received
by the corporation before the vote pursuant thereto is counted; provided that no
proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date of
its execution, unless the person executing it specifies therein the length of
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time for which such proxy is to continue in force.

Section 10. Inspectors of Election. In advance of any meeting of
shareholders, the Board of Directors may appoint any person other than nominees
for office as inspectors of election to act at such meeting or any adjournment
thereof. If inspectors of election be not so appointed, the chairman of any
such meeting may, on the request of any shareholder or its proxy, shall make
such appointment at the meeting. The number of inspectors shall be either one
or three. 1If appointed at a meeting on the request of one or more shareholders
or proxies, the majority of shares represented in person or by proxy shall
determine whether one or three inspectors are to be appointed. 1In case any
person appointed as inspector fails to appear or fails or refuses to act, the
vacancy may, and on the request of any shareholder or a shareholder's proxy
shall, be filled by appointment by the Board of Directors in advance of the
meeting, or at the meeting by the chairman of the meeting.

The duties of such inspectors shall be as prescribed by Section 707 of
the General Corporation Law and shall include determining the number of shares
outstanding and the voting power of each, the shares represented at the meeting,
the existence of a quorum, the authenticity, validity and effect of proxies;
receiving votes or ballots; hearing and determining all challenges and questions
in any way arising in connection with the right to vote; counting and tabulating
all votes; determining when the polls close; determining the result; and such
acts as may be proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all
shareholders. 1In the determination of the validity and effect of proxies, the
dates contained on the forms of proxy shall presumptively determine the order of
execution of the proxies, regardless of the postmark dates on the envelopes in
which they are mailed.

The inspectors of election shall perform their duties impartially, in
good faith, to the best of their ability and as expeditiously as is practical.
If there be three inspectors of election, the decision, act or certificate of a
majority is effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate of
all. Any report or certificate made by the inspectors of election is prima
facie evidence of the facts stated therein.

Section 11. Notice of Business. At any meeting of shareholders, only
such business shall be conducted as shall have been brought before the meeting
(a) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, (b) in accordance with
Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange
Act"), or (c) by any shareholder of the corporation who was a shareholder of
record at the time of giving of notice provided for in this bylaw, who is
entitled to vote at the meeting and who complies with the notice procedures set
forth in this bylaw. For business to be properly brought before a meeting by a
shareholder pursuant to clause (c) of this bylaw, the shareholder must have
given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the corporation and
such other business must otherwise be a proper matter for shareholder action.
To be timely, a shareholder's notice shall be delivered to the
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Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than
the close of business on the 60th day nor earlier than the close of business on
the 90th day prior to the meeting; provided, however, that if less than 70 days'
notice of the date of the meeting is given by the corporation, notice by the
shareholder to be timely must be so delivered no later than the 10th day
following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is
first made by the corporation. In no event shall the public announcement of an
adjournment of a meeting commence a new time period for the giving of a
shareholder's notice as described above. Such shareholder's notice shall set
forth (i) as to any business that the shareholder proposes to bring before the
meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the
meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any
material interest in such business of such shareholder and the beneficial owner,
if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; and (ii) as to the shareholder
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal
is made (x) the name and address of such shareholder, as they appear on the
corporation's books, and of such beneficial owner and (y) the class and number
of shares of stock of the corporation which are owned beneficially and of record
by such shareholder and such beneficial owner. If notice has not been given
pursuant to this Section, the chairman of the meeting may declare to the meeting
that the proposed business was not properly brought before the meeting, and such
business may not be transacted at the meeting. The foregoing provisions of this
Section do not relieve any shareholder of any obligation to comply with all
applicable requirements of the Exchange Act and rules and regulations
thereunder. For purposes of these bylaws, "public announcement" shall mean
disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, Associated
Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the
corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13,
14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

Section 12. Nomination of Directors. At any meeting of shareholders,
a person may be a candidate for election to the Board only if such person is
nominated (a) by or at the direction of the Board, (b) by any nominating
committee or person appointed by the Board, or (c) by a shareholder of record
entitled to vote at such meeting who complies with the notice procedures set
forth in this Section and has given timely notice of such nomination in writing
to the Secretary of the corporation. To be timely, a shareholder's notice shall
be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the
corporation not later than the close of business on the 60th day nor earlier
than the close of business on the 90th day prior to the meeting; provided,

however, that if less than 70 days notice of the date of the meeting is given by
the corporation, notice by the shareholder to be timely must be so delivered no
later than the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the
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date of such meeting is first made by the corporation. In no event shall the
public announcement of an adjournment of an annual meeting commence a new time
period for the giving of a shareholder's notice as described above. Such
shareholder's notice shall set forth as to each person whom the shareholder
proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a director all information
relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is otherwise
required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act and
Rule 14a-11 thereunder (including such person's written consent to being named
in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected).
The corporation may require such other information to be furnished respecting
any proposed nominee as may be reasonably necessary to determine whether the
proposed nominee has, or represents, interests which are opposed to or in
conflict with the interests of the corporation. No person

5

shall be eligible for election as a director at any meeting unless nominated in
accordance with this Section.

ARTICLE III
Directors

Section 1. Powers. Subject to limitations of the Articles of
Incorporation and the California General Corporation Law as to action to be
authorized or approved by the shareholders, and subject to the duties of
directors as prescribed by these Bylaws, all corporate powers shall be exercised
by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the corporation
shall be controlled by, the Board of Directors. Without prejudice to such
general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is hereby expressly
declared that the directors shall have the following powers, to wit:

First - To select and remove all the officers, agents and employees of
the corporation, prescribe such powers and duties for them as may not be
inconsistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, fix
their compensation and require from them security for faithful service.

Second - To conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of
the corporation, and to make such rules and regulations therefor not
inconsistent with law, or with the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, as
they may deem best.

Third - To change the principal executive office and principal office
for the transaction of business of the corporation from one location to another
as provided in Article I, Section 1, hereof; to fix and locate from time to time
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one or more subsidiary offices of the corporation within or without the State of
California, as provided in Article I, Section 2, hereof; to designate any place
within or without the State of California for the holding of any shareholders'
meeting or meetings; and to adopt, make and use a corporate seal, and to
prescribe the forms of certificates of stock, and to alter the form of such seal
and of such certificates from time to time, as in their judgment they may deem
best, provided such seal and such certificates shall at all times comply with
the provisions of law.

Fourth - To authorize the issue of shares of stock of the corporation

from time to time, upon such terms as may be lawful.

Fifth - To borrow money and incur indebtedness for the purposes of the
corporation, and to cause to be executed and delivered therefor, in the
corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages,
pledges, hypothecations or other evidences of debt and securities therefor.

Sixth - By resolution adopted by a majority of the authorized number
of directors, to designate an executive and other committees, each consisting of
two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the Board, and to prescribe
the manner in which proceedings of such committees shall be conducted. Unless
the Board of Directors shall otherwise prescribe the manner of proceedings of
any such committee, meetings of such committee may be regularly scheduled in
advance and may be called at any time by any two members thereof; otherwise, the

provisions of these Bylaws with respect to notice and conduct of meetings of the
Board shall govern. Any such committee, to the extent provided in a resolution
of the Board, shall have all of the authority of the Board, except with respect
to:

(1) the approval of any action for which the General Corporation Law
or the Articles of Incorporation also require shareholder approval;

(1ii) the filling of vacancies on the Board or in any committee;

(1ii) the fixing of compensation of the directors for serving on the
Board or on any committee;

(iv) the adoption, amendment or repeal of bylaws;
(v) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board;

(vi) any distribution to the shareholders, except at a rate or in a
periodic amount or within a price range determined by the Board;
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(vii) the appointment of other committees of the Board or the members
thereof.

Section 2. Number and Qualification of Directors. The authorized
number of directors shall be not less than five (5) nor more than nine (9) until
changed by Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation or by a Bylaw duly adopted
by approval of the outstanding shares. The exact number of directors shall be
fixed, within the limits specified, by amendment of the next sentence duly
adopted either by the Board of Directors or the shareholders. The exact number
of directors shall be six (7) until changed as provided in this Section 2.

Section 3. Vacancies. A vacancy in the Board of Directors shall be
deemed to exist in the case of the death, resignation or removal of any
director, if a director has been declared of unsound mind by order of court or
convicted of a felony, if the authorized number of directors be increased, or if
the shareholders fail, at any annual or special meeting of shareholders at which
any director or directors are elected, to elect the full authorized number of
directors to be voted for at that meeting. No reduction of the authorized
number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director prior to the
expiration of his or her term of office.

Subject to any provision contained in the Articles of Incorporation,
vacancies in the Board of Directors, except for a vacancy created by the removal
of a director, may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, though
less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director; and each director so
elected shall hold office until his or her successor is elected at an annual or
special meeting of the shareholders. Subject to any provision contained in the
Articles of Incorporation, a vacancy in the Board of Directors created by the
removal of a director may only be filled by the vote of a majority of the shares
entitled to vote represented at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is
present.

Subject to any provision contained in the Articles of Incorporation,
the shareholders may elect a director or directors at any time to fill any
vacancy or vacancies not

filled by the directors. Any such election shall require the vote of a majority
of the shares entitled to vote represented at a duly held meeting at which a
quorum 1is present.

Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the
chairman of the Board, the president, the secretary of the Board or the Board of
Directors of the corporation, unless the notice specifies a later time for the
effectiveness of such resignation. If the Board of Directors accepts the
resignation of a director tendered to take effect at a future time, the Board
or, subject to any provision contained in the Articles of Incorporation, the
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shareholders shall have the power to elect a successor to take office when the
resignation is to become effective.

Section 4. Place of Meeting. Regular meetings of the Board of
Directors shall be held at any place within or without the State of California
which has been designated from time to time by resolution of the Board or by
written consent of all members of the Board. In the absence of such
designation, regular meetings shall be hold at the principal executive office of
the corporation. Special meetings of the Board may be held either at a place so
designated or at the principal executive office of the corporation.

Section 5. Organization Meeting. Immediately following each annual
meeting of shareholders, the Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting at
the place of said annual meeting or at such other place as shall be fixed by the
Board, for the purpose of organization of the newly elected Board, election of
officers, and the transaction of other business. Call and notice of such
meetings are hereby dispensed with.

Section 6. Other Regular Meetings. Other regular meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be held without call as provided in a resolution
adopted by the Board from time to time; provided, however, should said day fall
upon a legal holiday, then said meeting shall be held at the same time on the
next day thereafter ensuing which is a full business day. Notice of all such
regular meetings of the Board of Directors is hereby dispensed with.

Section 7. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of
Directors for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman
of the Board, the president, any vice president or the secretary, or by any two
directors, or by one or more shareholders holding not less than 25% of any
series of Preferred Stock of the corporation.

Written notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be
delivered personally to each director or communicated to each director by
telephone or by telegraph or mail, charges prepaid, addressed to him or her at
his or her address as it is shown upon the records of the corporation or, if it
is not so shown on such records or is not readily ascertainable, at the place at
which meetings of the directors are regularly held. 1In case such notice is
mailed or telegraphed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail or
delivered to the telegraph company in the place in which the principal executive
office of the corporation is located at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to
the time of the holding of the meeting. In case such notice is delivered,
personally or by telephone, as above provided, it shall be so delivered at least
twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the holding of the meeting. Such
mailing, telegraphing or delivery, personally or by telephone, as above
provided, shall be due, legal and personal notice to each such director.
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Section 8. Action Without a Meeting. Any action by the Board of
Directors may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board shall
individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written
consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the
Board and shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of such
directors at a meeting duly called and held.

Section 9. Action at a Meeting: Quorum and Required Vote. Presence
of a majority of the authorized number of directors at a meeting of the Board of
Directors constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as
hereinafter provided. Members of the Board may participate in a meeting through
use of conference telephone or similar communications equipment, so long as all
members participating in such meeting can hear one another. Participation in a
meeting as permitted in the preceding sentence constitutes presence in person at
such meeting.

Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors at a
meeting duly hold at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of
the Board of Directors, unless a greater number, or the same number after
disqualifying one or more directors from voting, is required by law, by the
Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws. A meeting at which a quorum is
initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the
withdrawal of directors, provided that any action taken is approved by at least
a majority of the required quorum for such meeting.

Section 10. Validation of Defectively Called or Noticed Meetings.
The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called or
noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held
after regular call and notice, i1if a quorum is present and if, either before or
after the meeting, each of the directors not present or who, though present,
has, prior to the meeting or at its commencement, protested the lack of proper
notice, signs a written waiver of notice or a consent to holding such meeting or
an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals
shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the
meeting.

Section 11. Adjournment. A quorum of the directors may adjourn any
directors' meeting to meet again at a stated day and hour; provided, however,
that in the absence of a quorum a majority of the directors present at any
directors' meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn from time to time
until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board.

Section 12. Notice of Adjournment. If the meeting is adjourned for

more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or
place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the directors
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who were not present at the time of adjournment. Otherwise, notice of the time
and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent directors
if the time and place be fixed at the meeting adjourned.

Section 13. Fees and Compensation. Directors and members of
committees may receive such compensation, if any, for their services, and such
reimbursement for expenses, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the
Board of Directors.

Section 14. Indemnification of Directors, Officers, Employees and

Other Agents.

(a) Indemnification of Directors and Officers. Each person who was or
is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in
any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding,
formal or informal, whether brought in the name of the corporation or
otherwise and whether of a civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative nature (hereinafter a "proceeding"), by reason of the
fact that he or she, or a person of whom he or she is the legal
representative, is or was a director or officer of the corporation or
is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership,
joint wventure, trust or other enterprise, including service with
respect to employee benefit plans, whether the basis of such
proceeding is an alleged action or inaction in an official capacity or
in any other capacity while serving as a director or officer, shall,
subject to the terms of any agreement between the corporation and such
person, be indemnified and held harmless by the corporation to the
fullest extent permissible under California law and the corporation's
Articles of Incorporation, against all costs, charges, expenses,
liabilities and losses (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines,
ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in
connection therewith, and such indemnification shall continue as to a
person who has ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to
the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators;
provided, however, that (a) the corporation shall indemnify any such
person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or
part thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or
part thereof) was authorized by the Board of the corporation, (b) the
corporation shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in
connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) other than a proceeding
by or in the name of the corporation to procure a judgment in its
favor only if any settlement of such a proceeding is approved in
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writing by the corporation, (c) no such person shall be indemnified
(1) except to the extent that the aggregate of losses to be
indemnified exceeds the amount of such losses for which the director
or officer is paid pursuant to any directors' and officers' liability
insurance policy maintained by the corporation; (ii) on account of any
suit in which judgment is rendered against such person for an
accounting of profits made from the purchase or sale by such person of
securities of the corporation pursuant to the provisions of Section
16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and amendments thereto or
similar provisions of any federal state or local statutory law; (iii)
if a court of competent Jjurisdiction finally determines that any
indemnification hereunder is unlawful; and (iv) as to circumstances in
which indemnity is expressly prohibited by the Law, and (d) no such
person shall be indemnified with regard to any action brought by or in
the right of the corporation for breach of duty to the corporation and
its shareholders (i) for acts or omissions involving intentional
misconduct or knowing and culpable violation of law; (ii) for acts or
omissions that the director or officer believes to be contrary to the
best interests of the corporation or its shareholders or that involve
the absence of good faith on the part of the director or officer;

(iii) for any transaction from which the director or officer derived
an improper personal benefit; (iv) for acts or omissions that show a
reckless disregard for the director's or officer's duty to the
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corporation or its shareholders in circumstances in which the director
or officer was aware, or should have been aware, in the ordinary
course of performing his or her duties, of a risk of serious injury to
the corporation or its shareholders; (v) for acts or omissions that
constitute an unexcused pattern of inattention that amounts to an
abdication of the director's or officer's duties to the corporation or
its shareholders; and (vi) for costs, charges, expenses, liabilities
and losses arising under Section 310 or 316 of the General Corporation
Law of California (the "Law"). The right to indemnification conferred
in this Section 14 shall be a contract right and shall include the
right to be paid by the corporation expenses incurred in defending any
proceeding in advance of its final disposition; provided, however,
that if the Law permits the payment of such expenses incurred by a
director or officer in his or her capacity as a director or officer
(and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by
such person while a director or officer, including, without
limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) in advance of the
final disposition of a proceeding, such advances shall be made only
upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of
such director or officer, to repay all amounts to the corporation if
it shall be ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to
be indemnified.

(b) Indemnification of Employees and Agents. A person who was or is a
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party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in any
proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was an employee
or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the
corporation as an employee or agent of another enterprise, including
service with respect to employee benefit plans, whether the basis of
such action is an alleged action or inaction in an official capacity
or in any other capacity while serving as an employee or agent, may,
subject to the terms of any agreement between the corporation and such
person, be indemnified and held harmless by the corporation to the
fullest extent permitted by California law and the corporation's
Articles of Incorporation, against all costs, charges, expenses,
liabilities and losses (including attorneys' fees, Jjudgments, fines,
ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in
connection therewith. The immediately preceding sentence is not
intended to be and shall not be considered to confer a contract right
on any employee or agent (other than directors and officers) of the
corporation.

(c) Right of Directors and Officers to Bring Suit. If a claim under
Paragraph (a) of this Section 14 is not paid in full by the
corporation within 30 days after a written claim has been received by
the corporation, the claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit
against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim and,
if successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall also be entitled
to be paid the expense of prosecuting such claim. Neither the failure
of the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent
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legal counsel, or its shareholders) to have made a determination prior
to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the
claimant is permissible in the circumstances because he or she has met
the applicable standard of conduct, if any, nor an actual
determination by the corporation (including its Board of Directors,
independent legal counsel, or its shareholders) that the claimant has
not met the applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the
action or create a presumption for the purpose of an action that the
claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

(d) Successful Defense. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Section 14, to the extent that a director or officer has been
successful on the merits or otherwise (including the dismissal of an
action without prejudice or the settlement of a proceeding or action
without admission of liability) in defense of any proceeding referred
to in paragraph (a) of this Section 14 or in defense of any claim,
issue or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified against
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expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred
in connection therewith.

(e) DNon-Exclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification provided
by this Section 14 shall not be exclusive of any other right which any
person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, bylaw,
agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or
otherwise.

(f) Insurance. The corporation may maintain insurance, at its
expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or
agent of the corporation or another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or
loss, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify
such person against such expense, liability or loss under the Law.

(g) Expenses as a Witness. To the extent that any director or officer
of the corporation is by reason of such position, or a position with
another entity at the request of the corporation, a witness in any
action, suit or proceeding, he or she shall be indemnified against all
costs and expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him or her on
his or her behalf in connection therewith.

(h) Indemnity Agreements. The corporation may enter into agreements
with any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation
providing for indemnification to the fullest extent permissible under
the Law and the corporation's Articles of Incorporation.

(i) Separability. Fach and every paragraph, sentence, term and
provision of this Section 14 is separate and distinct so that if any
paragraph, sentence, term or provision hereof shall be held to be
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of
any other paragraph, sentence, term or provision hereocf. To the
extent required, any paragraph, sentence, term or provision of this
Section 14 may be modified by a court of competent jurisdiction to
preserve 1its validity and to provide the claimant with, subject to the
limitations set forth in this Section 14 and any agreement between the
corporation and claimant, the broadest possible indemnification
permitted under applicable law.
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(j) Effect of Repeal or modification. Any repeal or modification of
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this Section 14 shall not adversely affect any right of
indemnification of a director or officer existing at the time of such
repeal or modification with respect to any action or omission
occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE IV
Officers

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be a
president, a secretary and a chief financial officer. The corporation may also
have, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, a Chairman of the Board, one
Oor more vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more
assistant financial officers, and such other officers as may be appointed in
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this Article. One person may
hold two or more offices, except that the offices of president and secretary
shall not be held by the same person.

Section 2. Election. The officers of the corporation, except such
officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or
Section 5 of this Article, shall be chosen annually by the Board of Directors,
and each shall hold office until he or she shall resign or shall be removed or
otherwise disqualified to serve, or his or her successor shall be elected and
qualified.

Section 3. Subordinate Officers, Etc. The Board of Directors may
appoint, and may empower the president to appoint, such other officers as the
business of the corporation my require, each of whom shall hold office, for such
period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided in these
Bylaws or as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

Section 4. Removal and Resignation. Any officer may be removed,
either with or without cause, by the Board of Directors, at any regular or
special meeting thereof, or, except in case of an officer chosen by the Board of
Directors, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by
the Board of Directors (subject, in each case, to the rights, if any, of an
officer under any contract of employment).

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
Board of Directors or the president, or to the secretary of the corporation,
without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any
contract to which the officer is a party. Any such resignation shall take
effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any time specified therein.
Unless otherwise specified therein, acceptance of such resignation shall not be
necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death,
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resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the
manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular appointments to such office.

Section 6. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board, if
there shall be such an officer, shall, if present, preside at all meetings of
the Board of Directors and exercise
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and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned by
the Board of Directors or prescribed by these Bylaws.

Section 7. President. Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as
may be given by the Board of Directors to the Chairman of the Board, if there
shall be such an officer, the president shall be the chief executive officer of
the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors,
have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs of

the corporation. The president shall preside at all meetings of the
shareholders and, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, or if there be
none, at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The president shall be ex

officio a member of all the standing committees, including the executive
committee, i1if any, and shall have the general powers and duties of management
usually vested in the office of president of a corporation, and shall have such
other powers and duties as may be prescribed by these Bylaws or the Board of
Directors.

Section 8. Vice President. 1In the absence or disability of the
president, the vice presidents in order of their rank as fixed by the Board of
Directors or, if not ranked, the vice president designated by the Board of
Directors, shall perform all the duties of the president, and when so acting
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time
may be prescribed for them respectively by the Board of Directors or these
Bylaws.

Section 9. Secretary. The secretary shall record or cause to be
recorded, and shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office
and such other place as the Board of Directors may order, a book of minutes of
actions taken at all meetings of directors and shareholders, with the time and
place of holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how authorized,
the notice given thereof, the names of those present at directors' meetings, the
number of shares present or represented at shareholders' meetings, and the
proceedings thereof.

The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal
executive office or at the office of the corporation's transfer agent, a share
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register, or a duplicate share register, showing the names of the shareholders
and their addresses, the number and classes of shares held by each, the number
and date of certificates issued for the same, and the number and date of
cancellation of every certificate surrendered for cancellation.

The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings
of shareholders and of the Board of Directors required by these Bylaws or by law
to be given, and shall keep the seal of the corporation in safe custody, and
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed
by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

Section 10. Chief Financial Officer. The chief financial officer of
the corporation shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained,
adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the
corporation, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts,
disbursements, gains, losses, capital, surplus and shares. Any surplus,
including earned surplus, paid-in surplus, and surplus arising from a reduction
of stated capital, shall be classified according to source and shown in a
separate account. The books of account shall at all reasonable times be open to
inspection by any director.
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The chief financial officer shall deposit all monies and other
valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such
depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The chief financial
officer shall disburse the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the
Board of Directors, shall render to the president and directors, whenever they
request it, an account of all his or her transactions as chief financial officer
and of the financial condition of the corporation, and shall have such other
powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or these Bylaws.

ARTICLE V
Miscellaneous

Section 1. Record Date. The Board of Directors may fix a time in the
future as a record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to
notice of and to vote at any meeting of shareholders, to receive any report, to
receive any dividend or distribution, or any allotment of rights, or to exercise
rights in respect to any change, conversion or exchange of shares. The record
date so fixed shall be not more than sixty (60) days nor less than ten (10) days
prior to the date of any meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any
other event for the purposes of which it is fixed. When a record date is so
fixed, only shareholders of record on that date are entitled to notice of and to
vote at any such meeting, to receive any report, to receive a dividend,
distribution or allotment of rights, or to exercise the rights, as the case may
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be, notwithstanding any transfer of any shares on the books of the corporation
after the record date, except as otherwise may be provided in the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws.

Section 2. Inspection of Corporate Records. The accounting books and
records, the record of shareholders, and minutes of proceedings of the
shareholders and of the Board of Directors and committees of the Board of this
corporation and any subsidiary of this corporation shall be open to inspection
upon the written demand on the corporation of any shareholder or the holder of a
voting trust certificate at any reasonable time during regular business hours,
for a purpose reasonably related to such holder's interests as a shareholder or
as the holder of such voting trust certificate. Such inspection by a
shareholder or holder of a voting trust certificate may be made in person or by
agent or attorney, and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and
make extracts.

A shareholder or shareholders holding at least five percent (5%) in
the aggregate of the outstanding voting shares of the corporation or who hold at
least one percent (1%) of such voting shares and have filed a Schedule 14B with
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the election of
directors of the corporation shall have (in person, or by agent or attorney) the
right to inspect and copy the record of shareholders' names and addresses and
shareholdings during usual business hours upon five (5) business days' prior
written demand upon the corporation, and to obtain from the transfer agent for
the corporation, if there be one, upon written demand and upon the tender of its
usual charges, a list of the shareholders' names and addresses who are entitled
to vote for the election of directors, and their shareholdings, as of the most
recent record date for which it has been compiled or as of a date subsequent to
the date of demand specified by the shareholder therein. The list shall be made
available on or before the later of five (5) business days after receipt of the
demand or the date specified therein as of which the list is to be compiled.

15

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to
inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect
the physical properties of the corporation. Such inspection by a director may
be made in person or by agent or attorney, and the right of inspection includes
the right to copy and make extracts.

Section 3. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders
for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in
the name of or payable to this corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such
person or persons and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined
by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Annual Report to Shareholders. The annual report to
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shareholders referred to in Section 1501 of the California General Corporation
Law is expressly waived, but nothing herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting
the Board from issuing annual or other periodic reports to the shareholders.

A shareholder of shareholders holding at least five percent (5%) of
the outstanding shares of any class of stock of the corporation may make a
written request to the corporation for an income statement of the corporation
for the three-month, six-month or nine-month period of the current fiscal year
ended more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the request and a balance
sheet of the corporation as of the end of any such period, and, in addition, if
no annual report for the last fiscal year containing an income statement and
balance sheet for and as of the end of such fiscal year has been sent to
shareholders, such an income statement and balance sheet for the prior fiscal
year. The corporation shall use its best efforts to deliver the statement or
statements requested to the person making such request within thirty days after
the receipt thereof. A copy of any such statements shall be kept on file in the
principal executive office of the corporation for twelve (12) months, and they
shall be exhibited at all reasonable times to any shareholder demanding an
examination of them or a copy thereof shall be mailed to such shareholder.

The corporation shall, upon the written request of any shareholder,
mail to the shareholder a copy of the last annual, semi-annual or quarterly
income statement which it has prepared, together with a balance sheet as of the
and of the same period. The financial statements referred to in this Section
shall be accompanied by the report thereon, if there be any, of any independent
accountants engaged by the corporation in respect thereof or, if there be no
such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that
such financial statements were prepared without audit from the books and records
of the corporation.

Section 5. Certificates for Shares. Every holder of shares in the
corporation shall be entitled to have a certificate signed in the name of the
corporation by the chairman or vice chairman of the Board or the president or
any vice president and by the chief financial officer or an assistant chief
financial officer or the secretary or any assistant secretary, certifying the
number of shares and the class or series of shares owned by the shareholder.

Any of the signatures on the certificate may be facsimile, provided that in such
event at least one signature, including that of either officer or the
corporation's registrar or transfer agent, if any, shall be manually signed. 1In
case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile
signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be an officer,
transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may
nevertheless be issued by the
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corporation with the same effect as if such person were an officer, transfer
agent or registrar at the date of issue. Any such certificate shall also contain
such legend or other statement as may be required by Section 418 of the General
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Corporation Law, the Corporate Securities Law of 1968, the federal securities
laws, these Bylaws, and any agreement between the corporation and the issuee
thereof.

Certificates for shares may be issued prior to full payment under such
restrictions and for such purposes as the Board of Directors or these Bylaws may
provide; provided, however, that any such certificate so issued prior to full
payment shall state on the face thereof the amount remaining unpaid and the
terms of payment thereof.

No new certificate for shares shall be issued in lieu of an old
certificate unless the latter is surrendered and cancelled at the same time;
provided, however, that a new certificate will be issued without surrender and
cancellation of the old certificate if (1) the old certificate is lost,
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken; (2) the request for issuance of a new
certificate is made within a reasonable time after the owner of the old
certificate has notice of its loss, destruction or theft; (3) the request for
issuance of a new certificate is made prior to the receipt of notice by the
corporation that the old certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser;
(4) the owner of the old certificate files a sufficient indemnity bond with or
provides other adequate security to the corporation; and (5) the owner satisfies
any other reasonable requirements imposed by the corporation. In the event of
the issuance of a new certificate, the rights and liabilities of the
corporation, and of the holders of the old and new certificates, shall be
governed by the provisions of Sections 8104 and 8405 of the California Uniform
Commercial Code.

Section 6. Representation of Shares of other Corporations. The
president or any vice president and the secretary or any assistant secretary of
this corporation are authorized to vote, represent and exercise on behalf of
this corporation all rights incident to any and all shares of any other
corporation or corporations standing in the name of this corporation. The
authority granted to said officers to vote or represent on behalf of this
corporation any and all shares held by this corporation in any other corporation
or corporations may be exercised either by such officers in person or by any
other person authorized so to do by proxy or power of attorney duly executed by
said officers.

Section 7. Inspection of Bylaws. The corporation shall keep in its
principal executive office in California, or, if its principal executive office
is not in California, then at its principal business office in California (or
otherwise provide upon written request of any shareholder) the original or a
copy of these Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date, certified by the
secretary of the corporation, which shall be open to inspection by the
shareholders at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 8. Construction and Definitions. Unless the context

otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction and
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definitions contained in the California General Corporations Law shall govern
the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular
includes the plural and the plural number includes the singular, and the term
"person" includes a corporation or other entity as well as a natural person.
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ARTICLE VI
Amendments

Section 1. Power of Shareholders. New bylaws may be adopted or these
Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote, except as otherwise provided by law or by
the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2. Power of Directors. Subject to the right of the
shareholders as provided in Section 1 of this Article VI to adopt, amend or
repeal bylaws, bylaws, other than a bylaw or amendment thereof increasing or
decreasing the range of the authorized number of directors, may, except as
otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation, be adopted, amended
or repealed by the Board of Directors.
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
OF
SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.,
a California corporation

I hereby certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of
SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc., a California corporation, and that the foregoing
Bylaws, comprising 18 pages, constitute the Bylaws of said corporation as duly

adopted by the Board of Directors of SeraCare Life Sciences on , 2001.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this day
of , 2001.

Jerry Burdick
Secretary
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EXHIBIT 10.1
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is intended to be the operative
agreement by and between American Blood Institute, Inc., AVRE, Inc., and Binary
Associates, Inc. AKA SeraCare (referred to collectively herein as the
"Corporation") and Jerry L. Burdick ("Burdick"). This Agreement is conditional
upon confirmation of a Plan of Reorganization for the Corporation and approval
of such Plan of Reorganization by the Federal Bankruptcy Court. The effective
date of this Agreement shall be the Effective Date of the Plan of
Reorganization.

1. EMPLOYMENT AS VICE PRESIDENT OF FINANCE. The Corporation hereby
agrees to retain Burdick and Burdick hereby agrees to be employed as Vice
President and of Finance for the Plasma Operations to be acquired by the
Corporation via the Plan of Reorganization regarding American Blood Institute,
Inc., AVRE, Inc. and Binary Associates, Inc. In such capacities, Burdick shall
perform all of the normal duties and responsibilities of a Vice President of
Finance. 1In the performance of his duties and responsibilities, Burdick shall
at all times be under the direction of the President and the Board of Directors
of the Corporation. Burdick shall perform his duties and responsibilities in
accordance with all reasonable rules, regulations and policies adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Corporation.

2. INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE AGREEMENT. The Corporation warrants and
assures Burdick that the Charter of the Corporation contains a provision which
provides for indemnification of officers by the corporation to the maximum
extent permissible under the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Corporation
is incorporated. Further, the Corporation agrees to either or both of the
following: (A) Enter into an Indemnification Agreement provided that such
Indemnification Agreement shall be modified if necessary to conform with the
laws of the jurisdiction in which the Corporation is incorporated; (B) Obtain
and maintain in full force and effect at Corporation's sole expense, such
director's and officer's liability insurance for errors and omissions of such
type and in such amount as is customary for similarly situated companies, if
available at reasonable cost.

3. EXTENT OF SERVICES. Burdick agrees to devote all of his efforts on
behalf of the business of the Corporation. Without limiting the foregoing,
during the term of this Agreement, Burdick shall make written request to the
Board of Directors and must obtain written approval from such Board if Moran
wishes to devote any of his time to any other business effort, whether or not
such business effort is in direct competition with the Corporation.
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4. COMPENSATION. On the effective date of this contract, Burdick shall
be paid at the rate of $125,000 per year payable bi-weekly. There shall be a
quarterly salary adjustment whereby any pre-tax earnings over $100,000 per
quarter shall be paid to the officers of the Reorganized Debtor (SeraCare) up to
a maximum annual amount of $25,000 to Alfred J. Moran, Jr. And $10,000 each for
Jerry L. Burdick and Brian Olson. The distribution of the quarterly salary
adjustment shall be on a pro rata basis.

-1-

5. PERFORMANCE BONUS. There shall also be a Management Bonus Pool which
will allocate ten percent (10%) of pre-tax earnings which are in excess of
$920,549 in year one following the Effective Date of the Reorganization Plan,
$2,590,160 in year two, $4,384,187 in year three, $6,244,536 in year four, and
$8,166,626 in year five to a bonus pool to paid pro rata to management on the
basis of salaries. Burdick shall be a participant in this Management Bonus Pool
during the term of this agreement.

6. FRINGE BENEFITS. Burdick shall receive four (4) weeks paid wvacation
per year during the course of this Agreement. Burdick will also receive company
paid: sick pay, group health insurance, dental care, vision care, disability
insurance, life insurance and such other benefits in the amounts and as may be
provided in the ordinary course to the Corporation's other senior executives.

7. STOCK AND WARRANT GRANT. Burdick shall be granted 63,165 shares of
common stock of SeraCare (SeraCare is herein defined as AVRE, Inc., Binary
Associates, Inc., American Blood Institute, Inc. and any post emergence
replacement or successor corporation or entity into which the Plasma Operations
of Avre, Inc. and Binary Associates, Inc. are transferred, placed, controlled,
merged or which are acquired by) and stock options to purchase 42,110 shares of
common stock in SeraCare for a calculated price which is the mean average
between $.74 and the weighted average of the closing bid price for the Company's
stock for the thirty trading days prior to the vesting date. The vesting date
is defined as the anniversary date of the Effective date of the Reorganization
Plan for SeraCare. The options will vest at the rate of one-third per year and
are contingent upon the company achieving the projected operating results
reflected in the Confidential Memorandum attached herewith except that if the
indicated funding is not provided in timely fashion for the acquisition of the
indicated centers reflected in the Confidential Memorandum, then a calculation
will be made utilizing the projected results of the base six centers (which
includes corporate overhead) plus a pro rated calculation of the projected
operating results of the acquisition centers based upon the percentage of the
secondary financing actually received by SeraCare. For example, the projections
contemplate the acquisition of twelve centers during year one. Accordingly, at
the rate of $200,000 per center this acquisition program would require
$2,400,000. 1If $1,200,000 or 50% is actually funded, then a calculation will be
made utilizing 100% of the year one operating results projected for the base six
centers ($365,556) plus 50% of the year one projected operating results for the
acquisition centers (50% X $450,198 = $225,099) with the summation of two being
($365,556 + $225,099 = $590,655). Accordingly, $590,655 will be the objective
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criteria for vesting of one third of the options if $1,200,000 of secondary
financing is actually received by SeraCare in year one. If SeraCare is sold,
merged, consolidated with another company or reorganized to the extent that
there is a 50% or more change in ownership, the options will become immediately
vested and exercisable.

8. TERM. This Agreement is conditional upon confirmation of the Plan of
Reorganization for American Blood Institute, Inc., AVRE, Inc. and Binary
Associates, Inc. and approval by the Federal Bankruptcy Court. The term shall
be for the three year period beginning on the "Effective Date" of the Confirmed
Plan of Reorganization and ending thirty six month after the "Effective Date"
unless this Agreement is terminated at an earlier date as provided in Section 9
below.

9. TERMINATION.

A. FOR "CAUSE". The Corporation may terminate this Agreement upon
thirty days notice for cause. "Cause" is defined for the purpose of this
agreement as: death; dishonesty; theft; conviction of a felony; alcohol or

drug abuse; unethical business conduct; and a material breach of this
Agreement by Burdick. If Burdick is terminated for "Cause" as herein
defined,

Burdick shall receive thirty days notice with pay, and no other
compensation other than the receipt of any options which have already
vested.

B. FOR "ACTIONS DEEMED NOT IN THE BEST INTERESTS". The Corporation
may also terminate this Agreement if Burdick fails for any reason, within
ten days after receipt by Burdick of written notice thereof from the Board
of Directors, to correct, disassociate, cease or otherwise alter any
actions, associations, insubordination, failure to comply with
instructions, failure or other action or omission to act which, in the
opinion of the Board of Directors, materially affects or may materially
affect the Corporations' business operations. "Actions Deemed Not in the
Best Interests" shall also include the association by Burdick with
individuals, companies, organizations or activities which the Board of
Directors has a reasonable basis for believing does or could have a
material negative affect on the Corporations operations, it's market price
per share, or the Corporation's ability to raise additional capital. 1If
Burdick is terminated for "Actions Deemed Not in the Best Interests" as
herein defined, Burdick shall receive twelve months severance pay and no
other compensation other than the receipt of any options which have already
vested as of the termination date.

C. OTHER EVENTS. Other events which will result in the termination of
this contract are:
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1. The date on which Burdick agrees to terminate this Agreement.

2. The disability of Burdick. Disability herein is defined as being
unable to perform the duties hereunder due to a physical and/or mental
condition or impairment for one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days
during the term of this Agreement or 120 consecutive days in any 365 day
period during the term.

3. The date on which Burdick wvoluntarily ceases to perform his
duties hereunder, other than by reason of physical or mental condition
prior to the time that a disability occurs. In the event that the
Corporation shall be sold, merged, devolved, consolidated or materially
reorganized (within the term of this Agreement and Burdick's position is
eliminated, the Company will pay to Burdick within Thirty (30) days of such
event the balance of the compensation which would be due to complete the
term of this agreement. In addition, all then unvested stock options shall
become immediately vested and exercisable.

Any unilateral termination of Burdick by the Corporation other than for
"Cause", "Actions Deemed Not in the Best Interests", or the reasons indicated in
9.(C) (1) through 9. (C) (3) above shall be considered a material breach of this
agreement, the pre-agreed remedy for which is the payment in cash within thirty
(30) days of such termination, the full compensation which would be due to
complete the three year term of this agreement, including any and all
compensation, warrants, options or bonus compensation, plus the continuation of
benefits for a period of twelve months. If terminated for "Actions Deemed Not
in the Best Interests", the Corporation must show that it has a reasonable basis
for believing that the actions or associations are or could be materially
detrimental to the Corporation.

10. NO SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES. During the period of this Agreement and
for two (2) full years following termination of this Agreement, Burdick shall
not, for any reason either directly or indirectly, solicit for employment or
employ for any other entity any employee of the Corporation.

11. AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE. During the period of this Agreement and for
two (2) full years following termination of this Agreement (a total of five
years), Burdick shall not, for any reason either directly or indirectly, compete
with SeraCare either directly through owning and operating
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a plasma center, or by being a significant investor, officer or key employee of
any company which competes with the Corporation. On a geographic basis, compete
is defined to mean being in the plasma collection business within a fifty mile

radius of an existing SeraCare collection center.

12. WITHHOLDING. Burdick authorizes the Corporation to withhold and/or
deduct from his compensation (including, without limitation, salary and wages),
deductions to recover any amounts loaned by the Corporation to Burdick or paid

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

on Burdick's behalf which, under the terms of said loan or payment, must be
repaid to the Corporation including, without limitation, loans of money and the
value of any of the Corporations property taken but not returned by Burdick.
Corporation shall also have the expressed right to deduct all sums required for
federal, state, or local income, Social Security or other taxes now applicable
or that may be enacted in the future.

13. NOTICE. Any notice provided to be given pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given three days after deposited in
the mail, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party to receive such
notice at the address specified below:

The Corporation: American Blood Institute, Inc.
DBA - SeraCare
1875 Century Park East, Suite 2130
Los Angeles, CA 90067
Attn: Board of Directors

For Burdick: Jerry L. Burdick
1106 First Street
Hermosa Beach, California 90254

14. GOVERNING LAW. The validity of this Agreement and the interpretation
and performance of all of its terms shall be controlled exclusively by the
substantive law of California, including California law concerning the
interpretation and performance of contracts.

15. ENFORCEABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable shall be ineffective only to the extent of such
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability, without affecting in any way the
remaining provisions hereof or rendering the remaining provisions hereof
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable.

16. WAIVER. The failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict
compliance with any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by
the other party shall not be deemed a waiver of that or any other term,
covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or
power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that
right or power for all or any other times.

17. ARBITRATION. Any controversy between the Corporation and Burdick
involving the construction, application or breach of any of the terms,
provisions, or conditions of this Agreement shall be settled by arbitration in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect
(the AAA Rules). Such arbitration shall take place in Los Angeles, California
and shall be conducted by three arbitrators, one of which shall be selected by
each party, and the third of which shall be selected by the two arbitrators
within the time limits established in the AAA Rules. The decision of the
arbitrators may be enforced in any court having jurisdiction over the party
against which
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enforcement is sought or its assets. The cost of such arbitration including the
associated attorney fees, arbitrator fees, filing fees, AAA fees and other legal
costs shall be borne by the losing party.

18. TRADE SECRETS, CONFIDENTIAL, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.

A. Burdick and Corporation acknowledge and agree that during the
term of this Agreement and in the course of the discharge of his duties
hereunder, Burdick shall have access to and become acquainted with
information owned by the Corporation concerning its operation, which
information derives independent economic value from not being generally
known to the public or competitors, and which includes, without limitation:
(1) manufacturing processes, research, and engineering, (2) marketing data
and techniques, (3) trademarks, tradenames, and servicemarks, (4) customer
and client bases and lists, and (5) financial and personnel information.
Said information constitutes Employer's trade secret, confidential and
proprietary information.

B. Burdick agrees that he shall not at any time (during the period
of this agreement or any future time) disclose any such trade secret,
confidential, or proprietary information, directly or indirectly, to any
other person or use it in any way other than as required in the ordinary
course of his employment under this agreement.

C. Burdick further agrees that all files, records, documents,
equipment, and similar items relating the Corporation's business
(including, without limitation, items containing trade secret, confidential
or proprietary information), whether prepared by Burdick or others,
including all originals and copies, are and shall be returned to the
Corporation upon Burdick's termination.

D. Burdick further agrees that during the period of his employment
by the Corporation and after termination thereof, he will not disrupt,
damage, disparage, impair, or interfere with the Corporation's business or
its reputation, whether by way of interfering with or soliciting its
employees, disrupting its relationships with or soliciting clients or
customers, agents, representatives, or vendors, aiding competitors, or by
way of any other conduct.

19. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. Moran may not assign any of his rights or
responsibilities under this Agreement.

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Amended Agreement supersedes any and all other
agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect
to the employment of Burdick by the Corporation and contains all of the
covenants and agreements between the parties with respect to that employment in
any manner whatsoever. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no
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representation, inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or otherwise, have
been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not
embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement, or promise not
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party.

21. MODIFICATIONS. Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective
only if it is in writing and signed by both parties to this Agreement.

22. LEGAL ACTION. 1In the event of any litigation or arbitration between
or among the parties hereto respecting or arising out of this Agreement, the
successful or prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable
attorney's fees incurred after a judgement has been rendered by a court of
competent Jjurisdiction. Any judgement shall include an attorneys' fees clause
which shall entitle the judgement creditor to recover attorneys' fees incurred
to enforce a judgement hereon, which attorneys'

_5_

fees shall be an element of post-judgement costs; the parties agree that this
attorneys' fee provision shall not merge into any judgement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, effective as of November 14, 1995
do hereby authorize and acknowledge that this Agreement be the effective
agreement between the parties. It is understood that this Agreement will be
filed as an amendment to the Reorganization Plan for the Corporation and will
become effective on the Effective Date of such Plan of Reorganization.

Accepted By:

/s/ Kenneth R. Levine

Kenneth R. Levine
First Equity Capital Securities, Inc.
On behalf of the investment group

/s/ Jerry L. Burdick /s/ Alfred J. Moran, Jr.

Jerry L. Burdick Alfred J. Moran, Jr.
An individual President & Chairman
American Blood Institute, Inc.

-6-
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EXHIBIT 10.1.1
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED November 14, 1995 ("the
Amendment") is made and entered into this 1st day of February 2001 by and
between SeraCare, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (referred herein as the

"Corporation") and Jerry L. Burdick (the "Employee").

WHEREAS, the Corporation previously entered into an employment agreement on
November 14, 1995, (the "Employment Agreement");

AND WHEREAS the term of the Employment Agreement was previously extended by the
Board of Directors through February 6, 2003;

AND WHEREAS, the Corporation hereby wishes to amend the employment again;

AND WHEREAS the Employee wishes to have the employment agreement amended as
specified herein;

Now Therefore, the following extension and amendments are hereby agreed to by
both the Corporation and the Employee:

1. The Term of the agreement has been extended through February 6, 2003.

2. Effective February 1, 2001, the annual base compensation is hereby adjusted
to be $175,000 per year plus an auto allowance of $750.00 per month.

3. Employee shall receive 100,000 options with an exercise price of $3.25.

Such options shall all have 7 year cliff vesting with accelerated vesting
as follows:
50,000 options will wvest ratably over 4 years
50,000 options will have accelerated vesting. They will vest ratably
over

two years beginning with the achievement of his business plan for
2002.

25,000 shares, 25,000 shares 1 year later.

All 100,000 options shall be accelerated in the event of a change of
control.

All other terms, conditions and provisions of the Employment Agreement shall
remain effective throughout the term of this Amendment.

I hereby certify that the above amendment was adopted by unanimous vote of the
Board of Directors on January 12, 2001.

Hereby certified
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/s/ Jerry L. Burdick

Jerry L. Burdick
Corporate Secretary

Exhibit A

Volume of Plasma

For the fiscal year ending February 28, 2002, the forty-two existing Plasma
Collection centers must collect no less than 752,000 liters. This represents a
five percent increase over the prior year, adjusted for a five % increase with
respect the 125,000 liters acquired in the six alpha centers.

Cost Reductions:

Labor Cost Per Liter:

For the fiscal year ending February 28, 2002, the cost of collecting plasma for
the forty-two existing centers must be reduced by $2.00 per liter from the
January, 2001 level.
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EXHIBIT 10.2
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") dated February 5, 1996, is entered
into by and between American Blood Institute, Inc., a Delaware corporation, AKA
SeraCare (the "Company") and Barry Plost (the "Employee").

1. EMPLOYMENT AND EFFECTIVENESS. The Company hereby employs the
Employee, and the Employee accepts employment, as of the date first set forth
above (the "Commencement Date"), under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

2. TERM. The employment of the Employee pursuant to this Agreement shall
begin as of the Commencement Date and shall continue to and through the date
which is the third anniversary of the Commencement Date (the "Employment Term"),
unless terminated earlier as provided herein.

3. POSITION AND DUTIES. The Employee shall be employed as Chairman of
the Board, President, and Chief Executive Officer and shall have the duties,
responsibilities and authority as may from time to time be assigned by the
Company's Board of Directors that are consistent with and normally associated
with such positions. The Employee shall devote sufficient amounts of his
business time, effort and energies exclusively to the business of the Company to
fulfill the duties of his office. Employee shall not be employed by or act in
any capacity on behalf of any company which competes with the Company's plasma
collection business and shall not serve as an active principal or director or
officer or employee of any other company or entity without the prior written
consent of the Board of Directors, except that the Employee may serve as a
director or officer of any trade association, civic, educational or charitable
organization without such consent. The Employee shall also serve without
additional compensation as an officer and director of the Company and any of its
subsidiaries, if so elected or appointed, but if not so elected or appointed the
compensation hereunder shall in no way be affected. The Employee shall devote
his or her best efforts to advancing the interests of the Company.

4. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS.

(a) During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee a
base salary at the annual rate of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000)
(the "Base Salary"), payable in accordance with the normal payroll
practices established by the Company. The Employee shall be entitled to
such increases in the Base Salary as may be determined from time to time by
the Company's Board of Directors or pursuant to its delegation. If the
Base Salary is increased during the Employment Term, the new salary shall
thereafter constitute the "Base Salary" for purposes of this Agreement.

(b) In addition to Base Salary, the Employee shall be entitled to the
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following stock option grants:

(1) Options to purchase 56,147 shares of common stock of the
Company for a calculated price which is the mean average between $.74
and the weighted average of the closing bid price for the Company's
common stock for the thirty trading days prior to the vesting date.
The vesting date shall be an anniversary date of January 24 and,
contingent upon the Company achieving the performance criteria set
forth in section (v) below, the options will vest one-third each year
beginning on January 24, 1997 and shall remain excercisable by
Employee for a period of five (5) years from the vesting date.

-1-

(ii) Options to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock of the
Company for the price of $1.00 per share which shall vest on the one
year anniversary of the date of this Agreement in 1997, contingent
upon the Company achieving the performance criteria set forth in
section (v) below, and shall remain excercisable by Employee for a
period of five (5) years from the vesting date.

(iii) Options to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock of the
Company for the price of $2.00 per share which shall vest on the
second year anniversary of the date of this Agreement in 1998,
contingent upon the Company achieving the performance criteria set
forth in section (v) below, and shall remain excercisable by Employee
for a period of five (5) years from the vesting date.

(iv) Options to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock of the
Company for the price of $3.00 per share which shall vest on the third
year anniversary of the date of this Agreement in 1999, contingent
upon the Company achieving the performance criteria set forth in
section (v) below, and shall remain excercisable by Employee for a
period of five (5) years from the vesting date.

(v) The options granted in sections (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv)
above shall vest only if Employee is an employee of the Company on the
date the options are to vest and then only if the Company has achieved
the projected operating results as reflected in the Five Year Post
Emergence Forecast, a copy of which is attached hereto. However, if
the Company fails to obtain the outside funding for the acquisition
centers in a timely fashion, then the calculation of the performance
criteria will be made utilizing the projected results of the base six
centers for the year (which includes corporate overhead) plus a pro-
rata calculation of the projected operating results of the acquisition
centers for the year based upon the percentage of the outside
secondary financing actually received by the Company compared to the
projected financing. For example, if the projections contemplate the
acquisition of 12 centers during year one utilizing outside financing
of $2,400,000 ($200,000 per center) and only $1,200,000 or 504 is
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actually funded, then the performance target for the option vesting
will equal 100% of the projected operating results from the six
centers ($365,556), plus 50% of the one year projected operating
results of the projected acquisition centers ($50% x $450,198 =
$225,099), or a total of $590,655. If any of the options do not vest
on the vesting date, such option rights shall terminate immediately
and be of no further effect.

(vi) Options to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock in the
Company for the price of $1.00 per share, such options to vest upon
the execution of this Agreement and remain in effect for a period of 5
years from such date.

(vii) If the Company is sold, merged into, or consolidated with
another entity, or the Company is substantially reorganized by a 50%
or more change in ownership (exclusive of the conversion of Debtors
Notes), and either Employee s position, duties, or compensation is
reduced, then all options granted under this Agreement shall become
immediately vested and exercisable.

(c) The Employee shall be eligible to participate in other employee
benefit plans maintained by the Company during the Employment Term, and to
receive all fringe benefits, for which his or her status and level of
employment qualify in accordance with the Company's usual
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policies and arrangements and the terms of such plans, policies and
arrangements. Such benefits and plans may include vacation pay, medical
insurance programs and retirement programs.

(d) The Company will pay to or on behalf of Employee, the costs, up
to a maximum of $10,000 per year, of Employee's Blue Cross/ Blue Shield
medical insurance coverage and a term life insurance policy in the face
amount of $500,000.

5. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of the
following:

(a) The date provided under the provisions of Section 2 hereof.

(b) Upon the determination by the Board of Directors that good cause
exists to justify the termination of the Employee for gross misconduct.
For purposes of this Agreement, "gross misconduct" shall be defined as
theft, dishonesty, alcohol or drug abuse, unethical business conduct, gross
negligence, commission of an illegal act detrimental to the Company or its
reputation, fraud, or a material breach of this Agreement by Employee.
Upon any termination under this subsection (b) Employee shall be paid an
amount equal to thirty days of his base salary, and no other compensation
or benefits other than the receipt of his vested options.
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(c) At the Company's option, upon the occurrence of a physical or
mental condition which prevents the Employee from performing the duties for
which he or she is responsible for a period of 120 consecutive days or 180
days in total during the term of this Agreement,

(d) Upon the determination by the Board of Directors that Employee
has engaged in acts detrimental to the Company, including without
limitation insubordination, failure to comply with instructions, and
actions or associations which materially and adversely affect the Company's
reputation, business, stock price, or ability to raise capital, and
Employee has failed to cease or correct such actions within ten (10) days
of his receipt of written notice from the Board of Directors. In the event
of a termination under this subsection (d) Employee shall be entitled to
severance pay equal to his base salary amount for the lesser of twelve
months or the remaining term of this Agreement and his vested options, and
no other compensation or benefits.

(e) Upon Employee's death, voluntarily ceasing to perform his
duties,other than by reason of a disability under subsection (d), or
agreement to terminate this Agreement. Except as specified above, all
rights to compensation and options which have not vested under this
Agreement shall cease upon the termination of this Agreement.

6. COVENANTS.

(a) The Employee shall not, during the term of the employment or at
any time thereafter, directly or indirectly, publish or disclose to any
person, firm, corporation or other entity, whether or not a competitor of
the Company, or use other than on behalf of the Company any confidential
information concerning the assets, business or affairs of the Company
unless required by a court of law or governing governmental authority
pursuant to a specific right to know. Confidential information includes,
without limitation, any trade secrets, sources of supply, costs, pricing
practices, customer lists, financial data, employee information, strategic
plans, or organizational data.

(b) The Employee shall not during the Employment Term and for a
period of two (2) years thereafter, engage in or be interested in (as
owner, partner, shareholder, employee, director, officer, agent, consultant
or otherwise, except as a less than 1% shareholder of a publicly listed
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company) with or without compensation, any business which is competitive
with the business being conducted by the Company at any time during the
Employee's employment, including any business which owns or operates a
blood collection center within 50 miles of any of the Company's collection
centers. The Employee shall not during this time period, directly or
indirectly, solicit or contact any employee of the Company, with the view
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to induce or encourage such employee to leave the employ of the Company for
the purpose of being hired by the Employee, an employer affiliated with the
Employee or any competitor of the Company.

(c) Employee agrees that all files, records, documents and items
relating to the Company's business, whether prepared by Employee or others,
are the property of the Company and, upon termination of this Agreement or
Employee's employment, Employee shall promptly return to the Company any
and all such documents and any other property of the Company which is in
the custody or control of Employee.

(d) Employee agrees that during the term of this Agreement and
afterwards, Employee shall not, in any way or by any means, disrupt,
damage, disparage, 1impair or interfere with the Company's business or its
reputation.

(e) The Employee acknowledges that the provisions of this Section 5
are reasonable and necessary for the protection of the Company and that the
Company will be irrevocable damaged if such covenants are not specifically
enforced. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that, in addition to any other
relief or remedies available to the Company in the form of actual or
punitive damages, the Company shall be entitled to seek and obtain
injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction for the purposes
of restraining the Employee from any actual or threatened breach of such
covenants.

7. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify, defend and hold the
Employee harmless, to the maximum extent permitted by law, from any and all
claims, litigation or suits arising out of the activities of the Employee
reasonable taken in the performance of the duties hereunder, including all
reasonable expenses and professional fees that may relate thereto. In addition,
the Company agrees to seek appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance for errors and omissions of such type and in such amount as is
customary for similarly situated companies, if available at a reasonable cost.

8. ARBITRATION. Any controversy or dispute between the Company and
Employee involving the construction, application or breach of any of the terms,
provisions or conditions of this Agreement shall be resolved by binding
arbitration in accordance with the agreement of the parties or, if no agreement
is reached, by the rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect
(the "AAA Rules"). Such arbitration shall take place in Los Angeles, California
and shall be conducted by three arbitrators selected from a panel of arbitrators
experienced in such disputes as provided by the AAA, with one arbitrator
selected by each party and the third arbitrator selected by the other two
arbitrators within the time limits established by the AAA Rules. The cost of
such arbitration, including the associated attorneys' fees, arbitrator fees,
filing fees, AAA fees, and other costs shall be borne by the losing party.

9. EMPLOYEE'S REMEDIES. In the event the Company terminates Employee's
employment other than pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of this Agreement,
the Employee's complete and exclusive remedy shall be the payment in cash,
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within 30 days of the termination, of the unpaid balance of the full
compensation which would be due under the full term of this Agreement,
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including base salary and options, and the continuation of Employee's then
current medical and insurance benefits for a period of twelve months from the
date of the termination.

10. GENERAL TERMS.

(a) GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to
agreements made and to be performed in that State.

(b) NOTICE. Any notice or other communication under this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be considered given when delivered
personally, or one day after being sent by commercial overnight carrier, or
three business days after mailing by U. S. registered mail, return receipt
requested, to the parties at the following addresses or at such other
address as a party may specify by notice to the other.

If to the Employee: Barry Plost
10430 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1103
Los Angeles, CA 90024

If to the Company: American Blood Institute, Inc.
1875 Century Park East, Suite 2130
Los Angeles, CA 90067
Attn: Board of Directors

with a copy to: Furman Usher, Inc.
1901 Avenue of the Stars, 7th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

(c) ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENT. This Agreement shall supersede all
existing agreements, whether written or oral, between the Employee and the
Company relating to the terms of the Employee's employment with the Company. It
may not be amended except by a written agreement signed by both parties.

(d) WAIVER. The failure of a party to insist upon strict adherence to any
term of this Agreement on any occasion shall not be considered a waiver thereof
or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to
that term or any other term of this Agreement.

(e) ASSIGNMENT. Subject to the limitation below, this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, representatives, successors and assigns. This Agreement shall
not be assignable by the Employee, and shall be assignable by the Company only
to any corporation or other entity resulting from the reorganization, merger or
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consolidation of the Company with any other corporation or entity or any
corporation or entity to or with which the Company's business or substantially
all of its assets may be sold, exchanged or transferred, and it must be so
assigned by the Company to, and accepted as binding upon it by, such other
entity in connection with any such reorganization, merger, consolidation, sale,
exchange or transfer.

(f) HEADINGS. Section headings are used herein for convenience of
reference only and shall not affect the meaning of any provision of this
Agreement.

(g) WITHHOLDING. Employee authorizes Company to withhold and/or deduct
from his compensation (including, without limitation, salary and wages),
deductions to recover any amounts

loaned by the Company to Employee or paid on Employee's behalf which, under the
terms of said loan or payment, must be repaid to the Company including loans of
money and the value of Company property taken but not returned by Employee.

(h) SEVERABILITY. TIf any provision of this Agreement is found to be
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue
in full force and effect and, to the extent required, shall be modified to
preserve the validity and intent of this Agreement.

(1) ATTORNEYS' FEES; 1In the event of any litigation or arbitration
between or among the parties Hereto arising from or relating to this Agreement,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including
reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with such litigation or
arbitration. Any judgment shall include an provision which shall entitle the
judgment creditor to recover its costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees,
incurred to enforce the judgment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as
of the day and year first above written.

American Blood Institute, Inc.

By: /s/ JERRY BURDICK

Jerry Burdick
Title: Executive Vice President

Employee
/s/ BARRY PLOST

Barry Plost
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EXHIBIT 10.2.1
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED February 5, 1996 ("the
Amendment") is made and entered into this 1st day of February 2001 by and
between SeraCare, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (referred herein as the

"Corporation") and Barry D. Plost (the "Employee").

WHEREAS, the Corporation previously entered into an employment agreement on
February 5, 1996, (the "Employment Agreement");

AND WHEREAS the term of the Employment Agreement was previously extended by the
Board of Directors through February 5, 2002;

AND WHEREAS, the Corporation hereby wishes to amend the employment again;

AND WHEREAS the Employee wishes to have the employment agreement amended as
specified herein;

Now Therefore, the following extension and amendments are hereby agreed to by
both the Corporation and the Employee:

1. The Term of the agreement has been extended through February 5, 2002.

2. Effective February 1, 2001, the base annual compensation is hereby adjusted
to be $300,000 per year plus an auto allowance of $750.00 per month.

3. Employee shall receive 200,000 options with an exercise price of $3.25.

Such options shall all have 7 year cliff vesting with accelerated vesting
as follows:
100,000 options will have accelerated vesting over two years beginning
with satisfactory achievement of the fiscal year 2002 business
plan, half upon achievement of plan, other half 1 year later.

100,000 options will have accelerated vesting on the following
schedule;
10,000 options will vest immediately at the end of each month
that the closing price of the Company's stock is $6.50 or greater
for at least 10 trading days during the month.

A1l 200,000 options shall be accelerated in the event of a change of
control.

All other terms, conditions and provisions of the Employment Agreement shall
remain effective throughout the term of this Amendment.

I hereby certify that the above amendment was adopted by unanimous vote of the
Board of Directors on January 12, 2001.
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Hereby certified

Jerry L. Burdick
Corporate Secretary
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EXHIBIT 10.3
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into effective the
1st day of November, 2000 by and between SeraCare, Inc. (referred herein as the
"Corporation") and Michael F. Crowley II ("Crowley").

1. Employment as President of SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of SeraCare, Inc. The Corporation hereby agrees to retain
Crowley and Crowley hereby agrees to be employed as President of SeraCare Life
Sciences, Inc. In the performance of his duties and responsibilities, Crowley
shall at all times be under the direction of the President of the Corporation.
Crowley shall perform his duties and responsibilities in accordance with
reasonable rules, regulations and policies of the Corporation.

2. Extent of Services. Crowley agrees to devote all of his efforts on
behalf of the business of the Corporation. Without limiting the foregoing,
during the term of this Agreement, Crowley shall not, directly or indirectly,
either as an employee, consultant, stockholder or in any other capacity, engage
or participate in any business that is in competition in any manner with the
Corporation.

3. Indemnification; Insurance Agreement. The Corporation warrants and
assures Crowley that the Charter of the Corporation contains a provision which
provides for indemnification of officers by the Corporation and to the maximum
extent permissible under the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Corporation
is incorporated. Further, the Corporation agrees to either or both of the
following:

A. Enter into an Indemnification Agreement provided that such
Indemnification Agreement shall be modified if necessary to conform with the
laws of the jurisdiction in which the Corporation is incorporated.

B. Obtain and maintain in full force and effect at Corporation's sole
expense, such director's and officer's liability insurance for errors and
omissions of such type and in such amount as is customary for similarly
situated companies, if available at reasonable cost.

4. No Competing Affiliations. During the term of this agreement, Crowley
will not serve as a consultant, employee or other paid assistant or in any like
role or capacity with any other competing or potentially competing company with
like operations, business strategies, or objectives. 1In addition, for a period
of two years after termination of this agreement Crowley may work within the
industry but shall not engage in any employment or activities which are or could
reasonably be expected to have an adverse affect upon the operations of the
Corporation.
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5. Compensation. Beginning with the pay period beginning on November 1,
2000, Crowley shall be compensated at the rate of $145,000 per year. 1In
addition, Crowley shall receive an Option to purchase 40,000 of the
Corporation's common shares at a price of $3.00 per share. Such Option fully
vest on February 28, 2003.

_1_
6. Performance Bonus. Crowley shall also qualify to receive a bonus of
$50,000 for each of fiscal years 2002 and 2003 if SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.
equals or exceeds budgeted net income for such years. The budgets will be

established jointly by Crowley, the President of the Corporation and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Corporation.

7. Fringe Benefits. Crowley shall receive four (4) weeks paid wvacation
per year during the course of this Agreement. Crowley will also receive company
paid: sick pay, group health insurance, dental care, vision care, disability

insurance, life insurance and such other benefits in the amount and as may be
provided in the ordinary course to the Corporation's other executives.

8. Term. This Agreement shall be for the twenty-eight month period
beginning on November 1, 2000 and ending on February 28, 2003.

9. Termination.
9.1 Termination for Cause. The Corporation may terminate this
Agreement immediately and without notice for cause. "Cause" for the purpose of

this agreement shall include, but not be limited to: death; dishonesty; theft;
conviction of a felony; alcohol or drug abuse; unethical business conduct; and a
material breach of this Agreement by Crowley. "Cause" shall also include the
failure of Crowley for any reason, within ten days after receipt by Crowley of
written notice thereof from the President and/or Board of Directors, to cease or
otherwise alter any insubordination, failure to comply with instructions, or
other action or omission to act which, in the sole opinion of the President of
the Corporation, materially affects or could materially affect the Corporations'
business operations. Other events which will result in the termination of this
Agreement are:

A. The date on which Crowley agrees to terminate this Agreement.

B. The disability of Crowley. Disability herein is defined as being
unable to perform the duties hereunder due to a physical and/or mental
condition or impairment for ninety (90) cumulative days during the term of
this Agreement or sixty (60) consecutive days in any three hundred sixty-
five (365) day period.

C. The date on which Crowley voluntarily ceases to perform his
duties hereunder, other than by reason of a physical or mental condition
prior to the time that a disability occurs.
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If this agreement is terminated for "Cause" as herein defined, Crowley shall not
be entitled to any termination or severance payments.

9.2 Termination for Without Cause. If this Agreement is terminated
by the Corporation for any reason other than "Cause" as herein defined, Crowley
shall be entitled to receive the balance of the amount due under this Agreement.
Such payments shall be payable in accordance with the normal payroll cycle over
the remaining term of this Agreement.

10. No Solicitation of Employees. During the period of this Agreement and
for two (2) full years following termination of this Agreement, Crowley shall
not, for any reason either

directly or indirectly, solicit for employment or employ for any other entity
any employee of the Corporation.

11. Withholding. Crowley authorizes the Corporation to withhold and/or
deduct from his compensation (including, without limitation, salary and wages),
deductions to recover any amounts loaned by the Corporation to Crowley or paid
on Crowley's behalf which, under the terms of said loan or payment, must be
repaid to the Corporation including, without limitation, loans of money and the
value of any of the Corporations property taken but not returned by Crowley.
Corporation shall also have the expressed right to deduct all sums required for
federal, sate or local income, Social Security or other taxes now applicable or
that may be enacted in the future.

12. DNotice. Any notice provided to be given pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given three days after deposited in
the mail, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party to receive such
notice at the address specified below:

The Corporation: SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.
1925 Century Park East, Suite 1970
Los Angeles, CA 90067

For Crowley: Michael F. Crowley II
569 Anchorage Avenue
Carlsbad, CA 92009

13. Governing Law. The validity of this Agreement and the interpretation
and performance of all of its terms shall be controlled exclusively by the
substantive law of California, including California law concerning the
interpretation and performance of contracts.

14. Enforceability. Any provision of this Agreement which is invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable shall be ineffective only to the extent of such
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability, without affecting in any way the
remaining provisions hereof or rendering the remaining provisions hereof
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invalid, illegal, or unenforceable.

15. Waiver. The failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict
compliance with any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement
the other party shall not be deemed a waiver of that or any other term,
covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right
power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that
right or power for all or any other times.

16. Trade Secrets, Confidential and Proprietary Information.

A. Crowley and Corporation acknowledge and agree that during the
of this agreement and in the course of the discharge of his duties
hereunder, Crowley shall have access to and become acquainted with
information owned by the Corporation concerning its operation, which

information derives independent economic value from not being generally

by

or

term

known to the public or competitors, and which includes, without limitation:
(1) manufacturing process, research and engineering, (2) marketing data and

techniques, (3) trademarks, tradenames, and servicemarks, (4) customer
client bases

and

and lists, and (5) financial and personnel information. Said information

constitutes Employer's trade secret, confidential and proprietary
information.

B. Crowley agrees that he shall not at any time (during the period of

this agreement or any future time) disclose such trade secret,

confidential, or proprietary information, directly or indirectly, to any
other person or use it in any way other than as required in the ordinary

course of his employment under this agreement.

C. Crowley further agrees that all files, records, documents,
equipment and similar items relating to the Corporations business

(including, without limitation, items containing trade secret, confidential

or proprietary information), whether prepared by Crowley or others,
including all origins and copies, are and shall be returned to the
Corporation upon Crowley's termination.

D. Crowley further agrees that during the period of his employment by
the Corporation and after termination thereof, he will not disrupt, damage,

disparage, impair, or interfere with the Corporation's business or its

reputation, whether by way of interfering with or soliciting its employees,

disrupting its relationships with or soliciting clients or customers,

agents, representatives, or vendors, aiding competitors, or by way of any

other conduct.

17. Non-Assignability. Crowley may not assign any of his rights or
responsibilities under this Agreement.
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18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any and all other
agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect
to the employment of Crowley by the Corporation and contains all of the
covenants and agreements between the parties with respect to that employment in
any manner whatsoever. FEach party to this Agreement acknowledges that no
representation, inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or otherwise, have
been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not
embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement, or promise not
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party.

19. Modifications. Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective
only if it is in writing and signed by both parties to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto do hereby authorize and acknowledge
that this Agreement be the effective agreement between the parties.

SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.: Michael F. Crowley II:

By: /s/ Barry D. Plost By: /s/ Michael F. Crowley II
Barry D. Plost Michael F. Crowley II
President and CEO An individual

_4_
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EXHIBIT 10.4
REDACTED VERSION
ALBUMIN SUPPLY AGREEMENT

*** Confidential treatment has been requested as to certain portions of
this agreement. Such omitted confidential information has been designated
by an asterisk and has been filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and the Commission's rules and regulations
promulgated under the Freedom of Information Act, pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment. ***

In Barcelona on this 22 day of June 1999.
BY AND BETWEEN

SERACARE INC., a corporation of USA nationality, with address at 1926 Century
Park East, Suite 1970, Los Angeles, California, USA, represented by Mr. Barry D.
Plost, by virtue of his position as Chairman/CEO (hereinafter referred to as
SERACARE), party to the first part.

INSTITUTO GRIFOLS, S.A., a corporation of Spanish nationality, with address at
Poligono Industrial Levante, Calle Can Guasch, s/n. 08150 Parets del Valles,
Barcelona, Spain, represented by Mr. Javier Jorba Ribes, by virtue of his
position as General Manager, (Hereinafter referred to as GRIFOLS), party of the
second part.

WHEREAS

I. SERACARE is a corporation, which main activity is as a collector of plasma,
distributor of therapeutic and diagnostic plasma derived products, and as a
manufacturer of diagnostic products.

IT. GRIFOLS is a corporation, which main activity is the manufacturing and
commercialization of Hemoderivatives, including Human Albumin, which are
manufactured in it premises located in Parets del Valles.

ITII. GRIFOLS declares that its Human Albumin complies with the technical
specifications that are detailed in Annex 1 attached hereto, and has all
the necessary and required permits.

IV. That both parties know that GRIFOLS Human Albumin is manufactured for
its direct use and only in accordance with the product indications
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described in Annex 2 attached hereto.

V. GRIFOLS is willing to supply and SERACARE to acquire, Human Albumin
(hereinafter referred to as Albumin), due to which, both parties
recognizing in each other enough legal capacity, agree to enter into the
present Albumin Supply Agreement in accordance with the following.

CLAUSES

FIRST - Constitutes the object of the present Agreement, the supply to SERACARE
of Human Albumin manufactured by GRIFOLS, to be sold by SERACARE to third
parties, which may only use said Human Albumin as raw material in its production
of certain products, and never for direct use, in accordance with the provisions
of this Agreement.

SECOND - Due to the special technical specifications and quality controls that
the Albumin has to comply with, the parties agree that all the Albumin supplied
by GRIFOLS to SERACARE will have a certified batch release from GRIFOLS.

THIRD - The Albumin supplied by GRIFOLS to SERACARE will be used by any third
party only as raw material, for the purpose of manufacturing products listed in
Annex 3. No other use different from this, including its human use, is covered
by the present Agreement.

The Albumin supplied by GRIFOLS to SERACARE will not be mixed in the
manufacturing process of the products listed in Annex 3 carried out by any third
party with any other product of human origin.

GRIFOLS shall have the right, with prior notification of 24 hours, to require
SERACARE to inspect any third parties' manufacturing facilities and records in
order to verify the correct use of the Albumin supplied/sold by SERACARE to this
third party in accordance with the provisions of the present Agreement.

FOURTH - The quality and technical specifications of the Albumin supplied by

GRIFOLS to SERACARE, as detailed in Annex 1.

The quality and technical specifications, may be changed and/or modified, at
GRIFOLS' requirement, in order to comply with any new legislation in force
and/or new controls or test methods. Any change carried out in accordance will
be duly notified to SERACARE, which shall notify it to all third parties to whom
the Albumin has been supplied/sold.
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Every shipment of Albumin will be shipped together with all the mandatory and/or
legal documents, as well as any other documents that may be required.

FIFTH - SERACARE will acquire from GRIFOLS the annual quantities established in
Annex 4. Both parties, on a yearly basis, will fix these minimum annual
quantities, as well as the Product price, which will also be included in said
Annex.

In the event that / new test and/or control is required, as stated in Clause
Fifth hereinabove, GRIFOLS and SERACARE shall mutually agree to renegotiate the
prices set forth in this Agreement.

SIXTH - Payment of the Albumin delivered by GRIFOLS to SERACARE would be
payable 30 days after reception by SERACARE in its premises in Oceanside, CA,
USA.

SEVENTH - The Albumin will be shipped and packed in accordance with the

specifications set forth in Annex 5 to the present Agreement.

EIGHTH - For the event that the Albumin supplied by GRIFOLS to SERACARE is
object of a product recall carried out by GRIFOLS, GRIFOLS will be responsible
only for its reposition with new Albumin.

Due to the use that third parties shall give to the Albumin, which will be as
raw material for manufacturing products listed in Annex 3 which is different and
not specified in the Product indications given by GRIFOLS, SERACARE and/or any
third party will be solely responsible for its use in accordance with the
present Agreement, and will hold GRIFOLS harmless of any

circumstances derived from the use that SERACARE and/or any third party will
give to the Albumin.

NINTH - SERACARE declares that it has a product liability insurance covering
the products, for an amount of $US 5,000,000 and takes the commitment to have
such insurance coverage while the present Agreement is in force and the products
manufactured using the Albumin have not expired, and will also require that any
third party using the Albumin has a product liability insurance in the same
terms and conditions.

TENTH - All information disclosed by GRIFOLS to SERACARE concerning any aspect

of Albumin, including discussions with Regulatory Authorities, shall be
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considered as Confidential Information under this Agreement.

The party receiving the Confidential Information:

1. Will not disclose the Confidential Information to any third party, except
as required by the Regulatory Authorities strictly for the purposes of this
Agreement.

2. Will limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to its employees and

agents who, under obligation of confidentiality, have a need to know of it
for the purposes of this Agreement.

3. Will make no use of the received Confidential Information other than to
fulfill the purposes of this Agreement.

5
4. On termination of this Agreement, will return all such Confidential
Information to the disclosing party, without retaining any copy or extract

thereof.
The following will be exempt from the obligation of this Article:

a) Confidential Information which is now, or which becomes, part of the public
domain without involvement of the receiving party.

b) Confidential Information which the receiving party can demonstrate by
competent proof was known to it before being received from the disclosing
party.

c) Confidential Information which becomes available to the receiving party
from a third party under no obligation of confidentiality to the disclosing
party.

The obligations of this article shall continue after termination of this
Agreement.

ELEVENTH - SERACARE shall, prior to any sale of Albumin to any third party,

inform GRIFOLS of the identity of said third party, as well as sign an agreement
with this third party that shall cover the following:

- Use that this third party may do of the Albumin, which is as detailed in
the manufacturing of products listed in Annex 3.

- Manufacturing information by which this third party has to inform SERACARE
and GRIFOLS of the lot numbers of the products manufactured using GRIFOLS

Albumin.

- Product liability insurance as foreseen in Clause Ninth of the present
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Agreement.

- Signature of a Confidential Disclosure Agreement between said third party
and GRIFOLS, which will be that attached as enclosure 6 hereto.

- Responsibility Clause identical to that foreseen in Clause Eighth of the
present Agreement.

- Force Majeure Clause identical to that foreseen in Clause Thirteenth of the
present Agreement.

- Rescission/termination clause, which covers any breach of the clauses of
the Agreement by the third party, especially if the Albumin is not used as
raw material in the manufacturing of products listed in Annex 3, and a
different use is given to it.

- Clause including that SERACARE shall have the right, with a prior
notification of 24 hours, to inspect the third parties' manufacturing
facilities and records, in order to verify the correct use of the Albumin
supplied by GRIFOLS in accordance with the provisions of the present
Agreement.

TWELFTH - The duration of the present Agreement will be until 31/st/ December
1999, and will start on the date of its signature. The Agreement will be
automatically renewed for one-year periods if neither party denounces it three
months before its expiry.

THIRTEENTH - ©Neither party shall be liable for non-performance of this
Agreement due to Force Majeure. Force Majeure will have the meaning stated
below under (a):

a) Strikes, lockouts, other industrial disturbances, rebellions, mutinies,
epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms, floods,
sinking, drought, civil disturbances, explosions, act or decisions of duly
constituted municipal, state or National Governmental Authorities or of
Courts of Law, impossibility to obtain supplies, fuel or other required
materials, or any other causes similar or completely different, all beyond
the control of the Party pleading Force Majeure preventing the Party from
performing its rights and obligations and not to be overcome by due
diligence of such Party.

b) The Parties agree that if either of them find themselves wholly or partly
unable to fulfill their respective obligations in this Agreement by reason
of Force Majeure, the Party pleading Force Majeure will as soon as possible
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notify the other Party of its inability to perform giving detailed
explanation of the occurrence which excuses performance. If said notice is
given, the performance of the notifying party shall be abated for so long
as performance may be prevented by Force Majeure. A Party unable to
perform due to Force Majeure shall resume fulfilling its obligations,
including making the due payments, after the Force Majeure has ceased. All
terms will be extended by the time period the Force Majeure has lasted.

FOURTEENTH - The present Agreement will be terminated and will become null due

to any of the following reasons:

a) Mutual agreement.

b) Those fixed by law.

8

c) With thirty (30) days notice if the other party shall default in the
performance or observation of any material provisions of this Agreement and
shall fail to cure such default within sixty (60) days after notice from
such party, and the non-defaulting party shall reserve a right to seek a
remedy available under the applicable laws.

d) If any party falls into suspension of payments or becomes bankrupt.

e) Not meeting payments due.

f) Any substantial change in the ownership in any of the parties which may
give rise to a change in the political control of the Company, or the
participation through the acquisition of shares by a direct competitor of
any of the parties.

FIFTEENTH -

a) Any notice required or provided for by the terms of this Agreement shall be
made in writing and shall be sent by registered mail postage prepaid or by
telex or by facsimile properly addressed in accordance with the addresses
first above given or to such other addresses as the parties may at a later
date advise. The effective date of this notice shall be six (6) days after
the date of sending such notice.

b) This Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties

concerning the subject matter hereof. None of the terms of this Agreement
shall be amended or modified except in writing signed by the parties
hereto. The headings used in this Agreement are only meant for easy
reading of the Agreement.
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c) Provisions of this Agreement are separate and divisible and the invalidity
or unenforceability of any part shall not affect the wvalidity or
enforceability of any remaining part or parts, all of which shall remain in
full force and effect. However, the parties agree to substitute any
invalid or unenforceable provision by valid and enforceable arrangement
which achieves to the greatest extent possible the financial balance and
mutual understanding already established between the parties.

SIXTEENTH - Any dispute, controversy or difference that may arise from the
interpretation or in connection with the present Agreement or as the compliance
of any other obligations contained herein, shall be submitted to arbitration
held in Barcelona (Spain), in the "Tribunal Arbitral de Barcelona" according to
its rules. The award rendered in any such arbitration shall be final and
binding upon the parties hereto.

SEVENTEENTH - The parties agree that the present document is a commercial

agreement and is ruled by the Clauses contained herein, and shall be governed by
the laws of Spain, by Spanish commercial usage or, in its case, by the Spanish
Civil Code.

In witness whereof, the present Agreement is signed in duplicate in the place
and date first written above.

INSTITUTO GRIFOLS, S.A. SERACARE INC.
/s/ Javier Jorba Ribes /s/ Barry D. Plost

10

LIST OF OMITTED ANNEXES

The following Annexes to the Albumin Supply Agreement have been omitted from
this Exhibit and shall be furnished to the Commission upon request:

Annex Document

2 USA Package Insert

3 Human Albumin as Raw Material

5 Shipment Information

6 Confidential Disclosure Agreement

ANNEX 1

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

* Kk %

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

ANNEX 4

HUMAN ALBUMIN GRIFOLS
QUANTITIES AND PRICE

- The quantities established for the year 1999 will be in the range of *** -
*** yials per month.

- Product price:

- Human Albumin Grifols at *** per gram FOB Barcelona.

- *** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Exhibit 10.4.1
AMENDMENT NR. 1
dated June 10, 2001
to
Albumin Supply Agreement
dated June 22, 1999

In New York City, this 10th day of June, 2001.
BY AND BETWEEN

Seracare, Inc., a corporation of USA nationality, with address at 1925
Century Park East, Suite 1970, Los Angeles, California, USA, represented by Mr.
Barry D. Plost, by virtue of his position as Chairman/CEO (hereinafter referred
to as SeraCare), part of the first part.

Instituto Grifols, S.A., a corporation of Spanish nationality, with
address at Poligono Industrial Levante, Calle Can Guasch, s/n, 08150 Parets del
Valles, Barcelona, Spain, represented by Mr. Victor Grifols, by wvirtue of his
position as Chief Executive Officer (hereinafter referred to as Grifols), party
of the second part.

WHEREAS

The parties have signed an Albumin Supply Agreement dated 22 June 1999
(hereinafter referred to as the Agreement) and wish to amend the Agreement in
accordance with the following:

CLAUSES

FIRST.-Subject to Clause SECOND below, this Amendment Nr. 1 shall

extent the term of the Agreement until 31 March 2006.

For the remainder of the term of the Agreement and this Amendment Nr.
1, both parties will meet ninety (90) days before the end of each calendar year
to negotiate the price and annual quantities for the following year.

SECOND.-Reference is made to that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger
dated June 10, 2001, by and among Grifols, SI Merger Corp., a Delaware
corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Grifols, and SeraCare (hereinafter
referred to as the Merger Agreement; capitalized terms used and not defined
herein shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Merger Agreement).

In the event that (i) the Closing does not occur as a direct or indirect result
of the existence of a Superior Proposal and (ii) either of the parties hereto
undergo a change in control, then the party that does not undergo such change in
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control may immediately terminate the Agreement and this Amendment Nr. 1.

-1-

THIRD.-On the Closing Date, the rights and obligations of SeraCare

under the Agreement and this Amendment Nr. 1 shall hereby automatically and
without further action by the parties hereto be assigned from SeraCare to
SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc.

All terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect except for those amended herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the present Amendment Nr. 1 is signed in duplicate
in the place and date first written above.

INSTITUTO GRIFOLS, S.A. SERACARE, INC.

/s/ Victor Grifols /s/ Barry D. Plost
By: Victor Grifols By: Barry D. Plost
Its: Chief Executive Officer Its: Chairman and CEO

SERACARE LIFE SCIENCES, INC.

/s/ Jerry Burdick

By: Jerry Burdick
Its: Executive Vice President

-2
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EXHIBIT 10.5
REDACTED VERSION

EXECUTION COPY

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of January 1,
2001, between Quest Diagnostics Incorporated, a Delaware corporation,
("Quest Diagnostics") and SeraCare, Inc., a Delaware corporation
("Sera Care").

*** Confidential treatment has been requested as to certain portions of
this agreement. Such omitted confidential information has been designated
by an asterisk and has been filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and the Commission's rules and regulations
promulgated under the Freedom of Information Act, pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment. ***

Quest Diagnostics is the owner and operator of clinical laboratories that
perform various tests and examinations of material derived from the human body
for the purpose of providing information for the diagnosis, prevention or

treatment of disease, or the assessment of medical conditions. SeraCare is a
collector, manufacturer and marketer of plasma based diagnostic products and
tests. Quest Diagnostics and SeraCare wish to collaborate, on the terms and

subject to the conditions set forth herein, to conduct certain business
activities described more fully herein (the "Collaboration").

On the date hereof, and as a material condition to Quest Diagnostics'
execution and delivery of the Agreement, SeraCare shall issue and deliver to
Quest Diagnostics a warrant to purchase certain shares of SeraCare common stock,
par value $0.001 per share ("Common Stock"), substantially in the form of
Exhibit A hereto (the "Warrant") and SeraCare shall enter into a Registration
Rights Agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto (the
"Registration Rights Agreement").

Certain capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the
meanings set forth in Section 8.1.

In consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and
agreements set forth herein, the parties, agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
SCOPE OF THE COLLABORATION

Section 1.1 Disease State Positive Sera Business.
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(a) Definition of the Business. "Disease State Positive Sera
Business" means selling and marketing sera that contains desired disease state
antibodies for test kit

manufacturers, control and proficiency manufacturers and other manufacturers in
the medical equipment, including the in vitro diagnostics ("IVD"), industry.

(b) Quest Diagnostics Obligations. From time to time, upon request
from SeraCare, Quest Diagnostics shall assist in fulfilling SeraCare customer
requirements for disease state positive sera. Quest Diagnostics shall search
its database for potential appropriate donors and where appropriate in the good
faith judgment of Quest Diagnostics (i) contact such patient's physician to
determine whether the patient is qualified to donate and whether the physician
will apprise patient of the opportunity to donate, (ii) if the physician is
willing to apprise the patient of the opportunity to donate, request the
physician to provide patient with Quest Diagnostics contact information
regarding donation and (iii) 1if the patient contacts Quest Diagnostics, further
qualify patient and introduce the patient to SeraCare.

(c) SeraCare Obligations. SeraCare shall be responsible for all
customer fulfillment obligations, including: compensating patients for
collection, arranging, and reimbursing patients for, travel to SeraCare facility
and any accommodations in connection with such travel; obtaining executed
patient consents substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto; screening and
processing plasma in accordance with the requirements of Applicable Law,
including screening for blood borne pathogens and any other screening that may
be required under Applicable Law or by Meridian Diagnostics, Inc. ("Meridian")
or any other end user; forwarding processed plasma to customers; all billing and
collection activities; and implementing marketing and sales efforts in the
Disease State Positive Sera Business.

Section 1.2 Disease State Negative Sera Business.

(a) Definition of the Business. "Disease State Negative Sera
Business" means selling and marketing of sera that does not contain any disease
state antibodies for test kit manufacturers, control and proficiency
manufacturers and other manufacturers in the medical equipment, including the
IVD, industry.

(b) Quest Diagnostics Obligations. Quest Diagnostics shall have no

obligations relating to the Disease State Negative Sera Business except for any
general obligations specifically set forth elsewhere in this Agreement regarding
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cooperation.

(c) SeraCare Obligations. SeraCare shall be responsible for all
customer fulfillment obligations, all billing and collection activities, and
implementing marketing and sales efforts in the Disease State Negative Sera
Business.

Section 1.3 Specimen Remnant Business.

(a) Definition of the Business. "Specimen Remnant Business" means the
selling and marketing of blood remnants to test kit manufacturers and other
medical device manufacturers, researchers and universities; other than (i) sales
of remnants to genomic companies in which Quest Diagnostics has or takes an
equity investment or with which Quest Diagnostics has or develops a contractual
collaboration, in each case, in the ordinary course of Quest Diagnostics'
business and (ii) ad hoc sales of remnants made to researchers for scientific
collaboration.

(b) Quest Diagnostics Obligations. From time to time, upon request
from SeraCare, Quest Diagnostics shall assist in fulfilling SeraCare customer
requirements for negative control and disease state positive blood remnants and
other blood remnants. Quest Diagnostics shall de-identify any specimens except
for age (not including date of birth), gender, any requested diagnosis codes and
test results and ship the specimens and summary of above data directly to
customer or to SeraCare for transshipment, as the parties may agree. For the
avoidance of doubt, Quest Diagnostics shall not perform, and shall not be
obligated to perform, any additional testing on the specimens prior to shipment.

(c) SeraCare Obligations.

(1) SeraCare shall be responsible for all other customer
fulfillment obligations, including all billing and collection activities,
and for implementing marketing and sales efforts for the Specimen Remnant
Business.

(ii) Further, prior to and as a condition of shipment of any
specimens by Quest Diagnostics or SeraCare as the case may be, SeraCare
shall obtain certifications from each customer in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit D.

(iii) In the case of any transshipment, SeraCare shall have full
responsibility for the appropriate handling and disposal of specimens upon
specimen receipt, in accordance with Applicable Law.
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Section 1.4 Areas of Exclusivity.

(a) For the term of the Agreement, SeraCare shall conduct all of its
Disease State Negative Sera Business, Disease State Positive Sera Business and
Specimen Remnant Business with Quest Diagnostics in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement. If Quest Diagnostics is unable to identify the needed disease
state positive sera patients or provide the needed specimen remnants, Quest
Diagnostics and SeraCare shall cooperate to obtain the needed patients or
remnants, as the case may be, from a third party, and revenues and costs
generated by such business shall be treated in the same way as other revenues
and costs of the Collaboration under this Agreement.

(b) So long as SeraCare has Satisfactory Capabilities to perform
under the Agreement, Quest Diagnostics shall conduct all of its Disease State
Positive Sera Business and Specimen Remnant Business with SeraCare in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. "Satisfactory Capabilities" means (i) SeraCare
shall have a sales and marketing team which, in the judgment of the Project
Committee (as defined in Section 2.1 below), has the ability to effectively
exploit sales and marketing opportunities throughout the United States and,
should the Project Committee determine that international operations are
appropriate, internationally and (ii) SeraCare shall have and maintain
sufficient FDA approved draw sites and collection stations so that SeraCare can,
in the judgment of the Project Committee, cost-effectively draw the needed sera
to satisfy the demand of the Collaboration's client base so that (a) no
significant slow-down in sales will occur, (b) SeraCare will not have to
transport donors to its west coast facilities from east coast states to draw the
needed sera and (c) the Collaboration will not have to utilize the services of a
third party to draw the sera of such donors, other than in California

-3-

consistent with past practice and otherwise on an occasional basis. For the
avoidance of doubt, assuming compliance with the covenant set forth in Section
5.2 of this Agreement, the parties agree that as of the date of this Agreement,
SeraCare has Satisfactory Capabilities to meet the anticipated demand for the
Collaboration for the first year of the term of this Agreement. For the
avoidance of doubt, so long as SeraCare has Satisfactory Capabilities to perform
under the Agreement, Quest Diagnostics shall not (i) perform the donor
identification services described in this Agreement except in connection with
the Collaboration or (ii) provide specimen remnants except in connection with
the Collaboration other than sales of remnants excepted from the definition of
the Specimen Remnant Business set forth in Section 1.3 (a) of this Agreement.

Section 1.5 International Operations. Other than delivery in the
United States FOB Oceanside terms for shipment by a third party to foreign
buyers, the business and operations of the Collaboration shall be exclusively
domestic and the Collaboration shall not conduct any international business or
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operations unless the Project Committee has approved written guidelines, when
and if in effect to be set forth as Schedule 1.5 to this Agreement, regarding
compliance with Applicable Law relating to exports including, any European
Community regulatory and privacy laws or regulations, any applicable provisions
of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, any applicable Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, Department of Transportation, and Federal Aviation
Administration regulations, any International Air Transport Association (IATA)
requirements, the export provisions of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act,
and any other Applicable Law.

Section 1.6 Sera Validation Testing. If requested by SeraCare, Quest
Diagnostics shall perform validation testing on the disease state negative and
disease state positive sera at a cost equal to best hospital buying group
pricing, which cost shall be paid to Quest Diagnostics by SeraCare as though
Quest Diagnostics were a third party vendor to the Collaboration.

Section 1.7 Laboratory Support. Quest Diagnostics and SeraCare shall
explore possibilities for Quest Diagnostics to provide technological training
and support, management expertise and purchasing services to help SeraCare
expand its lab operations to offer services to blood banks and plasma
collectors. Such support and management shall be provided only to the extent
permitted by Quest Diagnostics' existing purchasing and licensing agreements.

If the parties decide to engage in such activities, they shall agree at the time
on a mutually beneficial revenue and cost sharing arrangement. For the
avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Section shall obligate the parties to reach
an agreement with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Section 1.8 Supply. The parties shall explore mutually beneficial
arrangements regarding Quest Diagnostics supply purchases. For the avoidance of
doubt, nothing in this Section shall obligate the parties to reach an agreement
with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Section 1.9 Joint Marketing Program. From time to time, Quest
Diagnostics shall introduce SeraCare to current Quest Diagnostics contacts that
could be potential SeraCare customers. Quest Diagnostics shall use its
reasonable business Jjudgment in determining whether such introductions are
appropriate.

ARTICLE TII
OPERATION OF THE COLLABORATION

Section 2.1 Protect Committee. The parties shall form a Project
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Committee (comprised of an equal number of representatives of each party), which
shall oversee the strategic direction of the Collaboration. Decisions regarding
any manner of cooperation not specifically governed by this Agreement, or any
dispute arising among the parties with respect to the Collaboration, shall be
discussed by the Project Committee in good faith. From time to time, either
party may substitute any of its representatives on the Project Committee.

Except as specifically set forth in this Section 2.1, the Project Committee
shall establish its own procedural rules for operation. The Project Committee
shall take action by unanimous consent of the parties, with each of SeraCare and
Quest Diagnostics having a single vote, irrespective of the number of
representatives actually in attendance at a meeting, or by a written resolution
signed by the designated representative of each of party. If the Project
Committee cannot decide how to proceed, the matter shall be referred for
decision to Barry Plost and Bernard L. Kasten (who together shall be the
"Executive Committee"). If either Mr. Plost or Dr. Kasten is not employed by
SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be, an alternative Executive
Committee member will be named by the Chief Operating Officer of such party.

Section 2.2 Revenue Sharing. The parties shall share on a *** basis
Net Revenue generated from (i) the Disease State Positive Sera Business,
including, without limitation, any Net Revenue generated from sales of such sera
to Meridian, (ii) the Disease State Negative Sera Business, (iii) the Specimen
Remnant Business.

Section 2.3 Monthly Statement. On the 20th calendar day of each
month, SeraCare and Quest Diagnostics shall each submit a report to the other
party detailing its Costs for the immediately preceding calendar month.

SeraCare shall then prepare a statement detailing the calculation of Net Revenue
(including Chargeable Costs and each other category) for such period ("Monthly

Statement"). Any questions relating to the calculation of Net Revenues,
including whether any cost is a Chargeable Cost shall be presented to the
Project Committee for review and decision. If the disputed cost, together with

all other Costs relating to that Monthly Statement, are within the monthly cost
cap and the annual cost cap described in the definition of Chargeable Costs in
Section 8.1 hereof, then such cost shall be deemed, in the first instance, a
Chargeable Cost for such month. If the disputed cost, together with all other
Chargeable Costs relating that Monthly Statement, is over and above either the
monthly or the annual cost cap, then such cost shall not be deemed, in the first
instance, a Chargeable Cost for that month. Adjustments to Net Revenue, if any,
following the resolution of disputes relating to the inclusion or exclusions of
any cost from Chargeable Costs shall be reflected in a Monthly Statement
following the resolution of such dispute.

Section 2.4 Cash Distribution. All cash collected by SeraCare in
respect of Collaboration operations shall be deposited in a segregated account
and shall not be commingled with other SeraCare funds (the "Cash Account"). The
Cash Account funds shall be invested in Permitted Investments until distribution
hereunder. On the last calendar day of each month, SeraCare shall deliver to
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Quest Diagnostics, and to an account of its own, by wire transfer of

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

immediately available funds from the Cash Account, each party's *** share of Net
Revenue, as shown on the Monthly Statement for the preceding calendar month
(i.e., on January 31, SeraCare shall deliver the payment indicated in the
Monthly Statement for December) plus the reimbursement of each party's
Chargeable Costs and Partnership Tax Costs included in the calculation of Net
Revenue for such month. If in any month there is insufficient cash in the Cash
Account to pay such amounts in full, such amounts shall paid to the extent of
available cash, pro rata based on total amounts due to each party, and any
remaining amounts ("Rollover Amounts") shall be rolled over and paid in the
following month together with the Net Revenue and Chargeable Costs and
Partnership Tax Costs for such following month, again, to the extent of
available cash. In any given month, available cash shall be applied first, to
any Rollover Amounts and next, to current month Net Revenue and Chargeable Costs
and Partnership Tax Costs, again, pro rata based on total amounts due to each
party.

Section 2.5 Record-keeping and Audit.

(a) In accordance with the terms set forth herein and Applicable Law,
each party shall maintain reasonably detailed records of its activities
hereunder, including records of any plasma and other specimens collected by
SeraCare from patients identified by Quest Diagnostics under Article I hereto
and auditable back-up of Chargeable Costs, which records each party shall make
available to the other party as necessary to verify its performance under the
Agreement but no more often than semi-annually. Any audits conducted by a party
shall be conducted by such party (i) at such party's sole cost and expense (ii)
in a manner that shall not be disruptive to the other party's business and (iii)
no later than the second anniversary of the end of the period to which such
records relate.

(b) SeraCare shall also prepare and deliver a weekly donor activity
report in the form attached as Exhibit F hereto or as otherwise mutually agreed
by the parties, and a monthly inventory report, a monthly consolidated profit
and loss statement, a monthly accounts receivable aging report and such other
information reports to be mutually agreed.

(c) Quest Diagnostics shall keep complete and accurate records of
remnants supplied in accordance with FDA requirements relating to research-
related specimens (but shall not retain any patient identifying information,
except to the extent necessary to comply with FDA audit procedures), which
records shall be available for review by third parties (including SeraCare) only
as permitted by Applicable Law. For the avoidance of doubt, Quest Diagnostics
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is not obligated to meet good manufacturing recordkeeping requirements for FDA-
regulated products.

ARTICLE ITT
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 3.1 SeraCare warrants and represents to Quest Diagnostics as
follows:

(a) Organization and Standing of SeraCare. SeraCare is a corporation

duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
State of Delaware.

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

SeraCare has all requisite corporate power and authority necessary to enable it
to own and operate its properties and assets and to conduct its business as
presently conducted and proposed to be conducted under the Collaboration.
SeraCare is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and is in
good standing in any jurisdiction in which the failure to so qualify could
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Authority Valid and Binding Agreements. SeraCare has all
requisite corporate power and authority to (i) execute and deliver this
Agreement, the Warrant and the Registration Rights Agreement (collectively, the
"Transaction Documents"), (ii) issue and sell (A) the Warrant and (B) any and
all shares of Common Stock or other securities issuable in respect of the
Warrant ("Warrant Shares") and (iii) perform its obligations hereunder and
thereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by SeraCare of the
Transaction Documents and all documents, certificates and instruments to be
executed by SeraCare in connection therewith and the authorization, issuance (or
reservation for issuance, as the case may be), sale and delivery of the Warrant
and the Warrant Shares, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
action on the part of SeraCare and its stockholders. The Transaction Documents
have been duly executed and delivered by SeraCare and constitute the legal,
valid and binding obligations of SeraCare, enforceable against SeraCare in
accordance with their respective terms.

(c) Conflicts; Consents. The execution and delivery by SeraCare of
the Transaction Documents does not and the performance of the obligations
contemplated hereby and thereby (including without limitation the issuance and
sale of the Warrant and the Warrant Shares) and compliance with the terms hereof
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and thereof will not, breach, conflict in any material way with, or result in
any material violation of or default (with or without notice or lapse of time or
both) under, or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or
acceleration of any material obligation or to the loss of any material benefit
under, or result in the creation or imposition of any material Lien upon any of
the properties or assets of SeraCare under, (i) any loan or credit agreement,
note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, license, franchise, lease,
contract, commitment, permit, agreement, understanding, instrument or obligation
or other arrangement to which SeraCare is a party or by which SeraCare or any of
its properties or assets may be bound or affected, (ii) any provision of the
Certificate of Incorporation or the By-laws or other constitutive or governing
documents of SeraCare or (iii) any Applicable Law. Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.1 (c) hereto, no consent, approval, order, license, permit or
authorization of, or notification, registration, declaration or filing with, any
Governmental Authority or any other Person is required to be obtained or made by
SeraCare or any of its Affiliates in connection with the execution, delivery and
performance by SeraCare of any of the Transaction Documents, the issuance and
sale of the Warrant and the Warrant Shares, or the performance of the
obligations contemplated hereby and thereby.

(d) Capital Stock.

(i) As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of SeraCare
consists of (i) 25,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, of
which (1) 3,600 shares have been designated Series A Preferred Stock (the
"Series A Preferred Stock"), none of which shares of Series A Preferred
Stock are issued and outstanding, (2) 15,000 shares of which have been
designated Series B Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred Stock"), none
of which shares of Series B Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding, (3)
22,500

shares of which have been designated Series C Preferred Stock (the "Series
C Preferred Stock"), 22,500 of which shares of Series C Preferred Stock are
issued and outstanding and (4) 24,958,900 shares of which are undesignated
and (ii) 25,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which (1) 9,619,943 are
issued and outstanding, (2) 7,336,110 are reserved for issuance pursuant to
the exercise of outstanding warrants and options, (3) 300,000 are reserved
for issuance pursuant to the exercise of options under SeraCare's 1997
Employee Stock Option Plan (of which no options have been issued to date),
and (4) none are reserved for issuance upon conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock, and none are reserved for issuance upon conversion of the
Series B Preferred Stock, and 500,000 are reserved for issuance upon
conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock. SeraCare has reserved 1,748,605
shares of Common Stock for issuance upon exercise of the Warrant. The
issuance of the Warrant has been duly authorized and, when issued in
accordance with this Agreement, (i) will be validly issued, fully paid and
non-assessable, (ii) will have the rights, preferences and privileges
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described therein and (iii) except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d) will not
have been issued in violation of, and will not be subject to, any
preemptive or subscription rights and will not result in the antidilution
provisions of any security of SeraCare or any subsidiary becoming
applicable.

(1) The Warrant, when issued and delivered in accordance with this
Agreement, will be free and clear of any Liens and Quest Diagnostics will
have good title thereto. The Warrant Shares have been duly authorized and
reserved for issuance pursuant to SeraCare's Certificate of Incorporation
and, when issued, will be duly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, will
be free and clear of any Liens, except for any Liens created or incurred by
Quest Diagnostics, and Quest Diagnostics will have good title thereto,
except for any Liens created or incurred by Quest Diagnostics and the
Warrant and will not be subject to any preemptive or subscription rights
and, except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d), will not result in the
antidilution provisions of any security of SeraCare becoming applicable.

(iii) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d), there are no
outstanding warrants, options, rights, other securities, agreements,
subscriptions or other commitments, arrangements or undertakings pursuant
to which SeraCare or any subsidiary is or may become obligated to issue,
deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold, any additional
capital stock or other securities of SeraCare or any subsidiary or to
issue, grant, extend or enter into any such warrant, option, right,
security, agreement, subscription or other commitment, arrangement or
undertaking. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d), there are no
outstanding options, rights, other securities, agreements or other
commitments, arrangements or undertakings pursuant to which SeraCare or any
subsidiary is or may become obligated to redeem, repurchase or otherwise
acquire or retire any capital stock or other securities of SeraCare or any
subsidiary, or any securities of the type described in this Section 3.1 (d)
which are presently outstanding or may be issued in the future.

(iv) Other than the rights set forth in the Registration Rights
Agreement, or as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d), there are no outstanding
rights which permit the holder thereof to cause SeraCare to file a
registration statement under the Securities Act or which permit the holder
thereof to include securities of SeraCare in a registration
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statement filed by SeraCare under the Securities Act, and there are no
outstanding agreements or other commitments which otherwise relate to the
registration of any securities of SeraCare under the Securities Act.

(v) Assuming that the representations and warranties of Quest
Diagnostics set forth in 3.2 (k) are true and correct, the offering,
issuance and delivery of the Warrant and the issuance of the Warrant Shares
are exempt from the registration regquirements of the Securities Act, and,
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except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(d) hereto and as provided in the
Registration Rights Agreement, SeraCare is not required to make or obtain
any filings, registrations, qualifications, notifications or consents or
approvals of or with any Governmental Authority (including without
limitation under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, or any state securities or "blue sky"
laws) in connection therewith.

(e) SEC Documents; Financial Statements. SeraCare has filed all
required reports, forms and other documents required to be filed under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), with the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") since February 29, 2000 (the
"SeraCare SEC Documents"). As of their respective dates, the SeraCare SEC
Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the
Exchange Act, and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder
applicable to such SeraCare SEC Documents, and none of the SeraCare SEC
Documents contained any untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. The financial statements of SeraCare included in the SeraCare
SEC Documents comply as to form in all material respects with applicable
accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with
respect thereto, have been prepared in accordance with GAAP (except, in the case
of unaudited statements, as permitted by Form 10-QSB of the SEC) applied on a
consistent basis during the periods involved and fairly present the consolidated
financial position of SeraCare and its consolidated subsidiaries as of the dates
thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the
periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal and
recurring year-end audit adjustments not material in scope or amount).

(f) Undisclosed Liabilities. Except as set forth in the SeraCare SEC
Documents or on Schedule 3.1(f), SeraCare does not have and, as a result of the
performance of the obligations contemplated in this Agreement or in the other
Transaction Documents, will not have, any liabilities or obligations of any
nature (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, unasserted or otherwise and
whether due or to become due) that could reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

(9) Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1 (g) hereto, there
are no suits, actions, claims, arbitrations or other legal, administrative or
regulatory proceedings or investigations, whether at law or in equity, or before
or by any Governmental Authority pending or, to the knowledge of SeraCare,
threatened by or against or affecting SeraCare or any of its properties or
assets that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, nor
to the knowledge of SeraCare is there any basis therefor. There is no
outstanding judgment, order, injunction or decree of any Governmental Authority
or arbitrator applicable to SeraCare or any

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

of its properties, assets or business that could reasonably be expected to have
a Material Adverse Effect.

(h) Absence of Changes or Events. Since the date of the SeraCare SEC
Documents, there has not been any event, violation or other matter that could,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

(1) Compliance with Applicable Law.

(i) SeraCare and its properties, assets, operations and business are
in compliance in all material respects with all Applicable Law as
applicable to the Collaboration. SeraCare has obtained and has in effect
all material permits, licenses and other authorizations which are required
for the operation of the Collaboration. SeraCare is in compliance in all
material respects with all terms and conditions of such permits, licenses
and authorizations, no proceeding is pending or, to the knowledge of
SeraCare, threatened, to revoke or limit any thereof, and, to the knowledge
of SeraCare, there is no basis for any such proceeding and the operation of
the Collaboration will not result in the non-renewal, revocation or
termination of any such license or permit.

(ii) SeraCare has not received any written correspondence from the FDA
since April 4, 2000 with respect to the FDA investigations detailed in the
Warning Letters dated April 4, 2000, June 28, 1999, June 3, 1999, June 1,
1999, April 7, 1999, and December 18, 1998 and has taken remedial action
with respect to the matters set forth therein.

(j) Disclosure. To SeraCare's knowledge, there is no fact which
SeraCare has not disclosed to Quest Diagnostics in writing which has, or
(insofar as reasonably can be foreseen) in the future, will have a Material
Adverse Effect or which will affect the ability of SeraCare to perform its
obligations under the Transaction Documents including its obligations in respect
of the Warrant and the Warrant Shares.

(k) Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. To its knowledge, SeraCare and its

employees are in compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, as
amended, including without limitation the books and records provisions thereof.

(1) Investment Company. Neither SeraCare nor any Person controlling

SeraCare is an "investment company" within the meaning of the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended.
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(m) Solvency. To the knowledge of SeraCare, as of the date hereof,
(1) the fair market value of SeraCare's assets is in excess of the total amount
of its liabilities (including, without limitation, contingent liabilities); (ii)
the present fair saleable value of SeraCare's assets is greater than its
probable liability on its existing debts as such debts become absolute and
matured; and (iii) SeraCare is able to pay its debts (including, without
limitation, contingent debts and other commitments) as they mature.

(n) Insurance. Schedule 3.1 (n) contains a list of all insurance
policies ("SeraCare Insurance Policies") on which Quest Diagnostics has been
named as an additional
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insured, including the forms and amounts of coverage provided thereunder. All
SeraCare Insurance Policies are in the name of SeraCare, outstanding and in full
force and effect and all premiums due with respect to such policies are
currently paid. SeraCare has not received notice of cancellation or termination
of any such policy, nor has it been denied or had revoked or rescinded any
policy of insurance, nor has it borrowed against any such policies. There are
and have been no claims in the last five years for which an insurance carrier
has denied or threatened to deny coverage.

Section 3.2 Quest Diagnostics represents and warrants to SeraCare as
follows:

(a) Organization and Standing of Quest Diagnostics. Quest Diagnostics
is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Delaware. Quest Diagnostics has all requisite corporate
power and authority necessary to enable it to own and operate its properties and
assets and to conduct its business as presently conducted and proposed to be
conducted under the Collaboration. Quest Diagnostics is duly qualified to do
business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing in any jurisdiction in
which the failure to so qualify could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

(b) Authority; Valid and Binding Agreements. Quest Diagnostics has
all requisite corporate power and authority to (i) execute and deliver this
Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement and (ii) perform its obligations
hereunder and thereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by Quest
Diagnostics of such agreements and all documents, certificates and instruments
to be executed by Quest Diagnostics in connection therewith, have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of Quest Diagnostics
and its stockholders. This Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement have
been duly executed and delivered by Quest Diagnostics and constitute the legal,
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valid and binding obligations of Quest Diagnostics, enforceable against Quest
Diagnostics in accordance with their respective terms.

(c) Conflicts; Consents. The execution and delivery by Quest
Diagnostics of this Agreement and Registration Rights Agreement does not and the
performance of the obligations contemplated hereby and thereby and compliance
with the terms hereof and thereof will not, breach, conflict in any material way
with, or result in any material violation of or default (with or without notice
or lapse of time or both) under, or give rise to a right of termination,
cancellation or acceleration of any material obligation or to the loss of any
material benefit under, or result in the creation or imposition of any material
Lien of any nature whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of Quest
Diagnostics under, (i) any loan or credit agreement, note, bond, mortgage,
indenture, deed of trust, license, franchise, lease, contract, commitment,
permit, agreement, understanding, instrument or obligation or other arrangement
to which Quest Diagnostics is a party or by which Quest Diagnostics or any of
its properties or assets may be bound or affected, (ii) any provision of the
Certificate of Incorporation or the By-laws or other constitutive or governing
documents of Quest Diagnostics or (iii) any Applicable Law. No consent,
approval, order, license, permit or authorization of, or notification,
registration, declaration or filing with, any Governmental Authority or any
other Person is required to be obtained or made by or with respect to Quest
Diagnostics or any of its Affiliates in connection with the execution, delivery
and performance by Quest Diagnostics this Agreement
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or the Registration Rights Agreement, or the performance of the obligations
contemplated thereby.

(d) SEC Documents; Financial Statements. Quest Diagnostics has filed
all required reports, forms and other documents required to be filed under the
Exchange Act, with the SEC since December 31, 1999 (the "Quest Diagnostics SEC
Documents"). As of their respective dates, the Quest Diagnostics SEC Documents
complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act, and
the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to such
Quest Diagnostics SEC Documents, and none of the Quest Diagnostics SEC Documents
contained any untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. The financial statements of Quest Diagnostics included in the
Quest Diagnostics SEC Documents comply as to form in all material respects with
applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of
the SEC with respect thereto, have been prepared in accordance with GAAP
(except, in the case of unaudited statements, as permitted by Form 10-Q of the
SEC) applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved and fairly
present the consolidated financial position of Quest Diagnostics and its
consolidated subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

of their operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the
case of unaudited statements, to normal and recurring year-end audit adjustments
not material in scope or amount).

(e) Litigation. There are no suits, actions, claims, arbitrations or
other legal, administrative or regulatory proceedings or investigations, whether
at law or in equity, or before or by any Governmental Authority pending or, to
the knowledge of Quest Diagnostics, threatened by or against or affecting Quest
Diagnostics or any of its properties or assets that could reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect, nor to the knowledge of Quest Diagnostics is
there any basis therefor. There is no outstanding judgment, order, injunction
or decree of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator applicable to Quest
Diagnostics or any of its properties, assets or business that could that could
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(f) Absence of Changes or Events. Since the date of the Quest
Diagnostics SEC Documents, there has not been any event, violation or other
matter that could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably he expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect.

(g) Compliance with Applicable Law. Quest Diagnostics and its
properties, assets, operations and business are in compliance in all material
respects with all Applicable Law as applicable to the Collaboration. Quest
Diagnostics has obtained and has in effect all permits, licenses and other
authorizations which are required for the operation of the Collaboration. Quest
Diagnostics is in compliance in all material respects with all terms and
conditions of such permits, licenses and authorizations, no proceeding is
pending or, to the knowledge of Quest Diagnostics, threatened, to revoke or
limit any thereof, and, to the knowledge of Quest Diagnostics, there is no basis
for any such proceeding and the operation of the Collaboration will not result
in the non-renewal, revocation or termination of any such license or permit.
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(h) Disclosure. To Quest Diagnostics' knowledge, there is no fact
which Quest Diagnostics has not disclosed to SeraCare in writing which has, or
(insofar as reasonably can be foreseen) in the future, will have a Material
Adverse Effect or which will affect the ability of Quest Diagnostics to perform
its obligations under the Transaction Documents.

(1) Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. To its knowledge, Quest
Diagnostics and its employees are in compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, as amended, including without limitation the books and records
provisions thereof.
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(3) Disclaimer Regarding Specimens. All specimen remnants provided
by Quest Diagnostics in connection with the Collaboration meet the age, gender
and disease state and volume specifications requested by SeraCare, unless
otherwise specified by Quest Diagnostics with respect to any particular
shipment. THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES BY QUEST DIAGNOSTICS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH
SPECIMEN REMNANTS ARE LIMITED TO THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES STATED IN THIS PARAGRAPH
(7), AND EXCEPT FOR SUCH EXPRESS WARRANTIES, QUEST DIAGNOSTICS MAKES NO WARRANTY
WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SPECIMENS, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL SUCH SPECIMENS ARE AND SHALL BE PROVIDED

"AS-IS," AND SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE INFECTIOUS, CONTAINING BIOHAZARDOUS
CONTENTS.

(k) Investment Representations.

(1) Securities Act. Quest Diagnostics is acquiring the Warrant for
investment only for its own account, not as a nominee or agent, and not

with a view to any public distribution of all or any portion thereof or of
the Warrant Shares.

(ii) Accredited Investor. Quest Diagnostics is an "accredited
investor" as such term is defined in Rule 501 (a) promulgated under the
Securities Act and is capable of evaluating the risks and merits of its
investment in SeraCare and has the capacity to protect its own interests.

(iii) Restricted Securities. Quest Diagnostics acknowledges that,
because the Warrant has not been registered under the Securities Act or any
state securities laws, the Warrant (and the Warrant Shares) it is
purchasing must be held indefinitely unless subsequently registered under
the Securities Act or an exemption from such registration is available.
Quest Diagnostics is familiar with the provisions of Rule 144 promulgated
under the Securities Act and the resale limitation imposed thereby and by
the Securities Act.

(1) Insurance. Schedule 3.2 (1) contains a list of all insurance
policies ("Quest Diagnostics Insurance Policies") on which SeraCare has been
named as an additional insured, including the forms and amounts of coverage
provided thereunder. All Quest Diagnostic Insurance Policies are in the name of
Quest Diagnostics, outstanding and in full force and effect and all premiums due
with respect to such policies are currently paid. Quest Diagnostics has not
received notice of cancellation or termination of any such policy, nor has it
been denied or had revoked or rescinded any policy of insurance, nor has it
borrowed against any such policies.

_13_
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There are and have been no claims in the last five years for which an insurance
carrier has denied or threatened to deny coverage.

ARTICLE IV
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Section 4.1 Indemnification.

(a) SeraCare agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Quest
Diagnostics and its successors and assigns, officers, directors, Affiliates,
employees, attorneys, representatives and agents (all such Persons and entities
being collectively referred to as "Indemnified Parties") from and against any
and all claims, losses, liabilities, costs, and expenses, including reasonable
attorney's fees ("Losses") incurred or sustained by any Indemnified Party as a
result of or arising from or in connection with any inaccuracy or breach of any
representation, warranty or covenant made by SeraCare in or pursuant to any
Transaction Document.

(b) Quest Diagnostics agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
SeraCare and its successors and assigns, officers, Affiliates, employees,
attorneys, representatives and agents (all such Persons and entities being also
collectively referred to as "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all
Losses incurred or sustained by any Indemnified Party as a result of or arising
from or in connection with any inaccuracy or breach of any representation,
warranty or covenant made by Quest Diagnostics in or pursuant to any Transaction
Document.

(c) The indemnification obligations of the parties hereunder shall be
satisfied by the delivery to the Indemnified Party, by wire transfer of
immediately available funds, the amount of any indemnity payment due hereunder.

(d) The obligations and liabilities of the parties hereunder with
respect to their indemnities pursuant to this Section 4.1 shall be subject to
the following terms and conditions

(1) If any third party shall notify any Indemnified Party with
respect to any matter (a "Third Party Claim") which may give rise to a
claim for indemnification against any other Party (the "Indemnifying
Party") under this Section 4.1, then the Indemnified Party shall promptly
notify the Indemnifying Party thereof in writing; provided, however, that
no delay on the part of the Indemnified Party in notifying the Indemnifying
Party shall relieve the Indemnifying Party from any obligation hereunder
unless (and then solely to the extent) the Indemnifying Party thereby is
prejudiced.

(1ii) The Indemnifying Party will have the right to assume the defense
of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its choice reasonably satisfactory
to the Indemnified Party at any time within thirty days after the
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Indemnified Party has given notice of the Third Party Claim; provided,
however, that the Indemnified Party may retain separate co-counsel at its
sole cost and expense and participate in the defense of the Third Party
Claim; provided that if the Indemnified Party in good faith believes that a
conflict of interest exists between it and the Indemnifying Party, then the
Indemnifying Party shall pay such cost of separate co-counsel.

_14_

(iii) So long as the Indemnifying Party has assumed and is conducting
the defense of the Third Party Claim in accordance with Section 4.1 (d) (ii)
above, (A) the Indemnifying Party will not consent to the entry of any
judgment or enter into any settlement with respect to the Third Party Claim
without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party (not to be
withheld unreasonably) unless the judgment or proposed settlement involves
only the payment of money damages by the Indemnifying Party and does not
impose an injunction or other equitable relief upon the Indemnified Party
and (B) the Indemnified Party will not consent to the entry of any judgment
or enter into any settlement with respect to the Third Party Claim without
prior written consent of the Indemnifying Party (not to be withheld
unreasonably) .

(iv) In the event none of the Indemnifying Parties assumes and
conducts the defense of the Third Party Claim in accordance with Section
4.1(d) (1i) above, however, (A) the Indemnified Party may defend against,
and consent to the entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement with
respect to, the Third Party Claim in any manner it reasonably may deem
appropriate (and the Indemnified Party need not consult with, or obtain any
consent from, any Indemnifying Party in connection therewith) and (B) the
Indemnifying Party will remain responsible for any Losses the Indemnified
Party may suffer resulting from, arising out of, relating to, or caused by
the Third Party Claim to the fullest extent provided in this Section 4.1.

(e) Survival of Indemnity; Termination. For the purposes of this
indemnification provision, all covenants, agreements, representations and
warranties made by the parties herein shall be considered to have been relied
upon by the other party and shall survive the termination of the Collaboration,
the sale and purchase of the Warrant and the Warrant Shares and any disposition
thereof, and shall remain in full force until the second anniversary of the
termination of the Collaboration (the "Termination Date") except with respect to
any indemnification in connection with a notice from the Indemnified Party which
is properly submitted in accordance with this Section 4.1 prior to the
Termination Date, in which case such provisions shall survive until such claim
is finally determined and paid in full.

(f) Insurance.

(1) SeraCare shall maintain the SeraCare Insurance Policies in
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force at all times during the term of this Agreement in the forms and
amounts set forth on Schedule 3.1(1) hereto. Within 10 business days of the
date of this Agreement, SeraCare shall provide to Quest Diagnostics
certificates of insurance for each type of insurance, which certificates
shall specify that Quest Diagnostics is a named insured, and shall receive
no less than 30 days' notice of cancellation, nonrenewal or material change
in such policy or policies. SeraCare shall maintain such insurance coverage
and bonding with a nationally recognized insurance company, throughout the
term of this Agreement, and thereafter until the Termination Date. It is
expressly understood and agreed that Quest Diagnostics does not in any way
represent that the above specified limits of liability or policy forms are
sufficient or adequate to protect SeraCare's interests or liabilities.

(11) Quest Diagnostics shall maintain the Quest Diagnostics
Insurance Policies in force at all times during the term of this Agreement
in the forms and amounts set forth
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on Schedule 3.2 (m) hereto. Within 10 business days of the date of this
Agreement, Quest Diagnostics shall provide to SeraCare certificates of
insurance for each type of insurance, which certificates shall specify that
SeraCare is a named insured, and shall receive no less than 30 days' notice
of cancellation, nonrenewal or material change in such policy or policies.
Quest Diagnostics shall maintain such insurance coverage and bonding with a
nationally recognized insurance company, throughout the term of this
Agreement, and thereafter until the Termination Date. It is expressly
understood and agreed that SeraCare does not in any way represent that the
above specified limits of liability or policy forms are sufficient or
adequate to protect Quest Diagnostics' interests or liabilities.

ARTICLE V
OTHER AGREEMENTS

Section 5.1 Expansion of the Businesses. SeraCare covenants and
agrees to exercise its reasonable business efforts to expand the Disease State
Positive Sera Business, the Disease State Negative Sera Business and the
Specimen Remnant Business customer base and to promote actively such businesses
though marketing and sales efforts.

Section 5.2 Satisfactory Capabilities. SeraCare covenants and agrees
to use its commercially reasonable best efforts to maintain Satisfactory
Capabilities, including, if appropriate, by opening draw centers approved for
disease state plasma collection in Wilmington, Delaware, and Providence, Rhode
Island in calendar year 2001; and the parties shall confer and evaluate from
time to time regarding whether the opening of additional SeraCare plasma
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donation facilities would be appropriate and cost effective in connection with
the success of the Collaboration. 1In particular, the parties shall confer and
consider the appropriateness of opening a center in the Midwest. SeraCare
covenants and agree to conduct all operations at its collection facilities in
accordance with Applicable Law.

Section 5.3 Customer Certifications. SeraCare shall ensure that all
customers to whom specimen remnants are provided have made, on or before the
date of such shipment, the certifications set forth on Exhibit C hereto and
SeraCare shall promptly inform Quest Diagnostics if it becomes aware of any
reason Quest Diagnostics should not rely on such certifications.

Section 5.4 Continuing Obligation. For so long as this Agreement is
in effect, each party shall promptly inform the other of (a) the occurrence of
any event, violation or other matter that would, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect and (b) upon
receipt of notice from any Governmental Agency to the effect that any such party
is (or that the manner in which it conducts its business or the business of the
Collaboration is) in violation of any Applicable Law.

Section 5.5 Quest Diagnostics Director. SeraCare covenants and
agrees to take all necessary and appropriate steps to effect the election of the
Quest Diagnostics Director, including the inclusion of the designated Quest
Diagnostics Director as part of the management recommended slate of directors
presented at any regular or special meeting of the stockholders of SeraCare at
which directors of SeraCare are to be elected. Prior to such election, or in
the event that such election does not occur or the Quest Diagnostics Director is
removed from the
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SeraCare board of directors, the designated Quest Diagnostics nominee shall be
entitled to be an observer at the meetings of SeraCare's board of directors and
all committees thereof. "Quest Diagnostics Director" means a person, reasonably
satisfactory to SeraCare, appointed by Quest Diagnostics to serve on SeraCare's
board of directors; provided, however, that there shall be no more than one
Quest Diagnostics Director serving on SeraCare's board of directors at any time
during the term of the Collaboration.

Section 5.6 Intellectual Property. As between the parties, each
shall have an equal undivided interest in any intellectual property jointly
created in the course of the Collaboration, except to the extent that any such
jointly owned intellectual property constitutes or contains Confidential
Information (as defined below) of any party, in which case, such intellectual
property shall remain the sole property of the Disclosing Party (as defined
below). Neither party shall exploit such jointly owned intellectual property
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other than for internal use without the prior, written consent of the other, and
each party shall share equally in any revenue or proceeds received by either
with respect thereto. To the extent necessary, the parties shall grant each
other non-exclusive, limited licenses to use each others names and trademarks in
connection with pre-approved joint marketing materials.

Section 5.7 Patient Data. Each party agrees that all patient-related
information, including any derivatives resulting from the manipulation or
compilation thereof ("Patient Data") are Confidential Information (as defined
herein) and each party agrees it shall not disclose or utilize individual
laboratory test information or other Patient Data in any way that would violate
any patient confidentiality obligations or any Applicable Law. All Patient Data
shall be owned by Quest Diagnostics and not by SeraCare. SeraCare shall not,
for itself or any other Person, aggregate, integrate, compile, regenerate,
merge, manipulate or otherwise use the Patient Data for any purposes, including
to derive revenue therefrom, and shall not provide the Patient Data to any other
person or entity, other than as specifically required or allowed under the terms
of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Quest Diagnostics.
SeraCare agrees that Patient Data cannot be aggregated for any third party for
any purpose, without Quest Diagnostics' prior written consent. If SeraCare is
served with a warrant, subpoena, order or request from a court of competent
jurisdiction, administrative agency or other governmental body or any other
entity or person for any Patient Data, records, or files related thereto,
SeraCare shall as soon as practicable, and not in violation of Applicable Law,
deliver to Quest Diagnostics a copy of such warrant, subpoena, order or request
and shall not, without Quest Diagnostics' prior written consent, which shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed, accede to the same unless and until
required to do so under Applicable Law. Without limiting the foregoing,
SeraCare agrees that it shall limit the SeraCare employees, agents and
contractors who have access to any Patient Data, if any, to only those
employees, agents and contractors of SeraCare "with a need to know" as is
required to perform the SeraCare obligations hereunder in accordance with the
highest level of professionalism and SeraCare's established and maintained
security measures, which shall be subject to audit from time to time by Quest
Diagnostics in the same manner as set forth in Section 2.5 hereof.

Section 5.8 Confidential Information of the Parties.

(a) Without limiting the foregoing, and in addition to the Patient
Data provisions stated above, any and all trade secrets and confidential
information and all physical
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embodiments thereof ("Confidential Information") received by either party and
its authorized agents (the "Receiving Party") from the other party and its
authorized agents (the "Disclosing Party") during the Term of this Agreement are
confidential to, and are and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of,
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the Disclosing Party. Confidential Information shall also include all other
forms of information designated as Confidential Information in this Agreement.
Each party shall cause its employees and authorized agents to be bound by the
Confidential Information provisions of this Agreement.

(b) At all times, both during the Term of this Agreement and after its
termination, the Receiving Party shall hold all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party in confidence, and shall not use, commercialize, copy or
disclose such Confidential Information, or any physical embodiment thereof, or
cause any of such Confidential Information to lose its character or cease to
qualify as Confidential Information.

(c) Confidential Information shall be maintained under secure
conditions by the Receiving Party, using reasonable security measures (1) not
less than the same security measures used by the Receiving Party for the
protection of its own Confidential Information of a similar kind; and (2)
required by this Agreement or by Applicable Law. Within thirty days after
termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall deliver to the
Disclosing Party all of the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information, and all
physical embodiments thereof, then in the custody, control or possession of the
Receiving Party; provided that the Receiving Party shall be entitled to keep a
copy thereof solely for archival or litigation purposes.

(d) Subject to the provisions of Section 5.7, if the Receiving Party
is requested or ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction, administrative
agency, or other governmental body to disclose Confidential Information, or if
it is served with or otherwise becomes aware of a motion or similar request that
such an order be issued, then the Receiving Party shall not be liable to the
Disclosing Party for disclosure of Confidential Information or Confidential
Information required by such order if the Receiving Party provides reasonable
prior written notice of such disclosure and reasonably cooperates with the
efforts of the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party's expense, to protect
the confidentiality of such Confidential Information.

(e) Confidential Information shall exclude information that (i) was
known to the Receiving Party prior to its first receipt from the Disclosing
Party; or (ii) at any time becomes a matter of public knowledge without any
fault of the Receiving Party; or (iii) is at any time lawfully received by the
Receiving Party from a third party under circumstances permitting its disclosure
to others; or (iv) is independently developed by the Receiving Party as
evidenced by the Receiving Party's records; or (v) is at any time furnished to a
third party by the Disclosing Party without restriction on use or disclosure; or
(vi) 1s approved for release by written authorization of the Disclosing Party.
The Receiving Party shall bear the burden of showing that any of the foregoing
exclusions applies to any information or materials.

(f) Each party shall cooperate with the other in the protection of
Confidential Information. Each party acknowledges and agrees that any breach or
threatened breach of these obligations of confidentiality is a material breach
of this Agreement, and the non-breaching party will suffer irreparable harm and
injury which may not be adequately compensated by monetary damages.
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Accordingly, in the event of a breach or threatened breach, in addition to any
other
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remedies provided for in this Agreement or at law, the non-breaching party shall
be entitled to seek preliminary and final injunctive relief and any other
equitable remedies it may have.

Section 5.9 Non-solicitation of Employees. Quest Diagnostics agrees
that, during the Term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve months
thereafter, it shall not directly or indirectly through others solicit for
employment or hire any employee of Western States Group, Inc. who is exempt
from the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. SeraCare agrees that,
during the Term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve months thereafter,
it shall not directly or indirectly through others solicit for employment or
hire any employee of Quest Diagnostics involved in the Collaboration who is
exempt from the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Each party agrees
that with respect to any other employee of the other party, it shall not
directly or indirectly through others solicit for employment such employees;
provided, however, that nothing in this Section 5.9 shall be construed to
prohibit the employment by one party of any person not specified in the first
two sentences of this Section 5.9 who is currently or formerly employed by the
other party if such person responds to a general solicitation employment
advertisement placed in the ordinary course of business and not particularly
directed at the employees of the other party.

Section 5.10 Compliance with Law.

(a) Each party shall at all times conduct its operations in compliance
with Applicable Law and the parties shall immediately cease all activities in
connection with any part of the Collaboration that is prohibited, or becomes
prohibited, by Applicable Law. The parties acknowledge that due to the
regulated nature of the Collaboration, the Collaboration may be impacted by
Applicable Law, including the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and the Public
Health Service Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder, the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and
regulations (final, or to the extent generally applied in the industry,
proposed) promulgated thereunder ("HIPAA"), and all state and local statutes
addressing privacy and security of healthcare information and the Balanced
Budget Act of 1997, P.L. 105-23, as amended, and regulations promulgated
thereunder ("BBA"). The parties mutually agree to make any necessary changes to
the way in which the Collaboration is conducted as may be directed by Quest
Diagnostics and required for compliance with Applicable Law. When the proposed
HIPAA security regulations are finalized, the parties shall negotiate in good
faith for a period of thirty days the terms of a "Chain of Trust Agreement" as
may be required by law, and prior to the required implementation date in the
final HIPAA privacy regulations, the parties shall negotiate in good faith for a
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period of thirty days the terms of a "Business Associate Contract" as may be
required by law. If no agreement can be reached at the relevant time, as the
case may be, the matter will be resolved by the Project Committee as set forth
in Section 2.1.

(b) Notice of Laws Implementation Plan. If Quest Diagnostics
determines that a Law is potentially an Applicable Law, Quest Diagnostics shall
provide SeraCare with a written description of such Law, the time frame within
which such Law must be implemented, the manner in which Quest Diagnostics
believes such Law affects the Collaboration and what changes in the operation of
the Collaboration Quest Diagnostics believes may be required ("Regulation
Notice"). Within thirty days after receiving a Regulation Notice from Quest
Diagnostics, SeraCare shall develop a written plan for the implementation of the
Law described

_19_

therein within the applicable time frame and a statement of the cost for such
implementation ("Implementation Plan") and provide a copy of the Implementation
Plan to Quest Diagnostics for review, comment and approval. After incorporating
comments from Quest Diagnostics (if any) and receiving Quest's direction and
approval to proceed, SeraCare shall promptly implement the Implementation Plan
and shall perform all operations related to the Collaboration in accordance with
the Implementation Plan.

(c) Confidentiality. Any Regulation Notices and Implementation Plans
prepared and provided hereunder shall be deemed to be Confidential Information
of Quest Diagnostics or SeraCare as the case may be.

Section 5.11 Meridian Contract. The parties shall proceed in good
faith to execute and deliver as promptly as possible after the date of this
Agreement, an agreement (mutually satisfactory to Quest Diagnostics and
SeraCare) between Quest Diagnostics and Meridian, and a mutually satisfactory
subcontract to SeraCare of such agreement.

ARTICLE VI
TAX MATTERS

All tax matters will be handled as set forth in Schedule A to this
Agreement which shall be part of this Agreement for all purposes, as amended by
the parties from time to time.

ARTICLE VII
TERM AND TERMINATION
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Section 7.1 The Agreement shall have an initial term of five years,
and shall thereafter be automatically renewed for successive one-year terms
unless terminated by a party in writing prior to the end of the initial term or
any of the successive terms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, SeraCare shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement if any of the conditions set forth in
Section 7.2 shall occur and Quest Diagnostics shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement if any of the conditions set forth in Section 7.3 shall occur.

Section 7.2 SeraCare shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
in the event:

(a) of a deadlock of the Executive Committee on any matter regarding
costs, revenues, business practices and operations or compliance with Applicable
Law;

(b) of any event that in the opinion of SeraCare has the effect of
materially damaging SeraCare's reputation;

(c) that the Collaboration does not yield at least *** of Net Revenue
in any calendar year;

(d) of a Change in Control of Quest Diagnostics or upon the
consummation of a transaction following which a competitor of one party holds at
least 30% of Quest Diagnostics on a voting or economic basis;

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.
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(e) of a change of law or regulation that has the effect of materially
restricting the Collaboration or any party's participation therein;

(f) that the Actual Profit to SeraCare from the Collaboration is ***
during any six-month period during the term of the Agreement; "Actual Profit"
means any party's allocated share of Net Revenue plus reimbursements to such
party of Chargeable Costs minus all Collaboration related costs incurred by such
party;

(g) of an event of bankruptcy or insolvency of Quest Diagnostics; or
(h) the breach by Quest Diagnostics of any material provision of this
Agreement, provided that SeraCare has given written notice to Quest Diagnostics

of the breach and afforded a thirty-day cure period.

Section 7.3 Quest Diagnostics shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement in the event:

(a) of a deadlock of the Executive Committee on any matter regarding
costs, revenues, business practices and operations or compliance with Applicable
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Law;

(b) of any event that in the opinion of Quest Diagnostics has the
effect of materially damaging Quest Diagnostics' reputation;

(c) that the Collaboration does not yield at least *** of Net Revenue
in any calendar year;

(d) of a Change in Control of SeraCare or upon the consummation of a
transaction following which a competitor of one party holds at least 30% of
SeraCare on a voting or economic basis;

(e) of a change of law or regulation that has the effect of materially
restricting the Collaboration or any party's participation therein;

(f) that the Actual Profit to Quest Diagnostics from the Collaboration
is *** during any six-month period during the term of the Agreement;

(g) of an event of bankruptcy or insolvency of SeraCare; or

(h) the breach by SeraCare of any material provision of this
Agreement, provided that Quest Diagnostics has given written notice to SeraCare
of the breach and afforded a thirty-day cure period. For the avoidance of doubt,
SeraCare's failure to maintain Satisfactory Capabilities would be a breach of a
material provision of this Agreement.

Section 7.4 Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of

this Agreement, the parties shall jointly develop a plan for the appropriate
settlement of inventory

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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existing at the time of termination and appropriate mechanics regarding other
aspects of winding down the business.

Section 7.5 Survival. The obligations set forth in Sections 4.1,
5.5, 5.6 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, 7.4, 7.5 and 8.10 and any provision of Article VI which
by its terms so requires, shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS
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Section 8.1 Certain Definitions; Interpretations.

(a) Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have
the meanings set forth below.

"Affiliate" when used with respect to a specified Person, means another
Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls
or is controlled by or is under common control with the Person specified.

"Applicable Law" shall mean any statute, law, ordinance, regulation,
requirement, order or rule of any Governmental Authority or of any other type of
regulatory body, or any governmental or administrative interpretation of any
thereof (each, a "Law"), including, without limitation, (i) requirements imposed
by any governmental or regulatory body which must be satisfied to qualify for
Medicare, Medicaid or other health care program reimbursements, and (ii) any and
all federal, state and local health care laws, including but not limited to,
those laws relating to or covering the methods and ways in which clinical
laboratory electronic data information services and other related or incidental
services or benefits, if any, are provided to the Providers, the federal
Physician Self-Referral Law, 42 U.S.C. Section 1395bb, and the regulations
promulgated thereunder (together, the "Stark Law"), similar state physician
self-referral laws and regulations (together with the Stark Law, the "Self-
Referral Laws"), the Federal Health Care Program Anti-Kickback Law and
regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Federal Anti-Kickback Law"), and
similar state antikickback laws and regulations (together with the Federal Anti-
Kickback Law, the "Anti-Kickback Laws"), the Clinical Laboratory Improvements
Act of 1967, as amended, the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, as amended,
the Public Health Service Act, as amended, HIPAA and BBA, and Federal Aviation
Administration regulations, any (IATA) requirements, in each case, having any
applicability to the operation of the Collaboration. "Regulatory Change" means
any circumstance in which any Federal Health Care Program (as defined under
applicable law, including the Medicare and Medicaid programs), payment policy,
or rule or policy of any third-party payor, or any other applicable law or
policy, or any interpretation thereof, at any time during the term is modified,
implemented, threatened to be implemented, or determined to prohibit, restrict
or in any way materially change the payment or other terms of this Agreement, or
by virtue of the existence of this Agreement has or will have a material adverse
affect on the ability of either party to this Agreement to engage in any
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commercial activity on terms at least as favorable to that party as those
reasonably attributable as of the Effective Date.
"Bad Debts" means the portion of the accounts receivable of the
Collaboration determined by the Project Committee to be uncollectible net of any

such amounts actually collected.

"Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred as of the first day
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that any one or more of the following conditions shall have occurred: (i) Any
"person" (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14 (d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Act")), becomes the "beneficial owner"
(as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Act) directly or indirectly, of securities
representing more than 50% of the total voting power represented by SeraCare's
or Quest Diagnostics', as the case may be, then outstanding voting securities;
(11) the shareholders of SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be,
shall have approved a recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation or
similar transaction, in each case, with respect to which all or substantially
all the persons who were the respective beneficial owners of the outstanding
shares of capital stock of SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be,
immediately prior to such recapitalization, reorganization, merger or
consolidation, will directly or indirectly beneficially own less than 50% of the
combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of
SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be, resulting from such
recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation or similar transaction;
or (iii) the shareholders of SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be,
shall have approved the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all
the capital stock of SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case may be, or
substantially all of the assets of SeraCare or Quest Diagnostics, as the case
may be, in one transaction or in a series of related transactions.

"Chargeable Costs" means, (i) for SeraCare, Costs in any calendar year up
to an aggregate amount equal to *** of gross revenues of the Collaboration for
such calendar year; provided that within such annual cap, SeraCare Costs up to
an amount equal to *** of gross revenues for any calendar month may be applied
against gross revenues in such calendar month and (ii) for Quest Diagnostics,
Costs in any calendar year up to an aggregate amount equal to *** of gross
revenues of the Collaboration for such calendar year; provided that within such
annual cap, Quest Diagnostics Costs up to an amount equal to *** of gross
revenues for any calendar month may be applied against gross revenues in such
calendar month (it being understood that, with respect to either party, Costs
within an applicable annual cap but over the applicable monthly cap may be
rolled over to any subsequent month).

"Costs" means. Variable Costs and Support Costs collectively, each as
defined below.

"Dedicated Employee" means any employee of either Quest Diagnostics or
SeraCare who spends all or a portion of his or her time on behalf of the
Collaboration whose names are set forth on Schedule I hereto, which schedule
shall be reviewed and amended from time to time by the Project Committee.

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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"Governmental Authority" means any government, court, administrative agency
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or commission or other governmental agency, authority or instrumentality,
domestic or foreign, of competent jurisdiction.

"Lien" means, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, deed of trust,
lien, pledge, charge, security interest, easement, covenant, right of way,
restriction, equity or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever in or on such asset,
(b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any conditional sale agreement,
capital lease or title retention agreement relating to such asset and (c) in the
case of securities, any purchase option, call or similar right of a third party
with respect to such securities.

"Material Adverse Effect" means, with respect to either party, any change
in or effect on the business of such party that is or could reasonably be
expected to be materially adverse to the business, operations, properties
(including intangible properties), condition (financial or otherwise), results
of operations, assets, liabilities, regulatory status or prospects of such party
or the Collaboration.

"Net Revenue" for any calendar month means: (a) gross revenue of the
Collaboration invoiced in such month (including (x) any invoiced Costs and (y)
any milestone, royalty or other payments received from third parties) less (but
not below zero) (b) the sum of (1) Chargeable Costs for such month, as
determined or adjusted in accordance with Section 2.3, (2) refunds related to
rejection of non-conforming product made in such month, (3) Bad Debts incurred
or recognized in such month and (4) Partnership Tax Costs for such month.

"Partnership Tax Costs" shall mean any direct expenses, other than Support
Costs, incurred by the Tax Matters Partner (i) to prepare, to circulate among
the Partners, and to file a Partnership Tax Return in accordance with Schedule
A, (ii) to furnish information to the other Partner regarding (and, to the
extent approved by the Project Committee, to respond to) any inquiries,
investigations, examinations or audits with respect to such Partnership Tax
Return by any Tax authority, (iii) to maintain Tax records in accordance with
Section 4.3 of Schedule A of this Agreement, or (iv) as approved by the Project
Committee from time to time. For clarification purposes, Partnership Tax Costs
shall not include any amounts that would qualify as Support Costs regardless of
whether the Collaboration is treated as a partnership for Tax purposes, such as
accounting or legal fees associated with the determination of Chargeable costs,
Net Revenue, the amount of any distributions required to be made under the
Agreement, or any other determinations that would be required to be made
regardless of whether the Collaboration is treated as a partnership for Tax
purposes. However, such term may include any additional accounting expenses
(that is, in excess of accounting fees described in the preceding sentence)
incurred solely to prepare, circulate, or file the Partnership Tax Return.

"Partnership Tax Return" shall mean a federal or, if applicable, State or
local, Tax return required to be filed by the Partnership, including, but not
limited to, IRS Form 1065 and the associated Schedules K-1, and, if applicable,
any similar State or local Tax return.

"Permitted Investments" means (i) securities backed by the full faith and

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

credit of the United States of America, (ii) short-term commercial paper rated
at least A-1 by S&P and P-1 by Moodys and (iii) interest bearing deposits at a
commercial bank whose short-term obligations
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(or, in the case of a commercial bank in a holding company system, such holding
company's short term obligations) are rated at least A-1 by S&P and P-1 by
Moodys (in each case with a maturity no longer than the last business day of the
calendar month in which such investment is made) .

"Person" means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, trust, joint venture, Governmental Authority or other entity,
and shall include any successor (by merger or otherwise) of such entity.

"Support Costs" means, to the extent documented as required by this
Agreement, (i) a pro rata share of cost, including salary, payroll taxes,
benefits programs, and sales commissions of any Dedicated Employee; (ii) all
billing, collection, accounting, legal (to the extent incurred after the date of
the Agreement or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties) and marketing
costs related to the Collaboration; and (iii) all other costs mutually agreed by
the Project Committee from time to time.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any federal, state or local income, franchise,
unincorporated business or similar tax that is based upon, measured by, or
calculated with respect to net income or profits, including any interest or
penalties relating to such taxes. In the event that the Project Committee
authorizes international operations pursuant to Section 1.5, such term shall
also include foreign taxes imposed with respect to such international operations
to the extent provided by the Project Committee.

"Variable Costs" means, to the extent documented as required by this
Agreement (i) fees paid to patient donors, including, donor fees, travel and
accommodation costs associated with patient donor travel to plasma collection

stations; (ii) referral fees paid to alternative providers of alternative
services; (i1iii) SeraCare standard draw site collection fee of *** per
donation; (iv) Quest Diagnostics business unit laboratory support costs of
*** per remnant specimen; (v) the direct cost (excluding overhead) of

screening and testing (including validation testing performed by Quest
Diagnostics on sera pursuant to Section 1.6 hereof), qualifying and processing
the plasma collected; and (vi) all direct costs (excluding overhead) incurred by
reason of storing, shipping, controlling, packaging and processing the plasma,
including freight charges, sales taxes, and standard insurance charges.

(b) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the
following rules of interpretation apply to this Agreement: (i) the singular
includes the plural and the plural includes the singular; (ii) "or" and "either"
are not exclusive and "include" and "including" are not limiting; (iii) a
reference to any agreement or other contract includes permitted supplements and
amendments; (iv) a reference to a law includes any amendment or modification to
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such law and any rules or regulations issued thereunder; (v) a reference to
generally accepted accounting principles refers to United States generally
accepted accounting principles; (vi) a reference in this Agreement to an
Article, Section, Annex, Exhibit or Schedule is to the Article, Section, Annex,
Exhibit or Schedule of this Agreement; and (vii) capitalized terms used and not
defined in the Annexes, Exhibits or Schedules attached to this Agreement shall
have the meanings set forth in this Agreement.

*** Confidential information omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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(c) Whenever any party makes any representation, warranty or other
statement to such party's knowledge, such party will be deemed to have made due
inquiry, including due inquiry by any officer or director of such party, into
the subject matter of such representation, warranty or other statement.

Section 8.2 Relationship; Nonexclusive Engagement. SeraCare
acknowledges that it is an independent contractor and not an agent, employee or
representative of Quest Diagnostics and that neither it nor its personnel is
entitled to any Quest Diagnostics' employment rights or benefits including, but
not limited to, workers' compensation insurance, disability insurance or any
other employee benefits available to Quest Diagnostics employees. This
Agreement shall not create any partnership or joint venture between the parties,
except to the extent required by law and contemplated by Schedule A hereto.

Section 8.3 Assignment. Neither party shall subcontract, assign or

otherwise transfer (by operation of law or otherwise) any portion of its
obligations without the prior, written approval of the other party.

Section 8.4 Entire Agreement, Section Headings. This Agreement sets

forth the entire understanding of the parties as to the subject matter covered

herein. It supersedes all prior proposals, agreements, understandings,
representations and conditions. It may not be changed or amended except by a
writing signed on behalf of both parties. Section headings contained in this

Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect, in any way, the
meaning and interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 8.5 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the
other for failure or delay in the performance of a required obligation if such
failure or delay is caused (i) solely by the actions or omissions of the other
party, or (ii) by an act of any federal, state or local governmental authority,
act of God, strike, riot, fire, flood, lightning, electrical power failure,
natural disaster or other similar cause beyond its control. FEach party shall
immediately provide written notice to the other of any such condition. Either
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party may terminate this Agreement due to such condition if such force majeure
continues for a period of forty-five days.

Section 8.6 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is
found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the wvalidity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining portion of such provision, and all other provisions shall in no way be
affected or impaired thereby.

Section 8.7 Notices. Any notices relating to this Agreement shall be
in writing and be sent by overnight courier service addressed to the party or at
such different address as a party has advised to the other party in writing and
shall be deemed given and received when actually received. A copy of any notice
to Quest Diagnostics shall also include a notice to its General Counsel, at the
same address.

Section 8.8 Waivers. Waivers, to be binding, must be in writing and
signed by the party whose right is waived. No waiver of the terms of this
Agreement or failure by either party to exercise any option, right or privilege
on any occasion or through the course of dealing
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shall be construed to be a waiver of the same or any other provision or right on
any other occasion.

Section 8.9 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed,
interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard
to its conflict of laws provisions.

Section 8.10 Publicity; Use of Name. Except for any press release to
be issued by the parties, the form of which shall be agreed prior to any
issuance, neither party shall, without the prior written approval of the other
party, make any press release or other public announcement concerning this
Agreement or the relationship between the parties contemplated hereby. Neither
party may use the name, product names, logos, or trademarks of the other party
without the prior written consent of the other party.

Section 8.11 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement and the

exhibits and schedules hereto may be executed simultaneously in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
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executed as of the day and year first set forth above.
QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED
By: /s/ Kenneth R. Finnegan
Title: Corporate Vice President,

Business Development

SERACARE, INC.
By: /s/ Barry Plost
Title: President and

Chief Executive Officer
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LIST OF OMITTED SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS

The following Schedules and Exhibits to the Collaboration Agreement have been
omitted from this Exhibit and shall be furnished to the Commission upon request:

Schedule A Tax Matters

Schedule I List of Seracare and Quest Diagnostics Dedicated Employees

Exhibit Document

C Form of Patient Consent

D Form of Remnant Customer Certification
E Form of Weekly Donor Activity Report
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Exhibit 10.7

STANDARD INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL MULTI-TENANT LEASE - GROSS
AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION

1. Basic Provisions ("Basic Provisions").

1.1 Parties: This Lease ("Lease"), dated for reference purposes only,
April 16, 1998, is made by and between Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. ("Lessor")
and The Western States Group, Inc. ("Lessee") (collectively the "Parties," or
individually a "Party").

1.2 (a) Premises: That certain portion of the Building, including all
improvements therein or to be provided by Lessor under the terms of this Lease,
common known by the street address of 4095 Calle Platino, Suite F, located in
the City of Oceanside, County of San Diego, State of California, with zip code
92056, as outlined on Exhibit B attached hereto ("Premises"). The "Building" is
that certain building containing the Premises and generally described as
(describe briefly the nature of the Building): an office/industrial building
which is part of a 33,000 square foot project known as the Del Oro Gateway
Commerce Centre. Suite F is approximately 5,038 square feet. 1In addition to
Lessee's rights to use and occupy the Premises as hereinafter specified, Lessee
shall have non-exclusive rights to the Common Areas (as defined in Paragraph 2.7
below) as hereinafter specified, but shall not have any rights to the roof,
exterior walls or utility raceways on the Building or to any other buildings in
the Industrial Center. The Premises, the Building, the Common Areas, the land
upon which they are located, along with all other buildings and improvements
thereon, are herein collectively referred to as the "Industrial Center." (Also
see Paragraph 2.)

1.2 (b) Parking: Fifteen (15) unreserved vehicle parking spaces
("Unreserved Parking Spaces"); and zero (0) reserved vehicle parking spaces
("Reserved Parking Spaces"). (Also see Paragraph 2.6.)

1.3 Term: 5 years and 0 months ("Original Term") commencing August 1,
1998 ("Commencement Date") and ending July 31, 2003 ("Expiration Date"). (Also
see Paragraph 3.)

1.4 Early Possession: N/A ("Early Possession Date"). (Also see
Paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3.)

1.5 Base Rent: $3,224.32 per month ("Base Rent"), payable on the 1/st/
day of each month commencing August 1, 1998. (Also see Paragraph 4.)

[X] If this box is checked, this Lease provides for the Base Rent to be
adjusted per Addendum attached hereto.

1.6 (a) Base Rent Paid Upon Execution: $3,224.32 as Base Rent for the
period August 1998.

1.6 (b) Lessee's Share of Common Area Operating Expenses: Fifteen & 3/10

percent (15.3%) ("Lessee's Share") as determined by [X] pro rata square
footage of the Premises as compared to the total square footage of the Building
or [ ] other criteria as described in Addendum

1.7 Security Deposit: $3,500.00 ("Security Deposit"). (Also see

Paragraph 5.)

1.8 Permitted Use: Offices, warehousing and manufacturing of medical
related products ("Permitted Use"). (Also see Paragraph 6.)

1.9 Insuring Party: Lessor is the "Insuring Party." (Also See Paragraph
1.10 (a) Real Estate Brokers. The following real estate broker(s)

(collectively, the "Brokers") and brokerage relationships exist in this
transaction and are consented to by the Parties (check applicable boxes) :
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[X] Business Real Estate Brokerage Co. represents Lessor exclusively ("Lessor's
Broker") ;

[X] Lee & Assoclates represents Lessee exclusively ("Lessee's Broker"); or

[] represents both Lessor and Lessee ("Dual Agency").
(Also see Paragraph 15.)

1.10 (b) Payment to Brokers. Upon the execution of this Lease by both
Parties, Lessor shall pay to said Broker(s) jointly, or in such separate shares
as they may mutually designate in writing, a fee as set forth in a separate

written agreement between Lessor and said Broker(s) (or in the event there is no
separate written agreement between Lessor and said Broker(s), the sum of
$ (per agreement) for brokerage services rendered by said

Broker (s) in connection with this transaction.

1.11 Guarantor. The obligations of the Lessee under this Lease are to be
guaranteed by N/A . ("Guarantor"). (Also see Paragraph 37.)

1.12 Addenda and Exhibits. Attached hereto is an Addendum or Addenda
consisting of Paragraphs 49 through 56, and Exhibits A through D, all of which
constitute a part of this Lease.

MULTI-TENANT - GROSS Initials
_1_
2. Premises, Parking and Common Areas.
2.1 Letting. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases

from Lessor, the Premises, for the term, at the rental, and upon all of the
terms, covenants and conditions set forth in this Lease. Unless otherwise
provided herein, any statement of square footage set forth in this Lease, or
that may have been used in calculating rental and/or Common Area Operating
Expenses, is an approximation which Lessor and Lessee agree is reasonable and
the rental and Lessee's Share (as defined in Paragraph 1.6(b)) based thereon is
not subject to revision whether or not the actual square footage is more or
less.

2.2 Condition. Lessor shall deliver the Premises to Lessee clean and free
of debris on the Commencement Date and warrants to Lessee that the existing
plumbing, electrical systems, fire sprinkler systems, lighting, air conditioning
and heating systems and loading doors, if any, in the Premises, other than those
constructed by Lessee, shall be in good operating condition on the Commencement
Date. If a non-compliance with said warranty exists as of the Commencement
Date, Lessor shall, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, promptly after
receipt of written notice from Lessee setting forth with specificity the nature
and extent such non-compliance, rectify same at Lessor's expense. If Lessee
does not give Lessor written notice of a non-compliance with this warranty
within thirty (30) days after the Commencement Date, correction of that non-
compliance shall be the obligation of Lessee at Lessee's sole cost and expense.

2.3 Compliance with Covenants, Restrictions and Building Code. Lessor
warrants that any improvements (other than those constructed by Lessee or at
Lessee's direction) on or in the Premises which have been constructed or
installed by Lessor or with Lessor's consent or at Lessor's direction shall
comply with all applicable covenants or restrictions of record and applicable
building codes, regulations and ordinances in effect on the Commencement Date.
Lessor further warrants to Lessee that Lessor has no knowledge of any claim
having been made by any governmental agency that a violation or violations of
applicable building codes, regulations, or ordinances exist with regard to the
Premises as of the Commencement Date. Said warranties shall not apply to any
Alterations or Utility Installations (defined in Paragraph 7.3(a)) made or to be
made by Lessee. If the Premises do not comply with said warranties, Lessor
shall, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, promptly after receipt of
written notice from Lessee given within six (6) months following the
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Commencement Date and setting forth with specificity the nature and extent of
such non-compliance, take such action, at Lessor's expense, as may be reasonable
or appropriate to rectify the non-compliance. Lessor makes no warranty that the
Permitted Use in Paragraph 1.8 is permitted for the premises under Applicable
Laws (as defined in Paragraph 2.4).

2.4 Acceptance of Premises. Lessee hereby acknowledges: (a) that it has
been advised by the Broker(s) to satisfy itself with respect to the condition of
the Premises (including but not limited to the electrical and fire sprinkler
systems, security, environmental aspects, seismic and earthquake requirements,
and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and applicable zoning,
municipal, county, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations and any
covenants or restrictions of record (collectively, "Applicable Laws") and the
present and future suitability of the Premises for Lessee's intended use; (b)
that Lessee has made such investigation as it deems necessary with reference to
such matters, is satisfied with reference thereto, and assumes all
responsibility therefore as the same relate to Lessee's occupancy of the
Premises and/or the terms of this Lease; and (c) that neither Lessor, nor any of
Lessor's agents, has made any oral or written representations or warranties with
respect to said matters other than as set forth in this Lease.

2.5 Lessee as Prior Owner/Occupant. The warranties made by Lessor in this
Paragraph 2 shall be of no force or effect if immediately prior to the date set
forth in Paragraph 1.1 Lessee was the owner or occupant of the Premises. 1In
such event, Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, correct any non-
compliance of the Premises with said warranties.

2.6 Vehicle Parking. Lessee shall be entitled to use the number of
Unreserved Parking Spaces and Reserved Parking Spaces specified in Paragraph
1.2(b) on those portions of the Common Areas designated from time to time by
Lessor for parking. Lessee shall not use more parking spaces than said number.
Said parking spaces shall be used for parking by vehicles no larger than full-
size passenger automobiles or pick-up trucks, herein called "Permitted Size

Vehicles." Vehicles other than Permitted Size Vehicles shall be parked and
loaded or unloaded as directed by Lessor in the Rules and Regulations (as
defined in Paragraph 40) issued by Lessor. (Also see Paragraph 2.9.)

(a) Lessee shall not permit or allow any vehicles that belong to or
are controlled by Lessee or Lessee's employees, suppliers, shippers, customers,
contractors or invitees to be loaded, unloaded, or parked in areas other than
those designated by Lessor for such activities.

(b) If Lessee permits or allows any of the prohibited activities
described in this Paragraph 2.6, then Lessor shall have the right, without
notice, in addition to such other rights and remedies that it may have, to
remove or tow away the vehicle involved and charge the cost to Lessee, which
cost shall be immediately payable upon demand by Lessor.

(c) Lessor shall at the Commencement Date of this Lease, provide the
parking facilities required by Applicable Law.

2.7 Common Areas —-- Definition. The term "Common Areas" is defined as all
areas and facilities outside the Premises and within the exterior boundary line
of the Industrial Center and interior utility raceways within the Premises that
are provided and designated by Lessor from time to time for the general non-
exclusive use of Lessor, Lessee and other lessees of the Industrial Center and
their respective employees, suppliers, shippers,

MULTI-TENANT - GROSS Initials

customers, contractors and invitees, including parking areas, loading and
unloading areas, trash areas, roadways, sidewalks, walkways, parkways, driveways
and landscaped areas.

2.8 Common Areas —-- Lessee's Rights. Lessor hereby grants to Lessee, for
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the benefit of Lessee and its employees, suppliers, shippers, contractors,
customers and invitees, during the term of this Lease, the non-exclusive right
to use, in common with others entitled to such use, the Common Areas as they
exist from time to time, subject to any rights, powers, and privileges reserved
by Lessor under the terms hereof or under the terms of any rules and regulations
or restrictions governing the use of the Industrial Center. Under no
circumstances shall the right herein granted to use the Common Areas be deemed
to include the right to store any property, temporarily or permanently, in the
Common Areas. Any such storage shall be permitted only by the prior written
consent of Lessor or Lessor's designated agent, which consent may be revoked at
any time. In the event that any unauthorized storage shall occur then Lessor
shall have the right, without notice, in addition to such other rights and
remedies that it may have, to remove the property and charge the cost to Lessee,
which cost shall be immediately payable upon demand by Lessor.

2.9 Common Areas —-- Rules and Regulations. Lessor or such other person(s)
as Lessor may appoint shall have the exclusive control and management of the
Common Areas and shall have the right, from time to time, to establish, modify,
amend and enforce reasonable Rules and Regulations with respect thereto in
accordance with Paragraph 40. Lessee agrees to abide by and conform to all such
Rules and Regulations, and to cause its employees, suppliers, shippers,
customers, contractors and invitees to so abide and conform. Lessor shall not
be responsible to Lessee for the non-compliance with said rules and regulations
by other lessees of the Industrial Center.

2.10 Common Areas -- Changes. Lessor shall have the right, in Lessor's
sole discretion, from time to time:

(a) To make changes to the Common Areas, including, without
limitation, changes in the location, size, shape and number of driveways,
entrances, parking spaces, parking areas, loading and unloading areas, ingress,
egress, direction of traffic, landscaped areas, walkways and utility raceways;

(b) To close temporarily any of the Common Areas for maintenance
purposes so long as reasonable access to the Premises remains available;

(c) To designate other land outside the boundaries of the Industrial
Center to be a part of the Common Areas;

(d) To add additional buildings and improvements to the Common Areas;

(e) To use the Common Areas while engaged in making additional
improvements, repairs or alternations to the Industrial Center, or any portion
thereof; and

(f) To do and perform such other acts and make such other changes in,
to or with respect to the Common Areas and Industrial Center as Lessor may, in
the exercise of sound business judgment, deem to be appropriate.

3. Term.

3.1 Term. The Commencement Date, Expiration Date and Original Term of
this Lease are as specified in Paragraph 1.3.

3.2 Early Possession. If an Early Possession Date is specified in
Paragraph 1.4 and if Lessee totally or partially occupies the Premises after the
Early Possession Date but prior to the Commencement Date, the obligation to pay
Base Rent shall be abated for the period of such early occupancy. All other
terms of this Lease, however (including but not limited to the obligations to
pay Lessee's Share of Common Area Operating Expenses and to carry the insurance
required by Paragraph 8), shall be in effect during such period. Any such early
possession shall not affect nor advance the Expiration Date of the Original
Term.

3.3 Delay in Possession. If for any reason Lessor cannot deliver
possession of the Premises to Lessee by the Early Possession Date, if one is
specified in Paragraph 1.4, or if no Early Possession Date is specified, by the
Commencement Date, Lessor shall not be subject to any liability therefor, nor
shall such failure affect the validity of this Lease, or the obligations of
Lessee hereunder, or extend the term hereof, but in such case, Lessee shall not,
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except as otherwise provided herein, be obligated to pay rent or perform any
other obligation of Lessee under the terms of this Lease until Lessor delivers
possession of the Premises to Lessee. If possession of the Premises is not
delivered to Lessee within sixty (60) days after the Commencement Date, Lessee
may, at its option, by notice in writing to Lessor within ten (10) days after
the end of said sixty (60) day period, cancel this Lease, in which event the
parties shall be discharged from all obligations hereunder; provided further,
however, that if such written notice of Lessee is not received by Lessor within
said ten (10) day period, Lessee's right to cancel this Lease hereunder shall
terminate and be of no further force or effect. Except as may be otherwise
provided, and regardless of when the Original Term actually commences, if
possession is not tendered to Lessee when required by this Lease and Lessee does
not terminate this Lease, as aforesaid, the period free of the obligation to pay
Base Rent, if any, that Lessee would otherwise have enjoyed shall run from the
date of delivery of possession and continue for a period equal to the period
during which the Lessee would have otherwise enjoyed under the terms hereof, but
minus any days of delay caused by the acts, changes or omissions of Lessee.
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4. Rent.

4.1 Base Rent. Lessee shall pay Base Rent and other rent or charges, as
the same may be adjusted from time to time, to Lessor in lawful money of the
United States, without offset or deduction, on or before the day on which it is
due under the terms of this Lease. Base Rent and all other rent and charges for
any period during the term hereof which is for less than one full month shall be
prorated based upon the actual number of days of the month involved. Payment of
Base Rent and other charges shall be made to Lessor at its address stated herein
or to such other persons or at such other addresses as Lessor may from time to
time designate in writing to Lessee.

4.2 Common Area Operating Expenses. Lessee shall pay to Lessor during the
term hereof, in addition to the Base Rent, Lessee's Share (as specified in
Paragraph 1.6(b)) of all Common Area Operating Expenses, as hereinafter defined,
during each calendar year of the term of this Lease, in accordance with the
following provisions:

(a) "Common Area Operating Expenses" are defined, for purposes of this
Lease, as all costs incurred by Lessor relating to the ownership and operation
of the Industrial Center, including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) The operation, repair and maintenance, in neat, clean, good
order and condition, of the following:

(aa) The Common Areas, including parking areas, loading and
unloading areas, trash areas, roadways, sidewalks,
walkways, parkways, driveways, landscaped areas,
striping, bumpers, irrigation systems, Common Area
lighting facilities, fences and gates, elevators and
roof.

(bb) Exterior signs and any tenant directories.
(cc) Fire detection and sprinkler systems.

(i1) The cost of water, gas, electricity and telephone to
service the Common Areas.

(iii) Trash disposal, property management and security services,
and the costs of any environmental inspections.

(iv) Reserves set aside for maintenance and repair of Common
Areas.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

(v) Any increase above the Base Real Property Taxes (as defined
in Paragraph 10.2 (b)) for the Building and the Common
Areas.

(vi) Any "Insurance Cost Increase" (as defined in Paragraph
8.1).

(vii) The cost of insurance carried by Lessor with respect to the
Common Areas.

(viii) Any deductible portion of an insured loss concerning the
Building or the Common Areas.

(ix) Any other services to be provided by Lessor that are stated
elsewhere in this Lease to be a Common Area Operating
Expense.

(b) Any Common Area Operating Expenses and Real Property Taxes that
are specifically attributable to the Building or to any other building in the
Industrial Center or to the operation, repair and maintenance thereof, shall be
allocated entirely to the Building or to such other building. However, any
Common Area Operating Expenses and Real Property Taxes that are not specifically
attributable to the Building or to any other building or to the operation,
repair and maintenance thereof, shall be equitably allocated by Lessor to all
buildings in the Industrial Center.

(c) The inclusion of the improvements, facilities and services set
forth in Subparagraph 4.2 (a) shall not be deemed to impose an obligation upon
Lessor to either have said improvements or facilities or to provide those
services unless the industrial Center already has the same, Lessor already
provides the services, or Lessor has agreed elsewhere in this Lease to provide
the same or some of them.

(d) Lessee's Share of Common Area Operating Expenses shall be payable
by Lessee within ten (10) days after a reasonably detailed statement of actual
expenses 1s presented to Lessee by Lessor. At Lessor's option, however, an
amount may be estimated by Lessor from time to time of Lessee's Share of annual
Common Area Operating Expenses and the same shall be payable monthly or
quarterly, as Lessor shall designate, during each 12-month period of the Lease
term, on the same day as the Base Rent is due hereunder. Lessor shall deliver
to Lessee within sixty (60) days after the expiration of each calendar year a
reasonably detailed statement showing Lessee's Share of the actual Common Area
Operating Expenses incurred during the preceding year. If Lessee's payments
under this Paragraph 4.2 (d) during said preceding year exceed Lessee's Share as
indicated on said statement, Lessee shall be credited the amount of such over-
payment against Lessee's Share of Common Area Operating Expenses next becoming
due. If Lessee's payments under this Paragraph 4.2 (d) during said preceding
year were less than Lessee's Share as indicated on said statement, Lessee shall
pay to Lessor the amount of the deficiency within ten (10) days after delivery
by Lessor to Lessee of said statement.

MULTI-TENANT - GROSS Initials

5. Security Deposit. Lessee shall deposit with Lessor upon Lessee's execution
hereof the Security Deposit set forth in Paragraph 1.7 as security for Lessee's
faithful performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease. If Lessee fails
to pay Base Rent or other rent or charges due hereunder, or otherwise Defaults
under this Lease (as defined in Paragraph 13.1), Lessor may use, apply or retain
all or any portion of said Security Deposit for the payment of any amount due
Lessor or to reimburse or compensate Lessor for any liability, cost, expense,
loss or damage (including attorneys' fees) which Lessor may suffer or incur by
reason thereof. If Lessor uses or applies all or any portion of said Security
Deposit, Lessee shall within ten (10) days after written request therefore
deposit monies with Lessor sufficient to restore said Security Deposit to the
full amount required by this Lease. Any time the Base Rent increases during the
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term of this Lease, Lessee shall, upon written request from Lessor, deposit
additional monies with Lessor as an addition to the Security Deposit so that the
total amount of the Security Deposit shall at all times bear the same proportion
to the then current Base Rent as the initial Security Deposit bears to the
initial Base Rent set forth in Paragraph 1.5. Lessor shall not be required to
keep all or any part of the Security Deposit separate from its general accounts.
Lessor shall, at the expiration or earlier termination of the term hereof and
after Lessee has vacated the Premises, return to Lessee (or, at Lessor's option,
to the last assignee, if any, of Lessee's interest herein), that portion of the
Security Deposit not used or applied by Lessor. Unless otherwise expressly
agreed in writing by Lessor, no part of the Security Deposit shall be considered
to be held in trust, to bear interest or other increment for its use, or to be
prepayment for any monies to be paid by Lessee under this Lease.

6. Use.
6.1 Permitted Use.

(a) Lessee shall use and occupy the Premises only for the Permitted
Use set forth in Paragraph 1.8, or any other legal use which is reasonably
comparable thereto, and for no other purpose. Lessee shall not use or permit
the use of the Premises in a manner that is unlawful, creates waste or a
nuisance, or that disturbs owners and/or occupants of, or causes damage to the
Premises or neighboring premises or properties.

(b) Lessor hereby agrees to not unreasonably withhold or delay its
consent to any written request by Lessee, Lessee's assignees or subtenants, and
by prospective assignees and subtenants of Lessee, its assignees and subtenants,
for a modification of said Permitted Use, so long as the same will not impair
the structural integrity of the improvements on the Premises or in the Building
or the mechanical or electrical systems therein, does not conflict with uses by
other lessees, is not significantly more burdensome to the Premises or the
Building and the improvements thereon, and is otherwise permissible pursuant to
this Paragraph 6. If Lessor elects to withhold such consent, Lessor shall
within five (5) business days after such request give a written notification of
same, which notice shall include an explanation of Lessor's reasonable
objections to the change in use.

6.2 Hazardous Substances.

(a) Reportable Uses Require Consent. The term "Hazardous Substance"
as used in this Lease shall mean any product, substance, chemical, material or
waste whose presence, nature, quantity and/or intensity of existence, use,
manufacture, disposal, transportation, spill, release or effect, either by
itself or in combination with other materials expected to be on the Premises, is
either: (i) potentially injurious to the public health, safety or welfare, the
environment, or the Premises; (ii) regulated or monitored by any governmental
authority; or (iii) a basis for potential liability of Lessor to any
governmental agency or third party under any applicable statute or common law
theory. Hazardous Substance shall include, but not be limited to, hydrocarbons,
petroleum, gasoline, crude oil or any products or by-products thereof. Lessee
shall not engage in any activity in or about the Premises which constitutes a
Reportable Use (as hereinafter defined) of Hazardous Substances without the
express prior written consent of Lessor and compliance in a timely manner (at
Lessee's sole cost and expense) with all Applicable Requirements (as defined in
Paragraph 6.3). "Reportable Use" shall mean (i) the installation or use of any
above or below ground storage tank, (ii) the generation, possession, storage,
use, transportation, or disposal of a Hazardous Substance that requires a permit
from, or with respect to which a report, notice, registration or business plan
is required to be filed with, any governmental authority, and (iii) the presence
in, on or about the Premises of a Hazardous Substance with respect to which any
Applicable Laws require that a notice be given to persons entering or occupying
the Premises or neighboring properties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee
may, without Lessor's prior consent, but upon notice to Lessor and in compliance
with all Applicable Requirements, use any ordinary and customary materials
reasonably required to be used by Lessee in the normal course of the Permitted
Use, so long as such use is not a Reportable Use and does not expose the
Premises or neighboring properties to any meaningful risk of contamination or
damage or expose Lessor to any liability therefor. 1In addition, Lessor may (but
without any obligation to do so) condition its consent to any Reportable Use of
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any Hazardous Substance by Lessee upon Lessee's giving Lessor such additional
assurances as Lessor, in its reasonable discretion, deems necessary to protect
itself, the public, the Premises and the environment against damage,
contamination or injury and/or liability therefor, including but not limited to
the installation (and, at Lessor's option, removal on or before Lease expiration
or earlier termination) of reasonably necessary protective modifications to the
Premises (such as concrete encasements) and/or the deposit of an additional
Security Deposit under Paragraph 5 hereof.

(b) Duty to Inform Lessor. If Lessee knows, or has reasonable cause
to believe, that a Hazardous Substance has come to be located in, on, under or
about the Premises or the Building, other than as previously consented to by
Lessor, Lessee shall immediately give Lessor written notice thereof, together
with a copy of any statement, report, notice, registration, application, permit,
business plan, license, claim, action, or proceeding given to, or received from,
any governmental authority or private party concerning the presence, spill,
release, discharge of, or exposure to, such Hazardous Substance including but
not limited to all such documents as may be involved in any Reportable Use
involving the Premises. Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous
Substance to be spilled or released in, on, under or about the Premises
(including, without limitation, through the plumbing or sanitary sewer system).
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(c) Indemnification. Lessee shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold
Lessor, its agents, employees, lenders and ground lessor, it any, and the
Premises, harmless from and against any and all damages, liabilities, judgments,
costs, claims, liens, expenses, penalties, loss of permits and attorneys' and
consultants' fees arising out of or involving any Hazardous Substance brought
onto the Premises by or for Lessee or by anyone under Lessee's control.
Lessee's obligations under this Paragraph 6.2 (c) shall include, but not be
limited to, the effects of any contamination or injury to person, property or
the environment created or suffered by Lessee, and the cost of investigation
(including consultants' and attorneys' fees and testing), removal, remediation,
restoration and/or abatement thereof, or of any contamination therein involved,
and shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. No
termination, cancellation or release agreement entered into by Lessor and Lessee
shall release Lessee from its obligations under this Lease with respect to
Hazardous Substances, unless specifically so agreed by Lessor in writing at the
time of such agreement.

6.3 Lessee's Compliance with Requirements. Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole
cost and expense, fully, diligently and in a timely manner, comply with all
"Applicable Requirements;" which term is used in this Lease to mean all laws,
rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, covenants, easements and
restrictions of record, permits, the requirements of any applicable fire
insurance underwriter or rating bureau, and the recommendations of Lessor's
engineers and/or consultants, relating in any manner to the Premises (including
but not limited to matters pertaining to (i) industrial hygiene, (ii)
environmental conditions on, in, under or about the Premises, including soil and
groundwater conditions, and (iii) the use, generation, manufacture, production,
installation, maintenance, removal, transportation, storage, spill, or release
of any Hazardous Substance), now in effect or which may hereafter come into
effect. Lessee shall, within five (5) days after receipt of Lessor's written
request, provide Lessor with copies of all documents and information, including
but not limited to permits, registrations, manifests, applications, reports and
certificates, evidencing Lessee's compliance with any Applicable Requirements
specified by Lessor, and shall immediately upon receipt, notify Lessor in
writing (with copies of any documents involved) of any threatened or actual
claim, notice, citation, warning, complaint or report pertaining to or involving
failure by Lessee or the Premises to comply with any Applicable Requirements.

6.4 Inspection; Compliance with Law. Lessor, Lessor's agents, employees,
contractors and designated representatives, and the holders of any mortgages,
deeds of trust or ground leases on the Premises ("Lenders") shall have the right
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to enter the Premises at any time in the case of an emergency, and otherwise at
reasonable times, for the purpose of inspecting the condition of the Premises
and for verifying compliance by Lessee with this Lease and all Applicable
Requirements (as defined in Paragraph 6.3), and Lessor shall be entitled to
employ experts and/or consultants in connection therewith to advise Lessor with
respect to Lessee's activities, including but not limited to Lessee's
installation, operation, use, monitoring, maintenance, or removal of any
Hazardous Substance on or from the Premises. The costs and expenses of any such
inspections shall be paid by the party requesting same, unless a Default or
Breach of this Lease by Lessee or a violation of Applicable Requirements or a
contamination, caused or materially contributed to by Lessee, is found to exist
or to be imminent, or unless the inspection is requested or ordered by a
governmental authority as the result of any such existing or imminent violation
or contamination. In such case, Lessee shall upon request reimburse Lessor or
Lessor's Lender, as the case may be, for the costs and expenses of such
inspections.

7. Maintenance, Repairs, Utility Installations, Trade Fixtures and
Alterations.

7.1 Lessee's Obligations.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 2.2 (Condition), 2.3
(Compliance with Covenants, Restrictions and Building Code), 7.2 (Lessor's
Obligations), 9 (Damage or Destruction), and 14 (Condemnation), Lessee shall, at
Lessee's sole cost and expense and at all times, keep the Premises and every
part thereof in good order, condition and repair (whether or not such portion of
the Premises requiring repair, or the means of repairing the same, are
reasonably or readily accessible to Lessee, and whether or not the need for such
repairs occurs as a result of Lessee's use, any prior use, the elements or the
age of such portion of the Premises), including, without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, all equipment or facilities specifically serving the Premises,
such as plumbing, heating, air conditioning, ventilating, electrical, lighting
facilities, boilers, fired or unfired pressure vessels, fire hose connections if
within the Premises, fixtures, interior walls, interior surfaces of exterior
walls, ceilings, floors, windows, doors, plate glass, and skylights, but
excluding any items which are the responsibility of Lessor pursuant to Paragraph
7.2 below. Lessee, in keeping the Premises in good order, condition and repair,
shall exercise and perform good maintenance practices. Lessee's obligations
shall include restorations, replacements or renewals when necessary to keep the
Premises and all improvements thereon or a part thereof in good order, condition
and state of repair.

(b) Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, procure and
maintain a contract, with copies to Lessor, in customary form and substance for
and with a contractor specializing and experienced in the inspection,
maintenance and service of the heating, air conditioning and ventilation system
for the Premises. However, Lessor reserves the right, upon notice to Lessee, to
procure and maintain the contract for the heating, air conditioning and
ventilating systems, and if Lessor so elects, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor,
upon demand, for the cost thereof.

(c) If Lessee fails to perform Lessee's obligations under this
Paragraph 7.1, Lessor may enter upon the Premises after ten (10) days' prior
written notice to Lessee (except in the case of an emergency, in which case no
notice shall be required), perform such obligations an Lessee's behalf, and put
the Premises in good order, condition and repair, in accordance with Paragraph
13.2 below.

7.2 Lessor's Obligations. Subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 2.2

(Condition), 2.3 (Compliance with Covenants, Restrictions and Building Code),
4.2 (Common Area Operating Expenses), 6 (Use), 7.1 (Lessee's
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Obligations), 9 (Damage or Destruction) and 14 (Condemnation), Lessor, subject
to reimbursement pursuant to Paragraph 4.2 shall keep in good order, condition
and repair the foundations, exterior walls, structural condition of interior
bearing walls, exterior roof, fire sprinkler and/or standpipe and hose (if
located in the Common Areas) or other automatic fire extinguishing system
including fire alarm and/or smoke detection systems and equipment, fire
hydrants, parking lots, walkways, parkways, driveways, landscaping, fences,
signs and utility systems serving the Common Areas and all parts thereof, as
well as providing the services for which there is a Common Area Operating
Expense pursuant to Paragraph 4.2. Lessor shall not be obligated to paint the
exterior or interior surfaces of exterior walls nor shall Lessor be obligated to
maintain, repair or replace windows, doors or plate glass of the Premises.
Lessee expressly waives the benefit of any statute now or hereafter in effect
which would otherwise afford Lessee the right to make repairs at Lessor's
expense or to terminate this Lease because of Lessor's failure to keep the
Building, Industrial Center or Common Areas to good order, condition and repair.

7.3 Utility Installations, Trade Fixtures, Alterations.

(a) Definitions; Consent Required. The term "Utility Installations"
is used in this Lease to refer to all air lines, power panels, electrical
distribution, security, fire protection systems, communications systems,
lighting fixtures, heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment,
plumbing, and fencing in, on or about the Premises. The term "Trade Fixtures"
shall mean Lessee's machinery and equipment which can be removed without doing
material damage to the Premises. The term "Alterations" shall mean any
modification of the improvements on the Premises which are provided by Lessor
under the terms of this Lease, other than Utility Installations or Trade
Fixtures. "Lessee-Owned Alterations and/or Utility Installations" are defined
as Alterations and/or Utility Installations made by Lessee that are not yet
owned by Lessor pursuant to Paragraph 7.4 (a). Lessee shall not make nor cause
to be made any Alterations or Utility Installations in, on, under or about the
Premises without Lessor's prior written consent. Lessee may, however, make non-
structural Utility Installations to the interior of the Premises (excluding the
roof) without Lessor's consent but upon notice to Lessor, so long as they are
not visible from the outside of the Premises, do not involve puncturing,
relocating or removing the roof or any existing walls, or changing or
interfering with the fire sprinkler or fire detection systems and the cumulative
cost thereof during the term of this Lease as extended does not exceed
$2,500.00.

(b) Consent. Any Alterations or Utility Installations that Lessee
shall desire to make and which require the consent of the Lessor shall be
presented to Lessor in written form with detailed plans. All consents given by
Lessor, whether by virtue of Paragraph 7.3 (a) or by subsequent specific consent,
shall be deemed conditioned upon: (i) Lessee's acquiring all applicable permits
required by governmental authorities; (ii) the furnishing of copies of such
permits together with a copy of the plans and specifications for the Allocation
or Utility Installation to Lessor prior to commencement of the work thereon: and
(iii) the compliance by Lessee with all conditions of said permits in a prompt
and expeditious manner. Any Alterations or Utility Installations by Lessee
during the term of this Lease shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner,
with good and sufficient materials, and be in compliance with) all Applicable
Requirements. Lessee shall promptly upon completion thereof furnish Lessor with
as-built plans and specifications therefor. Lessor may (but without obligation
to do so) condition its consent to any requested Alteration or Utility
Installation that costs $2,500.00 or more upon Lessee's providing Lessor with a
lien and completion bond in an amount equal to one and one-half times the
estimated cost of such Alteration or Utility Installation.

(c) Lien Protection. Lessee shall pay when due all claims for labor
or materials furnished or alleged to have been furnished to or for Lessee at or
for use on the Premises, which claims are or may be secured by any mechanic's or
materialmen's lien against the Premises or any interest therein. Lessee shall
give Lessor not less than ten (10) days' notice prior to the Commencement of any
work in, on, or about the Premises, and Lessor shall have the right to post
notices of non-responsibility in or on the Premises as provided by law. If
Lessee shall, in good faith, contest the validity of any such lien, claim or
demand, then Lessee shall, at its sole expense, defend and protect itself,
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Lessor and the Premises against the same and shall pay and satisfy any such
adverse judgment that may be rendered thereon before the enforcement thereof
against the Lessor or the Premises. If Lessor shall require, Lessee shall
furnish to Lessor a surety bond satisfactory to Lessor in an amount equal to one
and one-half times the amount of such contested lien claim or demand,
indemnifying Lessor against liability for the same, as required by law for the
holding of the Premises free from the effect of such lien or claim. 1In
addition, Lessor may require Lessee to pay Lessor's attorneys' fees and costs in
participating in such action if Lessor shall decide it is to its best interest
to do so.

7.4 Ownership, Removal, Surrender, and Restoration.

(a) Ownership. Subject to Lessor's right to require their removal and
to cause Lessee to become the owner thereof as hereinafter provided in this
Paragraph 7.4, all Alterations and Utility Installations made to the Premises by
Lessee shall be the property of and owned by Lessee, but considered a part of
the Premises. Lessor may, at any time and at its option, elect in writing to
Lessee to be the owner of all or any specified part of the Lessee-Owned
Alterations and Utility Installations. Unless otherwise instructed per
Subparagraph 7.4 (b) hereof, all Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility
Installations shall, at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease,
become the property of Lessor and remain upon the Premises and be surrendered
with the Premises by Lessee.

(b) Removal. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Lessor may require
that any or all Lessee-Owned Alterations or Utility Installations be removed by
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, notwithstanding that their
installation may have been consented to by Lessor. Lessor may require the
removal at any time of all or any part of any Alterations or Utility
Installations made without the required consent of Lessor.

(c) Surrender/Restoration. Lessee shall surrender the Premises by the
end of the last day of the Lease term or any earlier termination date, clean and
free of debris and in good operating order, condition and
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state of repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted. Ordinary wear and tear shall
not include any damage or deterioration that would have been prevented by good
maintenance practice or by Lessee performing all of its obligations under this
Lease. Except as otherwise agreed or specified herein, the Premises, as
surrendered, shall include the Alterations and Utility Installations. The
obligation of Lessee shall include the repair of any damage occasioned by the
installation, maintenance or removal of Lessee's Trade Fixtures, furnishings,
equipment, and Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations, as well as
the removal of any storage tank installed by or for Lessee, and the removal,
replacement, or remediation of any soil, material or ground water contaminated
by Lessee, all as may then as required by Applicable Requirements and/or good
practice. Lessee's Trade Fixtures shall remain the property of Lessee and shall
be removed by Lessee subject to its obligation to repair and restore the
Premises per this Lease.

8. Insurance; Indemnity.
8.1 Payment of Premium Increases.

(a) As used herein, the term "Insurance Cost Increase" is defined as
any increase in the actual cost of the insurance applicable to the Building and
required to be carried by Lessor pursuant to Paragraphs 8.2 (b), 8.3(a) and
8.3 (b) ("Required Insurance"), over and above the Base Premium, as hereinafter
defined, calculated on an annual basis. "Insurance Cost Increase" shall
include, but not be limited to, requirements of the holder of a mortgage or deed
of trust covering the Premises, increased valuation of the Premises, and/or a
general premium rate increase. The term "Insurance Cost Increase" shall not,

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

however, include any premium increases resulting from the nature of the
occupancy of any other lessee of the Building. If the parties insert a dollar
amount in Paragraph 1.9, such amount shall be considered the "Base Premium." If
a dollar amount has not been inserted in Paragraph 1.9 and if the Building has
been previously occupied during the twelve (12) month period immediately
preceding the Commencement Date, the "Base Premium" shall be the annual premium
applicable to such twelve (12) month period. TIf the Building was not fully
occupied during such twelve (12) month period, the "Base Premium" shall be the
lowest annual premium reasonably obtainable for the Required Insurance as of the
Commencement Date, assuming the most nominal use possible of the Building. 1In
no event, however, shall Lessee be responsible for any portion of the premium
cost attributable to liability insurance coverage in excess of $1,000,000
procured under Paragraph 8.2 (b).

(b) Lessee shall pay any insurance Cost Increase to Lessor pursuant to
Paragraph 4.2. Premiums for policy periods commencing prior to, or extending
beyond, the term of this Lease shall be prorated to coincide with the
corresponding Commencement Date or Expiration Date.

8.2 Liability Insurance.

(a) Carried by Lessee. Lessee shall obtain and keep in force during
the term of this Lease a Commercial General Liability policy of insurance
protecting Lessee, Lessor and any Lender (s) whose names have been provided to
Lessee in writing (as additional insureds) against claims for bodily injury,
personal injury and property damage based upon, involving or arising out of the
ownership, use, occupancy or maintenance of the Premises and all areas
appurtenant thereto. Such insurance shall be on an occurrence basis providing
single limit coverage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with
an "Additional Insured-Managers or Lessors of Premises" endorsement and contain
the "Amendment of the Pollution Exclusion" endorsement for damage caused by
heat, smoke or fumes from a hostile fire. The policy shall not contain any
intra-insured exclusions as between insured persons or organizations, but shall
include coverage for liability assumed under this Lease as an "Insured contract"
for the performance of Lessee's indemnity obligations under this Lease. The
limits of said insurance required by this Lease or as carried by Lessee shall
not, however, limit the liability of Lessee nor relieve Lessee of any obligation
hereunder. All insurance to be carried by Lessee shall be primary to and not
contributory with any similar insurance carried by Lessor, whose insurance shall
be considered excess insurance only.

(b) Carried by Lessor. Lessor shall also maintain liability insurance
described in Paragraph 8.2 (a) above, in addition to and not in lieu of, the
insurance required to be maintained by Lessee. Lessee shall not be named as an
additional insured therein.

8.3 Property Insurance -- Building, Improvements and Rental Value.

(a) Building and Improvements. Lessor shall obtain and keep in force
during the term of this Lease a policy or policies in the name of Lessor, with
loss payable to Lessor and to any Lender(s), insuring against loss or damage to
the Premises. Such insurance shall be for full replacement cost, as the same
shall exist from time to time, or the amount required by any Lender(s), but in
no event more than the commercially reasonable and available insurable value
thereof if, by reason of the unique nature or age of the improvements involved,
such latter amount is less than full replacement cost. Lessee-Owned Alterations
and Utility Installations, Trade Fixtures and Lessee's personal property shall
be insured by Lessee pursuant to Paragraph 8.4. If the coverage is available
and commercially appropriate, Lessor's policy or policies shall insure against
all risks of direct physical loss or damage (except the perils of flood and/or
earthquake unless required by a Lender or included in the Base Premium),
including coverage for any additional costs resulting from debris removal and
reasonable amounts of coverage for the enforcement of any ordinance or law
regulating the reconstruction or replacement of any undamaged sections of the
Building required to be demolished or removed by reason of the enforcement of
any building, zoning, safety or land use laws as the result of a covered loss,
but not including plate glass insurance. Said policy or policies shall also
contain an agreed valuation provision in lieu of any co-insurance clause, waiver
of subrogation, and inflation guard protection causing an increase in the annual
property insurance coverage amount by a factor of not less than the adjusted
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U.S. Department of Labor Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the
city nearest to where the Premises are located.
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_8_
(b) Rental Value. Lessor shall also obtain and keep in force during

the term of this Lease a policy or policies in the name of Lessor, with loss
payable to Lessor and any Lender(s), insuring the loss of the full rental and
other charges payable by all lessees of the Building to Lessor for one year
(including all Real Property Taxes, insurance costs, all Common Area Operating
Expenses and any scheduled rental increases). Said insurance may provide that
in the event the Lease is terminated by reason of an insured loss, the period of
indemnity for such coverage shall be extended beyond the date of the completion
of repairs or replacement of the Premises, to provide for one full year's loss
of rental revenues from the date of any such loss. Said insurance shall contain
an agreed valuation provision in lieu of any co-insurance clause, and the amount
of coverage shall be adjusted annually to reflect the projected rental income,
Real Property Taxes, insurance premium costs and other expenses, if any,
otherwise payable, for the next 12-month period. Common Area Operating Expenses
shall include any deductible amount in the event of such loss.

(c) Adjacent Premises. Lessee shall pay for any increase in the
premiums for the property insurance of the Building and for the Common Areas or
other buildings in the Industrial Center if said increase is caused by Lessee's
acts, omissions, use or occupancy of the Premises.

(d) Lessee's Improvements. Since Lessor is the Insuring Party, Lessor
shall not be required to insure Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility
Installations unless the item in question has become the property of Lessor
under the terms of this Lease.

8.4 Lessee's Property Insurance. Subject to the requirements of Paragraph
8.5, Lessee at its cost shall either by separate policy or, at Lessor's option,
by endorsement to a policy already carried, maintain insurance coverage on all
of Lessee's personal property, Trade Fixtures and Lessee-Owned Alterations and
Utility Installations in, on, or about the Premises similar in coverage to that
carried by Lessor as the Insuring Party under Paragraph 8.3(a). Such insurance
shall be full replacement cost coverage with a deductible not to exceed $1,000
per occurrence. The proceeds from any such insurance shall be used by Lessee
for the replacement of personal property and the restoration of Trade Fixtures
and Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations. Upon request from
Lessor, Lessee shall provide Lessor with written evidence that such insurance is
in force.

8.5 Insurance Policies. Insurance required hereunder shall be in
companies duly licensed to transact business in the state where the Premises are
located, and maintaining during the policy term a "General Policyholders Rating"
of at least B+, V, or such other rating as may be required by a Lender, as set

forth in the most current issue of "Best's Insurance Guide." Lessee shall not
do or permit to be done anything which shall invalidate the insurance policies
referred to in this Paragraph 8. Lessee shall cause to be delivered to Lessor,

within seven (7) days after the earlier of the Early Possession Date or the
Commencement Date, certified copies of, or certificates evidencing the existence
and amounts of, the insurance required under Paragraphs 8.2(a) and 8.4. No such
policy shall be cancelable or subject to modification except after thirty (30)
days' prior written notice to Lessor. Lessee shall at least thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish Lessor with evidence of
renewals or "insurance binders" evidencing renewal thereof, or Lessor may order
such insurance and charge the cost thereof to Lessee, which amount shall be
payvable by Lessee to Lessor upon demand

8.6 Waiver of Subrogation. Without affecting any other rights or
remedies, Lessee and Lessor each hereby release and relieve the other, and waive
their entire right to recover damages (whether in contract or in tort) against
the other, for loss or damage to their property arising out of or incident to
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the perils required to be insured against under Paragraph 8. The effect of such
releases and waivers of the right to recover damages shall not be limited by the
amount of insurance carried or required, or by any deductibles applicable
thereto. Lessor and Lessee agree to have their respective insurance companies
issuing property damage insurance waive any right to subrogation that such
companies may have against Lessor or Lessee, as the case may be, so long as the
insurance is not invalidated thereby.

8.7 Indemnity. Except for Lessor's negligence and/or breach of express
warranties, Lessee shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless the
Premises, Lessor and its agents, Lessor's master or ground lessor, partners and
Lenders, from and against any and all claims, loss of rents and/or damages,
costs, liens, judgments, penalties, loss of permits, attorneys' and consultants'
fees, expenses and/or liabilities arising out of, involving, or in connection
with, the occupancy of the Premises by Lessee, the conduct of Lessee's business,
any act, omission or neglect of Lessee, its agents, contractors, employees or
invitees, and out of any Default or Breach by Lessee in the performance in a
timely manner of any obligation on Lessee's part to be performed under this
Lease. The foregoing shall include, but not be limited to, the defense or
pursuit of any claim or any action or proceeding involved therein, and whether
or not (in the case of claims made against Lessor) litigated and/or reduced to
judgment. In case any action or proceeding be brought against Lessor by reason
of any of the foregoing matters, Lessee upon notice from Lessor shall defend the
same at Lessee's expense by counsel reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and Lessor
shall cooperate with Lessee in such defense. Lessor need not have first paid
any such claim in order to be so indemnified.

8.8 Exemption of Lessor from Liability. Lessor shall not be liable for
injury or damage to the person or goods, wares, merchandise or other property of
Lessee, Lessee's employees, contractors, invitees, customers, or any other
person in or about the Premises, whether such damage or injury is caused by or
results from fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the breakage,
leakage, obstruction or other defects of pipes, fire sprinklers, wires,
appliances, plumbing, air conditioning or lighting fixtures, or from any other
cause, whether said injury or damage results from conditions arising upon the
Premises or upon other portions of the Building of which the Premises are a
part, from other sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such
damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is accessible or not.

Lessor shall not be liable for any damages arising from any act or neglect of
any other lessee of Lessor nor from the failure by Lessor to enforce the
provisions of any other lease in the Industrial Center. Notwithstanding
Lessor's negligence or breach of this Lease, Lessor shall under no circumstances
be liable for injury to Lessee's business or for any loss of income or profit
therefrom.

MULTI-TENANT - GROSS Initials
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9. Damage or Destruction.
9.1 Definitions.
(a) "Premises Partial Damage" shall mean damage or destruction to the

Premises, other than Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations, the
repair cost of which damage or destruction is less than fifty percent (50%) of
the then Replacement Cost (as defined in Paragraph 9.1(d)) of the Premises
(excluding Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations and Trade
Fixtures) immediately prior to such damage or destruction.

(b) "Premises Total Destruction" shall mean damage or destruction to
the Premises, other than Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations, the
repair cost of which damage or destruction is fifty percent (50%) or more of the
then Replacement Cost of the Premises (excluding Lessee-Owned Alterations and
Utility Installations and Trade Fixtures) immediately prior to such damage or
destruction. In addition, damage or destruction to the Building, other than
Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations and Trade Fixtures of any
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lessees of the Building, the cost of which damage or destruction is fifty
percent (50%) or more of the then Replacement Cost (excluding Lessee-Owned
Alterations and Utility Installations and Trade Fixtures of any lessees of the
Building) of the Building shall, at the option of Lessor, be deemed to be
Premises Total Destruction.

(c) "Insured Loss" shall mean damage or destruction to the Premises,
other than Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility Installations and Trade
Fixtures, which was caused by an event required to be covered by the insurance
descried in Paragraph 8.3 (a) irrespective of any deductible amounts or coverage
limits involved.

(d) "Replacement Cost" shall mean the cost to repair or rebuild the
improvements owned by Lessor at the time of the occurrence to their condition
existing immediately prior thereto, including demolition, debris removal and
upgrading required by the operation of applicable building codes, ordinances or
laws, and without deduction for depreciation.

(e) "Hazardous Substance Condition" shall mean the occurrence or
discovery of a condition involving the presence of, or a contamination by, a
Hazardous Substance as defined in Paragraph 6.2(a), in, on, or under the
Premises.

9.2 Premises Partial Damage -- Insured Loss. If Premises Partial Damage
that is an Insured Loss occurs, then Lessor shall, at Lessor's expense, repair
such damage (but not Lessee's Trade Fixtures or Lessee-Owned Alterations and
Utility Installations) as soon as reasonably possible and this Lease shall
continue in full force and effect. In the event, however, that there is a
shortage of insurance proceeds and such shortage is due to the fact that, by
reason of the unique nature of the improvements in the Premises, full
replacement cost insurance coverage was not commercially reasonable and
available, Lessor shall have no obligation to pay for the shortage in insurance
proceeds or to fully restore the unique aspects of the Premises unless Lessee
provides Lessor with the funds to cover same, or adequate assurance thereof,
within ten (10) days following receipt of written notice of such shortage and

request therefor. If Lessor receives said funds or adequate assurance thereof
within said ten (10) day period, Lessor shall complete them as soon as
reasonably possible and this Lease shall remain in full force and effect. If

Lessor does not receive such funds or assurance within said period, Lessor may
nevertheless elect by written notice to Lessee within ten (10) days thereafter
to make such restoration and repair as is commercially reasonable with Lessor
paying any shortage in proceeds, in which case this Lease shall remain in full
force and effect. If Lessor does not receive such funds or assurance within
such ten (10) day period, and if Lessor does not so elect to restore and repair,
then this Lease shall terminate sixty (60) days following the occurrence of the
damage or destruction. Unless otherwise agreed, Lessee shall in no event have
any right to reimbursement from Lessor for any funds contributed by Lessee to
repair any such damage or destruction. Premises Partial Damage due to flood or
earthquake shall be subject to Paragraph 9.3 rather than Paragraph 9.2,
notwithstanding that there may be some insurance coverage, but the net proceeds
of any such insurance shall be made available for the repairs if made by either
Party.

9.3 Partial Damage -- Uninsured Loss. If Premises Partial Damage that is
not an Insured Loss occurs, unless caused by a negligent or willful act of
Lessee (in which event Lessee shall make the repairs at Lessee's expense and
this Lease shall continue in full force and effect), Lessor may at Lessor's
option, either (i) repair such damage as soon as reasonably possible at Lessor's
expense, in which event this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, or
(ii) give written notice to Lessee within thirty (30) days after receipt by
Lessor of knowledge of the occurrence of such damage of Lessor's desire to
terminate this Lease as of the date sixty (60) days following the date of such
notice. In the event Lessor elects to give such notice of Lessor's intention to
terminate this Lease, Lessee shall have the right within ten (10) days after the
receipt of such notice to give written notice to Lessor of Lessee's commitment
to pay for the repair of such damage totally at Lessee's expense and without
reimbursement from Lessor. Lessee shall provide Lessor with the required funds
or satisfactory assurance thereof within thirty (30) days following such
commitment from Lessee. In such event this Lease shall continue in full force
and effect, and Lessor shall proceed to make such repairs as soon as reasonably
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possible after the required funds are available. If Lessee does not give such
notice and provide the funds or assurance thereof within the times specified
above, this Lease shall terminate as of the date specified in Lessor's notice of
termination.

9.4 Total Destruction. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, if
Premises Total Destruction occurs (including any destruction required by any
authorized public authority), this Lease shall terminate sixty (60) days
following the date of such Premises Total Destruction, whether or not the damage
or destruction is an Insured Loss or was caused by a negligent or willful act of

Lessee. In the event, however, that the damage or destruction
MULTI-TENANT - GROSS Initials
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was caused by Lessee, Lessor shall have the right to recover Lessor's damages
from Lessee except as released and waived in Paragraph 9.7.

9.5 Damage Near End of Term. If at any time during the last six (6)
months of the term of this Lease there is damage for which the cost to repair
exceeds one month's Base Rent, whether or not an Insured Loss, Lessor may, at
Lessor's option, terminate this Lease effective sixty (60) days following the
date of occurrence of such damage by giving written notice to Lessee of Lessor's
election to do so within thirty (30) days after the date of occurrence of such
damage. Provided, however, if Lessee at that time has an exercisable option to
extend this Lease or to purchase the Premises, then Lessee may preserve this
Lease by (a) exercising such option, and (b) providing Lessor with any shortage
in insurance proceeds (or adequate assurance thereof) needed to make the repairs
on or before the earlier of (i) the date which is ten (10) days after Lessee's
receipt of Lessor's written notice purporting to terminate this Lease, or (ii)
the day prior to the date upon which such option expires. If Lessee duly
exercises such option during such period and provides Lessor with funds (or
adequate assurance thereof) to cover any shortage in insurance proceeds, Lessor
shall, at Lessor's expense repair such damage as soon as reasonably possible and
this Lease shall continue in full force and effect. If Lessee fails to exercise
such option and provide such funds or assurance during such period, then this
Lease shall terminate as of the date set forth in the first sentence of this
Paragraph 9.5.

9.6 Abatement of Rent; Lessee's Remedies.

(a) In the event of (i) Premises Partial Damage or (ii) Hazardous
Substance Condition for which Lessee is not legally responsible, the Base Rent,
Common Area Operating Expenses and other charges, if any, payable by Lessee
hereunder for the period during which such damage or condition, its repair,
remediation or restoration continues, shall be abated in proportion to the
degree to which Lessee's use of the Premises is impaired, but not in excess of
proceeds from insurance required to be carried under Paragraph 8.3 (b). Except
for abatement of Base Rent, Common Area Operating Expenses and other charges, if
any, as aforesaid, all other obligations of Lessee hereunder shall be performed
by Lessee, and Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor for any damage suffered
by reason of any such damage, destruction, repair, remediation or restoration.

(b) If Lessor shall be obligated to repair or restore the Premises
under the provisions of this Paragraph 9 and shall not commence, to a
substantial and meaningful way, the repair or restoration of the Premises within
ninety (90) days after such obligation shall accrue, Lessee may, at any time
prior to the commencement of such repair or restoration, give written notice to
Lessor and to any Lenders of which Lessee has actual notice of Lessee's election
to terminate this Lease on a date not less than sixty (60) days following the
giving of such notice. If Lessee gives such notice to Lessor and such Lenders
and such repair or restoration is not commenced within thirty (30) days after
receipt of such notice, this Lease shall terminate as of the date specified in

said notice. TIf Lessor or a Lender commences the repair or restoration of the
Premises within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice, this Lease
shall continue in full force and effect. "Commence" as used in this Paragraph
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9.6 shall mean either the unconditional authorization of the preparation of the
required plans, or the beginning of the actual work on the Premises, whichever
occurs first.

9.7 Hazardous Substance Conditions. If a Hazardous Substance Condition
occurs unless Lessee is legally responsible therefor (in which case Lessee shall
make the investigation and remediation thereof required by Applicable
Requirements and this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, but subject
to Lessor's rights under Paragraph 6.2 (c) and Paragraph 13), Lessor may at
Lessor's option either (i) investigate and remediate such Hazardous Substance
Condition, it required, as soon as reasonably possible at Lessor's expense, in
which event this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, or (ii) if the
estimated cost to investigate and remediate such condition exceeds twelve (12)
times the then monthly Base Rent or $100,000 whichever is greater, give written
notice to Lessee within thirty (30) days after receipt by Lessor of knowledge of
the occurrence of such Hazardous Substance Condition of Lessor's desire to
terminate this Lease as of the date sixty (60) days following the date of such
notice. In the event Lessor elects to give such notice of Lessor's intention to
terminate this Lease, Lessee shall have the right within ten (10) days after the
receipt of such notice to give written notice to Lessor of Lessee's commitment
to pay for the excess costs of (a) investigation and remediation of such
Hazardous Substance Condition to the extent required by Applicable Requirements,
over (b) an amount equal to twelve (12) times the then monthly Base Rent or
$100,000, whichever is greater. Lessee shall provide Lessor with the funds
required of Lessee or satisfactory assurance thereof within thirty (30) days
following said commitment by Lessee. In such event this Lease shall continue in
full force and effect, and Lessor shall proceed to make such investigation and
remediation as soon as reasonably possible after the required funds are
available. If Lessee does not give such notice and provide the required funds
or assurance thereof within the time period specified above, this Lease shall
terminate as of the date specified in Lessor's notice of termination.

9.8 Termination -- Advance Payments. Upon termination of this Lease
pursuant to this Paragraph 9, Lessor shall return to Lessee any advance payment
made by Lessee to Lessor and so much of Lessee's Security Deposit as has not
been, or is not then required to be, used by Lessor under the terms of this
Lease.

9.9 Waiver of Statutes. Lessor and Lessee agree that the terms of this
Lease shall govern the effect of any damage to or destruction of the Premises
and the Building with respect to the termination of this Lease and hereby waive
the provisions of any present or future statute to the extent it is inconsistent
herewith.

10. Real Property Taxes.

10.1 Payment of Taxes. Lessor shall pay the Real Property Taxes, as
defined in Paragraph 10.2(a), applicable to the Industrial Center, and except as
otherwise provided in Paragraph 10.3, any increases in such
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amounts over the Base Real Property Taxes shall be included in the calculation
of Common Area Operating Expenses in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph
4.2.

10.2 Real Property Tax Definitions.

(a) As used herein, the term "Real Property Taxes" shall include any
form of real estate tax or assessment, general, special, ordinary or
extraordinary, and any license fee, commercial rental tax, improvement bond or
bonds, levy or tax (other than inheritance, personal income or estate taxes)
imposed upon the Industrial Center by any authority having the direct or
indirect power to tax, including any city, state or federal government, or any
school, agricultural, sanitary, fire, street, drainage, or other improvement
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district thereof, levied against any legal or equitable interest of Lessor in
the Industrial Center or any portion thereof, Lessor's right to rent or other
income therefrom, and/or Lessor's business of leasing the Premises. The term
"Real Property Taxes" shall also include any tax, fee, levy, assessment or
charge, or any increase therein, imposed by reason of events occurring, or
changes in Applicable Law taking effect, during the term of this Lease,
including but not limited to a change in the ownership of the Industrial Center
or in the improvements thereon, the execution of this Lease, or any
modification, amendment or transfer thereof, and whether or not contemplated by
the Parties.

(b) As used herein, the term "Base Real Property Taxes" shall be the
amount of Real Property Taxes, which are assessed against the Premises, Building
or Common Areas in the calendar year during which the Lease is executed. 1In
calculating Real Property Taxes for any calendar year, the Real Property Taxes
for any real estate tax year shall be included in the calculation of Real
Property Taxes for such calendar year based upon the number of days which such
calendar year and tax year have in common.

10.3 Additional Improvements. Common Area Operating Expenses shall not
include Real Property Taxes specified in the tax assessor's records and work
sheets as being caused by additional improvements placed upon the Industrial
Center by other lessees or by Lessor for the exclusive enjoyment of such other
lessees. Notwithstanding Paragraph 10.1 hereof, Lessee shall, however, pay to
Lessor at the time Common Area Operating Expenses are payable under Paragraph
4.2, the entirety of any increase in Real Property Taxes if assessed solely by
reason of Alterations, Trade Fixtures or Utility Installations placed upon the
Premises by Lessee or at Lessee's request.

10.4 Joint Assessment. If the Building is not separately assessed, Real
Property Taxes allocated to the Building shall be an equitable proportion of the
Real Property Taxes for all of the land and improvements included within the tax
parcel assessed, such proportion to be determined by Lessor from the respective
valuations assigned in the assessor's work sheets or such other information as
may be reasonably available. Lessor's reasonable determination thereof, in good
faith, shall be conclusive.

10.5 Lessee's Property Taxes. Lessee shall pay prior to delinquency all
taxes assessed against and levied upon Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility
Installations, Trade Fixtures, furnishings, equipment and all personal property
of Lessee contained in the Premises or stored within the Industrial Center.
When possible, Lessee shall cause its Lessee-Owned Alterations and Utility
Installations, Trade Fixtures, furnishings, equipment and ail other personal
property to be assessed and billed separately from the real property of Lessor.
If any of Lessee's said property shall be assessed with Lessor's real property,
Lessee shall pay Lessor the taxes attributable to Lessee's property within ten
(10) days after receipt of a written statement setting forth the taxes
applicable to Lessee's property.

11. Utilities. Lessee shall pay directly for all utilities and services
supplied to the Premises, including but not limited to electricity, telephone,
security, gas and cleaning of the Premises, together with any taxes thereon. 1If
any such utilities or services are not separately metered to the Premises or
separately billed to the Premises, Lessee shall pay to Lessor a reasonable
proportion to be determined by Lessor of all such charges jointly metered or
billed with other premises in the Building, in the manner and within the time
periods set forth in Paragraph 4.2 (d).

12. Assignment and Subletting.
12.1 Lessor's Consent Required.

(a) Lessee shall not voluntarily or by operation of law assign,
transfer, mortgage or otherwise transfer or encumber (collectively, "assign") or
sublet all or any part of Lessee's interest in this Lease or in the Premises
without Lessor's prior written consent given under and subject to the terms of
Paragraph 36.

(b) A change in the control of Lessee shall constitute an assignment
requiring Lessor's consent. The transfer, on a cumulative basis, of twenty-five
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percent (25%) or more of the voting control of Lessee shall constitute a change
in control for this purpose.

(c) The involvement of Lessee or its assets in any transaction, or
series of transactions (by way of merger, sale, acquisition, financing,
refinancing, transfer, leveraged buy-out or otherwise), whether or not a formal
assignment or hypothecation of this Lease or Lessee's assets occurs, which
results or will result in a reduction of the Net Worth of Lessee, as hereinafter
defined, by an amount equal to or greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of such
Net Worth of Lessee as it was represented to Lessor at the time of full
execution and delivery of this Lease or at the time of the most recent
assignment to which Lessor has consented, or as it exists immediately prior to
said transaction or transactions constituting such reduction, at whichever time
said Net Worth of Lessee was or 1s greater, shall be considered an assignment of
this Lease by Lessee to which Lessor may reasonably withhold its consent. "Net
Worth of Lessee" for purposes of this Lease shall be the net worth of Lessee
(excluding any Guarantors) established under generally accepted accounting
principles consistently applied.

_12_
(d) An assignment or subletting of Lessee's interest in this Lease

without Lessor's specific prior written consent shall, at Lessor's option, be a
Default curable after notice per Paragraph 13.1, or a non-curable Breach without

the necessity of any notice and grace period. If Lessor elects to treat such
unconsented to assignment or subletting as a non-curable Breach, Lessor shall
have the right to either: (1) terminate this Lease, or (ii) upon thirty (30)

days' written notice ("Lessor's Notice"), increase the monthly Base Rent for the
Premises to the greater of the then fair market rental value of the Premises, as
reasonably determined by Lessor, or one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Base
Rent then in effect. Pending determination of the new fair market rental value,
if disputed by Lessee, Lessee shall pay the amount set forth in Lessor's Notice,
with any overpayment credited against the next installment(s) of Base Rent
coming due, and any underpayment for the period retroactively to the effective
date of the adjustment being due and payable immediately upon the determination
thereof. Further, in the event of such Breach and rental adjustment: (i) the
purchase price of any option to purchase the Premises held by Lessee shall be
subject to similar adjustment to the then fair market value as reasonably
determined by Lessor (without the Lease being considered an encumbrance or any
deduction for depreciation or obsolescence, and considering the Premises at its
highest and best use and in good condition) or one hundred ten percent (110%) of
the price previously in effect, (ii) any index-oriented rental or price
adjustment formulas contained in this Lease shall be adjusted to require that
the base index be determined with reference to the index applicable to the time
of such adjustment, and (iii) any fixed rental adjustments scheduled during the
remainder of the Lease term shall be increased in the same ratio as the new
rental bears to the Base Rent in effect immediately prior to the adjustment
specified in Lessor's Notice.

(e) Lessee's remedy for any breach of this Paragraph 12.1 by Lessor
shall be limited to compensatory damages and/or injunctive relief.

12.2 Terms and Conditions Applicable to Assignment and Subletting.

(a) Regardless of Lessor's consent, any assignment or subletting shall
not (i) be effective without the express written assumption by such assignee or
subleases of the obligations of Lessee under this Lease, (i1ii) release Lessee of
any obligations hereunder, nor (iii) alter the primary liability of Lessee for
the payment of Base Rent and other sums due Lessor hereunder or for the
performance of any other obligations to be performed by Lessee under this Lease.

(b) Lessor may accept any rent or performance of Lessee's obligations
from any person other than Lessee pending approval or disapproval of an
assignment. Neither a delay in the approval or disapproval of such assignment
nor the acceptance of any rent for performance shall constitute a waiver or
estoppel of Lessor's right to exercise its remedies for the Default or Breach by
Lessee of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease.

(c) The consent of Lessor to any assignment or subletting shall not
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constitute a consent to any subsequent assignment or subletting by Lessee or to
any subsequent or successive assignment or subletting by the assignee or
sublessee. However, Lessor may consent to subsequent sublettings and
assignments of the sublease or any amendments or modifications thereto without
notifying Lessee or anyone else liable under this Lease or the sublease and
without obtaining their consent, and such action shall not relieve such persons
from liability under this Lease or the sublease.

(d) In the event of any Default or Breach of Lessee's obligation under
this Lease, Lessor may proceed directly against Lessee, any Guarantors or anyone
else responsible for the performance of the Lessee's obligations under this
Lease, including any sublessee, without first exhausting Lessor's remedies
against any other person or entity responsible therefor to Lessor, or any
security held by Lessor.

(e) Each request for consent to an assignment or subletting shall be
in writing, accompanied by information relevant to Lessor's determination as to
the financial and operational responsibility and appropriateness of the proposed
assignee or sublessee, including but not limited to the intended use and/or
required modification of the Premises, if any, together with a non-refundable
deposit of $1,000 or ten percent (10%) of the monthly Base Rent applicable to
the portion of the Premises which is the subject of the proposed assignment or
sublease, whichever is greater, as reasonable consideration for Lessor's
considering and processing the request for consent. Lessee agrees to provide
Lessor with such other or additional information and/or documentation as may be
reasonably requested by Lessor.

(f) Any assignee of, or sublessee under, this Lease shall, by reason
of accepting such assignment or entering into such sublease, be deemed, for the
benefit of Lessor, to have assumed and agreed to conform and comply with each
and every term, covenant, condition and obligation herein to be observed or
performed by Lessee during the term of said assignment or sublease, other than
such obligations as are contrary to or inconsistent with provisions of an
assignment or sublease to which Lessor has specifically consented in writing.

(g) The occurrence of a transaction described in Paragraph 12.2(c)
shall give Lessor the right (but not the obligation) to require that the
Security Deposit be increased by an amount equal to six (6) times the then
monthly Base Rent, and Lessor may make the actual receipt by Lessor of the
Security Deposit increase a condition to Lessor's consent to such transaction.

(h) Lessor, as a condition to giving its consent to any assignment or
subletting, may require that the amount and adjustment schedule of the rent
payable under this Lease be adjusted to what is then the market value and/or
adjustment schedule for property similar to the Premises as then constituted, as
determined by Lessor.
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12.3 Additional Terms and Conditions Applicable to Subletting. The
following terms and conditions shall apply to any subletting by Lessee of all or
any part of the Premises and shall be deemed included in all subleases under
this Lease whether or not expressly incorporated therein:

(a) Lessee hereby assigns and transfers to Lessor all of Lessee's
interest in all rentals and income arising from any sublease of all or a portion
of the Premises heretofore or hereafter made by Lessee, and Lessor may collect
such rent and income and apply same toward Lessee's obligations under this
Lease; provided, however, that until a Breach (as defined in Paragraph 13.1)
shall occur in the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease, Lessee
may, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, receive, collect and enjoy the
rents accruing under such sublease. Lessor shall not, by reason of the
foregoing provision or any other assignment of such sublease to Lessor, nor by
reason of the collection of the rents from a sublessee, be deemed liable to the
sublessee for any failure of Lessee to perform and comply with any of Lessee's
obligations to such sublessee under such Sublease. Lessee hereby irrevocably
authorizes and directs any such sublessee, upon receipt of a written notice from
Lessor stating that a Breach exists in the performance of Lessee's obligations
under this Lease, to pay to Lessor the rents and other charges due and to become
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due under the sublease. Sublessee shall rely upon any such statement and
request from Lessor and shall pay such rents and other charges to Lessor without
any obligation or right to inquire as to whether such Breach exists and
notwithstanding any notice from or claim from Lessee to the contrary. Lessee
shall have no right or claim against such sublessee, or, until the Breach has
been cured, against Lessor, for any such rents and other charges so paid by said
sublessee to Lessor.

(b) In the event of a Breach by Lessee in the performance of its
obligations under this Lease, Lessor, at its option and without any obligation
to do so, may require any sublessee to attorn to Lessor, in which event Lessor
shall undertake the obligations of the sublessor under such sublease from the
time of the exercise of said option to the expiration of such sublease;
provided, however, Lessor shall not be liable for any prepaid rents or security
deposit paid by such sublessee to such sublessor or for any other prior defaults
or breaches of such sublessor under such sublease.

(c) Any matter or thing requiring the consent of the sublessor under a
sublease shall also require the consent of Lessor herein.

(d) No sublessee under a sublease approved by Lessor shall further
assign or sublet all or any part of the Premises without Lessor's prior written
consent.

(e) Lessor shall deliver a copy of any notice of Default or Breach by
Lessee to the sublessee, who shall have the right to cure the Default of Lessee
within the grace period, if any, specified in such notice. The sublessee shall
have a right of reimbursement and offset from and against Lessee for any such
Defaults cured by the sublessee.

13. Default; Breach; Remedies.

13.1 Default; Breach. Lessor and Lessee agree that if an attorney is
consulted by Lessor in connection with a Lessee Default or Breach (as
hereinafter defined), $350.00 is a reasonable minimum sum per such occurrence
for legal services and costs in the preparation and service of a notice of
Default, and that Lessor may include the cost of such services and costs in said
notice as rent due and payable to cure said default. A "Default" by Lessee is
defined as a failure by Lessee to observe, comply with or perform any of the
terms, covenants, conditions or rules applicable to Lessee under this Lease. A
"Breach" by Lessee is defined as the occurrence of any one or more of the
following Defaults, and, where a grace period for cure after notice is specified
herein, the failure by Lessee to cure such Default prior to the expiration of
the applicable grace period, and shall entitle Lessor to pursue the remedies set
forth in Paragraphs 13.2 and/or 13.3:

(a) The vacating of the Premises without the intention to reoccupy
same, or the abandonment of the Premises.

(b) Except as expressly otherwise provided in this Lease, the failure
by Lessee to make any payment of Base Rent, Lessee's Share of Common Area
Operating Expenses, or any other monetary payment required to be made by Lessee
hereunder as and when due, the failure by Lessee to provide Lessor with
reasonable evidence of insurance or surety bond required under this Lease, or
the failure of Lessee to fulfill any obligation under this Lease which endangers
or threatens life or property, where such failure continues for a period of
three (3) days following written notice thereof by or on behalf of Lessor to
Lessee.

(c) Except as expressly otherwise provided in this Lease, the failure
by Lessee to provide Lessor with reasonable written evidence (in duly executed
original form, if applicable) of (i) compliance with Applicable Requirements per
Paragraph 6.3, (ii) the inspection, maintenance and service contracts required
under Paragraph 7.1 (b), (iii) the rescission of an unauthorized assignment or
subletting per Paragraph 12.1, (iv) a Tenancy Statement per Paragraphs 16 or 37,
(v) the subordination or non-subordination of this Lease per Paragraph 30, (vi)
the guaranty of the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease if
required under Paragraphs 1.11 and 37, (vii) the execution of any document
requested under Paragraph 42 (easements), or (viii) any other documentation or
information which Lessor may reasonably require of Lessee under the terms of
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this Lease, where any such failure continues for a period of ten (10) days
following written notice by or on behalf of Lessor to Lessee.

(d) A Default by Lessee as to the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of this Lease, or of the rules adopted under Paragraph 40 hereof that
are to be observed, complied with or performed by Lessee, other than those
described in Subparagraphs 13.1(a), (b) or (c), above, where such Default
continues for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by or on
behalf of Lessor to Lessee; provided, however, that if the nature of
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Lessee's Default is such that more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required
for its cure, then it shall not be deemed to be a Breach of this Lease by Lessee
if Lessee commences such cure within said thirty (30) day period and thereafter
diligently prosecutes such cure to completion.

(e) The occurrence of any of the following events: (i) the making by
Lessee of any general arrangement or assignment for the benefit of creditors;
(ii) Lessee's becoming a "debtor" as defined in 11 U.S. Code Section 101 or any
successor statute thereto (unless, in the case of a petition filed against
Lessee, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); (iii) the appointment of
a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Lessee's assets
located at the Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, where possession
is not restored to Lessee within thirty (30) days; or (iv) the attachment,
execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Lessee's assets
located at the Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease, where such
seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days; provided, however, in the
event that any provision of this Subparagraph 13.1(e) is contrary to any
applicable law, such provision shall be of no force or effect, and shall not
affect the validity of the remaining provisions.

(f) The discovery by Lessor that any financial statement of Lessee or
of any Guarantor, given to Lessor by Lessee or any Guarantor, was materially
false.

(g) If the performance of Lessee's obligations under this Lease is
guaranteed: (i) the death of a Guarantor, (ii) the termination of a Guarantor's
liability with respect to this Lease other than in accordance with the terms of
such guaranty, (iii) a Guarantor's becoming insolvent or the subject of a
bankruptcy filing, (iv) a Guarantor's refusal to honor the guaranty, or (v) a
Guarantor's breach of its guaranty obligation on an anticipatory breach basis,
and Lessee's failure, within sixty (60) days following written notice by or on
behalf of Lessor to Lessee of any such event, to provide Lessor with written
alternative assurances of security, which, when coupled with the then existing
resources of Lessee, equals or exceeds the combined financial resources of
Lessee and the Guarantors that existed at the time of execution of this Lease.

13.2 Remedies. If Lessee fails to perform any affirmative duty or
obligation of Lessee under this Lease, within ten (10) days after written notice
to Lessee (or in case of an emergency, without notice), Lessor may at its option
(but without obligation to do so), perform such duty or obligation on Lessee's
behalf, including but not limited to the obtaining of reasonably required bonds,
insurance policies, or governmental licenses, permits or approvals. The costs
and expenses of any such performance by Lessor shall be due and payable by
Lessee to Lessor upon invoice therefor. If any check given to Lessor by Lessee
shall not be honored by the bank upon which it is drawn, Lessor, at its own
option, may require all future payments to be made under this Lease by Lessee to
be made only by cashier's check. 1In the event of a Breach of this Lease by
Lessee (as defined in Paragraph 13.1), with or without further notice or demand,
and without limiting Lessor in the exercise of any right or remedy which Lessor
may have by reason of such Breach, Lessor may:

(a) Terminate Lessee's right to possession of the Premises by any
lawful means, in which case this Lease and the term hereof shall terminate and
Lessee shall immediately surrender possession of the Premises to Lessor. In
such event Lessor shall be entitled to recover from Lessee: (i) the worth at
the time of the award of the unpaid rent which had been earned at the time of
termination; (ii) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the
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unpaid rent which would have been earned after termination until the time of
award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that the Lessee proves could have
been reasonably avoided; (iii) the worth at the time of award of the amount by
which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of award
exceeds the amount of such rental loss that the Lessee proves could be
reasonably avoided; and (iv) any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for
all the detriment proximately caused by the Lessee's failure to perform its
obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of things would be
likely to result therefrom, including but not limited to the cost of recovering
possession of the Premises, expenses of reletting, including necessary
renovation and alteration of the Premises, reasonable attorneys' fees, and that
portion of any leasing commission paid by Lessor in connection with this Lease
applicable to the unexpired term of this Lease. The worth at the time of award
of the amount referred to in provision (iii) of the immediately preceding
sentence shall be computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of
the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco or the Federal Reserve Bank District
in which the Premises are located at the time of award plus one percent (1%).
Efforts by Lessor to mitigate damages caused by Lessee's Default or Breach of
this Lease shall not waive Lessor's right to recover damages under this
Paragraph 13.2. If termination of this Lease is obtained through the
provisional remedy of unlawful detainer, Lessor shall have the right to recover
in such proceeding the unpaid rent and damages as are recoverable therein, or
Lessor may reserve the right to recover all or any part thereof in a separate
suit for such rent and/or damages. If a notice and grace period required under
Subparagraph 13.1(b), (c) or (d) was not previously given, a notice to pay rent
or quit, or to perform or quit, as the case may be, given to Lessee under any
statute authorizing the forfeiture of leases for unlawful detainer shall also
constitute the applicable notice for grace period purposes required by
Subparagraph 13.1(b), (c) or (d). In such case, the applicable grace period
under the unlawful detainer statute shall run concurrently after the one such
statutory notice, and the failure of Lessee to cure the Default within the
greater of the two (2) such grace periods shall constitute both an unlawful
detainer and a Breach of this Lease entitling Lessor to the remedies provided
for in this Lease and/or by said statute.

(b) Continue the Lease and Lessee's right to possession in effect (in
California under California Civil Code Section 1951.4) after Lessee's Breach and
recover the rent as it becomes due, provided Lessee has the right to sublet or
assign, subject only to reasonable limitations. Lessor and Lessee agree that
the limitations on assignment and subletting in this Lease are reasonable. Acts
of maintenance or preservation, efforts to relet the Premises, or the
appointment of a receiver to protect the Lessor's interest under this Lease,
shall not constitute a termination of the Lessee's right to possession.
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(c) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Lessor under
the laws or judicial decisions of the state wherein the Premises are located.

(d) The expiration or termination of this Lease and/or the termination
of Lessee's right to possession shall not relieve Lessee from liability under
any indemnity provisions of this Lease as to matters occurring or accruing
during the term hereof or by reason of Lessee's occupancy of the Premises.

13.3 Inducement Recapture In Event of Breach. Any agreement by Lessor for
free or abated rent or other charges applicable to the Premises, or for the
giving or paying by Lessor to or for Lessee of any cash or other bonus,
inducement or consideration for Lessee's entering into this Lease, all of which
concessions are hereinafter referred to as "Inducement Provisions" shall be
deemed conditioned upon Lessee's full and faithful performance of all of the
terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be performed or observed by
Lessee during the term hereof as the same may be extended. Upon the occurrence
of a Breach (as defined in Paragraph 13.1) of this Lease by Lessee, any such
Inducement Provision shall automatically be deemed deleted from this Lease and
of no further force or effect, and any rent, other charge, bonus, inducement or
consideration theretofore abated, given or paid by Lessor under such an
Inducement Provision shall be immediately due and payable by Lessee to Lessor,
and recoverable by Lessor, as additional rent due under this Lease,
notwithstanding any subsequent cure of said Breach by Lessee. The acceptance by
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Lessor of rent or the cure of the Breach which initiated the operation of this
Paragraph 13.3 shall not be deemed a waiver by Lessor of the provisions of this
Paragraph 13.3 unless specifically so stated in writing by Lessor at the time of
such acceptance.

13.4 Late Charges. Lessee hereby acknowledges that late payment by Lessee
to Lessor of rent and other sums due hereunder will cause Lessor to incur costs
not contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which will be extremely
difficult to ascertain. Such costs include, but are not limited to, processing
and accounting charges, and late charges which may be imposed upon Lessor by the
terms of any ground lease, mortgage or deed of trust covering the Premises.
Accordingly, if any installment of rent or other sum due from Lessee shall not
be received by Lessor or Lessor's designee within ten (10) days after such
amount shall be due, then, without any requirement for notice to Lessee, Lessee
shall pay to Lessor a late charge equal to six percent (6%) of such overdue
amount. The parties hereby agree that such late charge represents a fair and
reasonable estimate of the costs Lessor will incur by reason of late payment by
Lessee. Acceptance of such late charge by Lessor shall in no event constitute a
waiver of Lessee's Default or Breach with respect to such overdue amount, nor
prevent Lessor from exercising any of the other rights and remedies granted
hereunder. 1In the event that a late charge is payable hereunder, whether or not
collected, for three (3) consecutive installments of Base Rent, then
notwithstanding Paragraph 4.1 or any other provision of this Lease to the
contrary, Base Rent shall, at Lessor's option, become due and payable quarterly
in advance.

13.5 Breach by Lessor. Lessor shall not be deemed in breach of this Lease
unless Lessor fails within a reasonable time to perform an obligation required
to be performed by Lessor. For purposes of this Paragraph 13.5, a reasonable
time shall in no event be less than thirty (30) days after receipt by Lessor,
and by any Lender (s) whose name and address shall have been furnished to Lessee
in writing for such purpose, of written notice specifying wherein such
obligation of Lessor has not been performed; provided, however, that if the
nature of Lessor's obligation is such that more than thirty (30) days after such
notice are reasonably required for its performance, then Lessor shall not be in
breach of this Lease if performance is commenced within such thirty (30) day
period and thereafter diligently pursued to completion.

14. Condemnation. If the Premises or any portion thereof are taken under the
power of eminent domain or sold under the threat of the exercise of said power
(all of which are herein called "condemnation"), this Lease shall terminate as
to the part so taken as of the date the condemning authority takes title or
possession, whichever first occurs. If more than ten percent (10%) of the floor
area of the Premises, or more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the portion of
the Common Areas designated for Lessee's parking, is taken by condemnation,
Lessee may, at Lessee's option, to be exercised in writing within ten (10) days
after Lessor shall have given Lessee written notice of such taking (or in the
absence of such notice, within ten (10) days after the condemning authority
shall have taken possession) terminate this Lease as of the date the condemning
authority takes such possession. If Lessee does not terminate this Lease in
accordance with the foregoing, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect
as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the Base Rent shall be
reduced in the same proportion as the rentable floor area of the Premises taken
bears to the total rentable floor area of the Premises. No reduction of Base
Rent shall occur if the condemnation does not apply to any portion of the
Premises. Any award for the taking of all or any part of the Premises under the
power of eminent domain or any payment made under threat of the exercise of such
power shall be the property of Lessor, whether such award shall be made as
compensation for diminution of value of the leasehold or for the taking of the
fee, or as severance damages; provided, however, that Lessee shall be entitled
to any compensation, separately awarded to Lessee for Lessee's relocation
expenses and/or loss of Lessee's Trade Fixtures. 1In the event that this Lease
is not terminated by reason of such condemnation, Lessor shall to the extent of
its net severance damages received, over and above Lessee's Share of the legal
and other expenses incurred by Lessor in the condemnation matter, repair any
damage to the Premises caused by such condemnation authority. Lessee shall be
responsible for the payment of any amount in excess of such net severance
damages required to complete such repair.

15. Broker's Fees.
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15.1 Procuring Cause. The Broker(s) named in Paragraph 1.10 is/are the
procuring cause of this Lease.

15.2 Additional Terms. Unless Lessor and Broker(s) have otherwise agreed
in writing, Lessor agrees that: (a) 1if Lessee exercises any Option (as defined
in Paragraph 39.1) granted under this Lease or any Option
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subsequently granted, or (b) if Lessee acquires any rights to the Premises or
other premises in which Lessor has an Interest, or (c) if Lessee remains in
possession of the Premises with the consent of Lessor after the expiration of
the term of this Lease after having failed to exercise an Option, or (d) if said
Brokers are the procuring cause of any other lease or sale entered into between
the Parties pertaining to the Premises and/or any adjacent property in which
Lessor has an interest, or (e) if Base Rent is increased, whether by agreement
or operation of an escalation clause herein, then as to any of said
transactions, Lessor shall pay said Broker(s) a fee in accordance with the
schedule of said Broker(s) in effect at the time of the execution of this Lease.

15.3 Assumption of Obligations. Any buyer or transferee of Lessor's
interest in this Lease, whether such transfer is by agreement or by operation of
law, shall be deemed to have assumed Lessor s obligation under this Paragraph
15. Each Broker shall be an intended third party beneficiary of the provisions
of Paragraph 1.10 and of this Paragraph 15 to the extent of its interest in any
commission arising from this Lease and may enforce that right directly against
Lessor and its successors.

15.4 Representations and Warranties. Lessee and Lessor each represent and
warrant to the other that it has had no dealings with any person, firm, broker
or finder other than as named in Paragraph 1.10(a) in connection with the
negotiation of this Lease and/or the consummation of the transaction
contemplated hereby, and that no broker or other person, firm or entity other
than said named Broker(s) is entitled to any commission or finder's fee in
connection with said transaction. Lessee and Lessor do each hereby agree to
indemnify, protect, defend and hold the other harmless from and against
liability for compensation or charges which may be claimed by any such unnamed
broker, finder or other similar party by reason of any dealings or actions of
the Indemnifying Party, including any costs, expenses, and/or attorneys' fees
reasonably incurred with respect thereto.

16. Tenancy and Financial Statements.

16.1 Tenancy Statement. Each Party (as "Responding Party") shall within
ten (10) days after written notice from the other Party (the "Requesting Party")
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Requesting Party a statement in writing
in a form similar to the then most current "Tenancy Statement" form published by
the American Industrial Real Estate Association, plus such additional
information, confirmation and/or statements as may be reasonably requested by
the Requesting Party.

16.2 Financial Statement. If Lessor desires to finance, refinance, or sell
the Premises or the Building, or any part thereof, Lessee and all Guarantors
shall deliver to any potential lender or purchaser designated by Lessor such
financial statements of Lessee and such Guarantors as may be reasonably required
by such lender or purchaser, including but not limited to Lessee's financial
statements for the past three (3) years. All such financial statements shall be
received by Lessor and such lender or purchaser in confidence and shall be used
only for the purposes herein set forth.

17. Lessor's Liability. The term "Lessor" as used herein shall mean the owner
or owners at the time in question of the fee title to the Premises. In the
event of a transfer of Lessor's title or interest in the Premises or in this
Lease, Lessor shall deliver to the transferee or assignee (in cash or by credit)
any unused Security Deposit held by Lessor at the time of such transfer or
assignment. Except as provided in Paragraph 15.3, upon such transfer or
assignment and delivery of the Security Deposit, as aforesaid, the prior Lessor
shall be relieved of all liability with respect to the obligations and/or
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covenants under this Lease thereafter to be performed by the Lessor. Subject to
the foregoing, the obligations and/or covenants in this Lease to be performed by
the Lessor shall be binding only upon the Lessor as hereinabove defined.

18. Severability. The invalidity of any provision of this Lease, as determined
by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall in no way affect the validity of any
other provision hereof.

19. Interest on Past-Due Obligations. Any monetary payment due Lessor
hereunder, other than late charges, not received by Lessor within ten (10) days
following the date on which it was due, shall bear interest from the date due at
the prime rate charged by the largest state chartered bank in the state in which
the Premises are located plus four percent (4%) per annum, but not exceeding the
maximum rate allowed by law, in addition to the potential late charge provided
for in Paragraph 13.4.

20. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the performance of
all obligations to be performed or observed by the Parties under this Lease.

21. Rent Defined. All monetary obligations of Lessee to Lessor under the terms
of this Lease are deemed to be rent.

22. No Prior or Other Agreements; Broker Disclaimer. This Lease contains all
agreements between the Parties with respect to any matter mentioned herein, and
no other prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding shall be effective.
Lessor and Lessee each represents and warrants to the Brokers that it has made,
and is relying solely upon, its own investigation as to the nature, quality,
character and financial responsibility of the other Party to this Lease and as
to the nature, quality and character of the Premises. Brokers have no
responsibility with respect thereto or with respect to any default or breach
hereof by either Party. Each Broker shall be an intended third party
beneficiary of the provisions of this Paragraph 22.

23. Notices.

23.1 Notice Requirements. All notices required or permitted by this Lease
shall be in writing and may be delivered in person (by hand or by messenger or
courier service) or may be sent by regular, certified or registered
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mail or U.S. Postal Service Express Mail, with postage prepaid, or by facsimile
transmission during normal business hours, and shall be deemed sufficiently
given if served in a manner specified in this Paragraph 23. The addresses noted
adjacent to a Party's signature on this Lease shall be that Party's address for
delivery or mailing of notice purposes. Either Party may by written notice to
the other specify a different address for notice purposes, except that upon
Lessee's taking possession of the Premises, the Premises shall constitute
Lessee's address for the purpose of mailing or delivering notices to Lessee. A
copy of all notices required or permitted to be given to Lessor hereunder shall
be concurrently transmitted to such party or parties at such addresses as Lessor
may from time to time hereafter designate by written notice to Lessee.

23.2 Date of Notice. Any notice sent by registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, shall be deemed given on the date of delivery shown on
the receipt card, or if no delivery date is shown, the postmark thereon. If
sent by regular mail, the notice shall be deemed given forty-eight (48) hours
after the same is addressed as required herein and mailed with postage prepaid.
Notices delivered by United States Express Mail or overnight courier that
guarantees next day delivery shall be deemed given twenty-four (24) hours after
delivery of the same to the United States Postal Service or courier. If any
notice is transmitted by facsimile transmission or similar means, the same shall
be deemed served or delivered upon telephone or facsimile confirmation of
receipt of the transmission thereof, provided a copy is also delivered via
delivery or mail. If notice is received on a Saturday or a Sunday or a legal
holiday, it shall be deemed received on the next business day.

24. Waivers. No waiver by Lessor of the Default or Breach of any term,
covenant or condition hereof by Lessee, shall be deemed a waiver of any other
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term, covenant or condition hereof, or of any subsequent Default or Breach by
Lessee of the same or any other term, covenant or condition hereof. Lessor's
consent to, or approval of, any such act shall not be deemed to render
unnecessary the obtaining of Lessor's consent to, or approval of, any subsequent
or similar act by Lessee, or be construed as the basis of an estoppel to enforce
the provision or provisions of this Lease requiring such consent. Regardless of
Lessor's knowledge of a Default or Breach at the time of accepting rent, the
acceptance of rent by Lessor shall not be a waiver of any Default or Breach by
Lessee of any provision hereof. Any payment given Lessor by Lessee may be
accepted by Lessor on account of moneys or damages due Lessor, notwithstanding
any qualifying statements or conditions made by Lessee in connection therewith,
which such statements and/or conditions shall be of no force or effect
whatsoever unless specifically agreed to in writing by Lessor at or before the
time of deposit of such payment.

25. Recording. Either Lessor or Lessee shall, upon request of the other,
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other a short form memorandum of this
Lease for recording purposes. The Party requesting recordation shall be
responsible for payment of any fees or taxes applicable thereto.

26. No Right to Holdover. Lessee has no right to retain possession of the
Premises or any part thereof beyond the expiration or earlier termination of
this Lease. In the event that Lessee holds over in violation of this Paragraph
26 then the Base Rent payable from and after the time of the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease shall be increased to two hundred percent
(200%) of the Base Rent applicable during the month immediately preceding such
expiration or earlier termination. Nothing contained herein shall be construed
as a consent by Lessor to any holding over by Lessee.

27. Cumulative Remedies. No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed
exclusive but shall, wherever possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at
law or in equity.

28. Covenants and Conditions. All provisions of this Lease to be observed or
performed by Lessee are both covenants and conditions.

29. Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease shall be binding upon the
Parties, their personal representatives, successors and assigns and be governed
by the laws of the State in which the Premises are located. Any litigation
between the Parties hereto concerning this Lease shall be initiated in the
county in which the Premises are located.

30. Subordination; Attornment; Non-Disturbance.

30.1 Subordination. This Lease and any Option granted hereby shall be
subject and subordinate to any ground lease, mortgage, deed of trust, or other
hypothecation or security device (collectively, "Security Device"), now or
hereafter placed by Lessor upon the real property of which the Premises are a
part, to any and all advances made on the security thereof, and to all renewals,
modifications, consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof. Lessee
agrees that the Lenders holding any such Security Device shall have no duty,
liability or obligation to perform any of the obligations of Lessor under this
Lease, but that in the event of Lessor's default with respect to any such
obligation, Lessee will give any Lender whose name and address have been
furnished Lessee in writing for such purpose notice of Lessor's default pursuant
to Paragraph 13.5. If any Lender shall elect to have this Lease and/or any
Option granted hereby superior to the lien of its Security Device and shall give
written notice thereof to Lessee, this Lease and such Options shall be deemed
prior to such Security Device, notwithstanding the relative dates of the
documentation or recordation thereof.

30.2 Attornment. Subject to the non-disturbance provisions of Paragraph
30.3, Lessee agrees to attorn to a Lender or any other party who acquires
ownership of the Premises by reason of a foreclosure of a Security Device, and
that in the event of such foreclosure, such new owner shall not: (1) be liable
for any act or omission of any prior lessor or with respect to events occurring
prior to acquisition of ownership, (ii) be subject to any offsets or defenses
which Lessee might have against any prior lessor, or (iii) be bound by
prepayment of more than one month's rent.
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30.3 Non-Disturbance. With respect to Security Devices entered into by
Lessor after the execution of this Lease, Lessee's subordination of this Lease
shall be subject to receiving assurance (a "non-disturbance agreement") from the
Lender that Lessee's possession and this Lease, including any options to extend
the term hereof, will not be disturbed so long as Lessee is not in Breach hereof
and attorns to the record owner of the Premises.

30.4 Self-Executing. The agreements contained in this Paragraph 30 shall
be effective without the execution of any further documents; provided, however,
that upon written request from Lessor or a Lender in connection with a sale,
financing or refinancing of Premises, Lessee and Lessor shall execute such
further writings as may be reasonably required to separately document any such
subordination or non-subordination, attornment and/or non-disturbance agreement
as is provided for herein.

31. Attorneys' Fees. 1If any Party or Broker brings an action or proceeding to
enforce the terms hereof or declare rights hereunder, the Prevailing Party (as
hereafter defined) in any such proceeding, action, or appeal thereon, shall be
entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees. Such fees may be awarded in the same
suit or recovered in a separate suit, whether or not such action or proceeding
is pursued to decision or judgment. The term "Prevailing Party" shall include,
without limitation, a Party or Broker who substantially obtains or defeats the
relief sought, as the case may be, whether by compromise, settlement, judgment,
or the abandonment by the other Party or Broker of its claim or defense. The
attorneys' fee award shall not be computed in accordance with any court fee
schedule, but shall be such as to fully reimburse all attorneys' fees reasonably
incurred. Lessor shall be entitled to attorneys' fees, costs and expenses
incurred in preparation and service of notices of Default and consultations in
connection therewith, whether or not a legal action is subsequently commenced in
connection with such Default or resulting Breach. Broker(s) shall be intended
third party beneficiaries of this Paragraph 31.

32. Lessor's Access; Showing Premises; Repairs. Lessor and Lessor's agents
shall have the right to enter the Premises at any time, in the case of an
emergency, and otherwise at reasonable times for the purpose of showing the same
to prospective purchasers, lenders, or lessees, and making such alterations,
repairs, improvements or additions to the Premises or to the Building, as Lessor
may reasonably deem necessary. Lessor may at any time place on or about the
Premises or Building any ordinary "For Sale" signs and Lessor may at any time
during the last one hundred eighty (180) days of the term hereof place on or
about the Premises any ordinary "For Lease" signs. All such activities of
Lessor shall be without abatement of rent or liability to Lessee.

33. Auctions. Lessee shall not conduct, nor permit to be conducted, either
voluntarily or involuntarily, any auction upon the Premises without first having
obtained Lessor's prior written consent. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Lease, Lessor shall not be obligated to exercise any standard
of reasonableness in determining whether to grant such consent.

34. Signs. Lessee shall not place any sign upon the exterior of the Premises
or the Building, except that Lessee may, with Lessor's prior written consent,
install (but not on the roof) such signs as are reasonably required to advertise
Lessee's own business so long as such signs are in a location designated by
Lessor and comply with Applicable Requirements and the signage criteria
established for the Industrial Center by Lessor. The installation of any sign
on the Premises by or for Lessee shall be subject to the provisions of Paragraph
7 (Maintenance, Repairs, Utility Installations, Trade Fixtures and Alterations).
Unless otherwise expressly agreed herein, Lessor reserves all rights to the use
of the roof of the Building, and the right to install advertising signs on the
Building, including the roof, which do not unreasonably interfere with the
conduct of Lessee's business; Lessor shall be entitled to all revenues from such
advertising signs.

35. Termination; Merger. Unless specifically stated otherwise in writing by
Lessor, the voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Lessee, the mutual
termination or cancellation hereof, or a termination hereof by Lessor for Breach
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by Lessee, shall automatically terminate any sublease or lesser estate in the
Premises; provided, however, Lessor shall, in the event of any such surrender,
termination or cancellation, have the option to continue any one or all of any
existing subtenancies. Lessor's failure within ten (10) days following any such
event to make written election to the contrary by written notice to the holder
of any such lesser interest, shall constitute Lessor's election to have such
event constitute the termination of such interest.

36. Consents.

(a) Except for Paragraph 33 hereof (Auctions) or as otherwise provided
herein, wherever in this Lease the consent of a Party is required to an act by
or for the other Party, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. Lessor's actual reasonable costs and expenses (including but not
limited to architects', attorneys', engineers' and other consultants' fees)
incurred in the consideration of, or response to, a request by Lessee for any
Lessor consent pertaining to this Lease or the Premises, including but not
limited to consents to an assignment a subletting or the presence or use of a
Hazardous Substance, shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor upon receipt of an
invoice and supporting documentation therefor. In addition to the deposit
described in Paragraph 12.2(e), Lessor may, as a condition to considering any
such request by Lessee, require that Lessee deposit with Lessor an amount of
money (in addition to the Security Deposit held under Paragraph 5) reasonably
calculated by Lessor to represent the cost Lessor will incur in considering and
responding to Lessee's request. Any unused portion of said deposit shall be
refunded to Lessee without interest. Lessor's consent to any act, assignment of
this Lease or subletting of the Premises by Lessee shall not constitute an
acknowledgment that no Default or Breach by Lessee of this Lease exists, nor
shall such consent be deemed a waiver of any then existing Default or Breach,
except as may be otherwise specifically stated in writing by Lessor at the time
of such consent.

(b) All conditions to Lessor's consent authorized by this Lease are
acknowledged by Lessee as being reasonable. The failure to specify herein any
particular condition to Lessor's consent shall not preclude the
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impositions by Lessor at the time of consent of such further or other conditions
as are then reasonable with reference to the particular matter for which consent
is being given.

37. Guarantor.

37.1 Form of Guaranty. It there are to be any Guarantors of this Lease per
Paragraph 1.11, the form of the guaranty to be executed by each such Guarantor
shall be in the form most recently published by the American Industrial Real
Estate Association, and each such Guarantor shall have the same obligations as
Lessee under this Lease, including but not limited to the obligation to provide
the Tenancy Statement and information required in Paragraph 16.

37.2 Additional Obligations of Guarantor. It shall constitute a Default of
the Lessee under this Lease if any such Guarantor fails or refuses, upon
reasonable request by Lessor to give: (a) evidence of the due execution of the
guaranty called for by this Lease, including the authority of the Guarantor (and
of the party signing on Guarantor's behalf) to obligate such Guarantor on said
guaranty, and resolution of its board of directors authorizing the making of
such guaranty, together with a certificate of incumbency showing the signatures
of the persons authorized to sign on its behalf, (b) current financial
statements of Guarantor as may from time to time be requested by Lessor, (c) a
Tenancy Statement, or (d) written confirmation that the guaranty is still in
effect.

38. Quiet Possession. Upon payment by Lessee of the rent for the Premises and
the performance of all of the covenants, conditions and provisions on Lessee's
part to be observed and performed under this Lease, Lessee shall have quiet
possession of the Premises for the entire term hereof subject to all of the
provisions of this Lease.
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39. Options.

39.1 Definition. As used in this Lease, the word "Option" has the
following meaning: (a) the right to extend the term of this Lease or to renew
this Lease or to extend or renew any lease that Lessee has on other property of
Lessor; (b) the right of first refusal to lease the Premises or the right of
first offer to lease the Premises or the right of first refusal to lease other
property of Lessor or the right of first offer to lease other property of
Lessor; (c) the right to purchase the Premises, or the right of first refusal to
purchase the Premises, or the right of first offer to purchase the Premises, or
the right to purchase other property of Lessor, or the right of first refusal to
purchase other property of Lessor, or the right of first offer to purchase other
property of Lessor.

39.2 Options Personal to Original Lessee. Each Option granted to Lessee in
this Lease is personal to the original Lessee named in Paragraph 1.1 hereof, and
cannot be voluntarily or involuntarily assigned or exercised by any person or
entity other than said original Lessee while the original Lessee is in full and
actual possession of the Premises and without the intention of thereafter
assigning or subletting. The Options, if any, herein granted to Lessee are not
assignable, either as a part of an assignment of this Lease or separately or
apart therefrom, and no Option may be separated from this Lease in any manner,
by reservation or otherwise.

39.3 Multiple Options. 1In the event that Lessee has any multiple Options
to extend or renew this Lease, a later option cannot be exercised unless the
prior Options to extend or renew this Lease have been validly exercised.

39.4 Effect of Default on Options.

(a) Lessee shall have no right to exercise an Option, notwithstanding
any provision in the grant of Option to the contrary: (i) during the period
commencing with the giving of any notice of Default under Paragraph 13.1 and
continuing until the noticed Default is cured, or (ii) during the period of time
any monetary obligation due Lessor from Lessee is unpaid (without regard to
whether notice thereof is given Lessee), or (iii) during the time Lessee is in
Breach of this Lease, or (iv) in the event that Lessor has given to Lessee three
(3) or more notices of separate Defaults under Paragraph 13.1 during the twelve
(12) month period immediately preceding the exercise of the Option, whether or
not the Defaults are cured.

(b) The period of time within which an Option may be exercised shall
not be extended or enlarged by reason of Lessee's inability to exercise an
Option because of the provisions of Paragraph 39.4(a).

(c) All rights of Lessee under the provisions of an Option shall
terminate and be of no further force or effect, notwithstanding Lessee's due and
timely exercise of the Option, if, after such exercise and during the term of
this Lease, (i) Lessee fails to pay to Lessor a monetary obligation of Lessee
for a period of thirty (30) days after such obligation becomes due (without any
necessity of Lessor to give notice thereof to Lessee), or (ii) Lessor gives to
Lessee three (3) or more notices of separate Defaults under Paragraph 13.1
during any twelve (12) month period, whether or not the Defaults are cured, or
(iii) if Lessee commits a Breach of this Lease.

40. Rules and Regulations. Lessee agrees that it will abide by, and keep and
observe all reasonable rules and regulations ("Rules and Regulations") which
Lessor may make from time to time for the management, safety, care, and
cleanliness of the grounds, the parking and unloading of vehicles and the
preservation of good order, as well as for the convenience of other occupants or
tenants of the Building and the Industrial Center and their invitees.

41. Security Measures. Lessee hereby acknowledges that the rental payable to
Lessor hereunder does not include the cost of guard service or other security

measures, and that Lessor shall have no obligation whatsoever to provide same.
Lessee assumes all responsibility for the protection of the Premises, Lessee,

its agents and invitees and their property from the acts of third parties.
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42. Reservations. Lessor reserves the right, from time to time, to grant,
without the consent or joinder of Lessee, such easements, rights of way, utility
raceways, and dedications that Lessor deems necessary, and to cause the
recordation of parcel maps and restrictions, so long as such easements, rights
of way, utility raceways, dedications, maps and restrictions do not reasonably
interfere with the use of the Premises by Lessee. Lessee agrees to sign any
documents reasonably requested by Lessor to effectuate any such easement rights,
dedication, map or restrictions.

43. Performance Under Protest. If at any time a dispute shall arise as to any
amount or sum of money to be paid by one Party to the other under the provisions
hereof, the Party against whom the obligation to pay the money is asserted shall
have the right to make payment "under protest" and such payment shall not be
regarded as a voluntary payment and there shall survive the right on the part of
said Party to institute suit for recovery of such sum. If it shall be adjudged
that there was no legal obligation on the part of said Party to pay such sum or
any part thereof, said Party shall be entitled to recover such sum or so much
thereof as it was not legally required to pay under the provisions of this
Lease.

44. Authority. If either Party hereto is a corporation, trust, or general or
limited partnership, each individual executing this Lease on behalf of such
entity represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute and
deliver this Lease on its behalf. If Lessee is a corporation, trust or
partnership, Lessee shall, within thirty (30) days after request by Lessor,
deliver to Lessor evidence satisfactory to Lessor of such authority.

45. Conflict. Any conflict between the printed provisions of this Lease and
the typewritten or handwritten provisions shall be controlled by the typewritten
or handwritten provisions.

46. Offer. Preparation of this Lease by either Lessor or Lessee or Lessor's
agent or Lessee's agent and submission of same to Lessee or Lessor shall not be
deemed an offer to lease. This Lease is not intended to be binding until
executed and delivered by all Parties hereto.

47. Amendments. This Lease may be modified only in writing, signed by the
parties in interest at the time of the modification. The Parties shall amend
this Lease from time to time to reflect any adjustments that are made to the
Base Rent or other rent payable under this Lease. As long as they do not
materially change Lessee's obligations hereunder, Lessee agrees to make such
reasonable non-monetary modifications to this Lease as may be reasonably
required by an institutional insurance company or pension plan Lender in
connection with the obtaining of normal financing or refinancing of the property
of which the Premises are a part.

48. Multiple Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, if more
than one person or entity is named herein as either Lessor or Lessee, the
obligations of such multiple parties shall be the joint and several
responsibility of all persons or entities named herein as such Lessor or Lessee.
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LESSOR AND LESSEE HAVE CAREFULLY READ AND REVIEWED THIS LEASE AND EACH TERM AND
PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN, AND BY THE EXECUTION OF THIS LEASE SHOW THEIR
INFORMED AND VOLUNTARY CONSENT THERETO. THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE THAT, AT THE
TIME THIS LEASE IS EXECUTED, THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE ARE COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE
AND EFFECTUATE THE INTENT AND PURPOSE OF LESSOR AND LESSEE WITH RESPECT TO THE
PREMISES.

IF THIS LEASE HAS BEEN FILLED IN, IT HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR YOUR
ATTORNEY'S REVIEW AND APPROVAL. FURTHER, EXPERTS SHOULD BE CONSULTED
TO EVALUATE THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OF
ASBESTOS, UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS OR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. NO
REPRESENTATION OR RECOMMENDATION IS MADE BY THE AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL
REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION OR BY THE REAL ESTATE BROKERS OR THEIR
CONTRACTORS, AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL
EFFECT, OR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE OR THE TRANSACTION TO WHICH
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IT RELATES; THE PARTIES SHALL RELY SOLELY UPON THE ADVICE OF THEIR OWN
COUNSEL AS TO THE LEGAL AND TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE. IF THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY IS IN A STATE OTHER THAN CALIFORNIA, AN ATTORNEY FROM
THE STATE WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED SHOULD BE CONSULTED.

The parties hereto have executed this Lease at the place and on the dates
specified above their respective signatures.

<TABLE>
<S> <C>
Executed at: Executed at:
on: on:
By LESSOR: By LESSEE:
Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. The Western States Group, Inc.
By: /s/ William A. Shirley By: /s/ Michael F. Crowley, Jr.
Name Printed: William A. Shirley Name Printed: Michael F. Crowley, Jr.
Title: Title: V.P. Operations
By: By:
Name Printed: Name Printed:
Title: Title:
Address: 1947 Camina Vida Roble, Suite 104 Address: 131 W. Becch
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Fallbrook, CA 92028
Telephone: (760) 431-7612 Telephone: (760) 728-1552
Facsimile: (760) 431-8968 Facsimile: (760) 723-4487
BROKER: Business Real Estate Brokerage Co. BROKER: Lee & Associates
Executed at: Executed at:
on: on:
By: By:
Name Printed: Kent Moore / Robert Black Name Printed: Larry Strickland
Title: Title:
Address: 5050 Avenida Encinas, Suite 150 Address: 2011 Palomar Airport Rd., Ste. 102
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Carlsbad, CA 92009
Telephone: (760) 431-4200 Telephone: (760) 929-9700
Facsimile: (760) 431-7656 Facsimile: (760) 929-9977
</TABLE>

NOTE: These forms are often modified to meet changing requirements of law and
needs of the industry. Always write or call to make sure you are utilizing the
most current form: AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATION, 700 South
Flower Street, Suite 600, Los Angeles, CA 90017, (213) 687-8777.
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ADDENDUM TO LEASE DATED APRIL 16, 1998 BY AND BETWEEN DEL ORO GATEWAY PARTNERS,
L.P. AS LESSOR AND SERACARE, INC. AS LESSEE FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4095
CALLE PLATINO, SUITE F, OCEANSIDE, CALIFORNIA.

49. MONTHLY RENT SCHEDULE:

The minimum rent provided for in Paragraph 1.5 shall increase according to
the following schedule:

Months 1-12: $3,224.32 per month AIR industrial gross
Months 13-24: $3,321.05 per month AIR industrial gross
Months 25-36: $3,420.68 per month AIR industrial gross
Months 37-48: $3,523.30 per month AIR industrial gross
Months 49-60: $3,629.00 per month AIR industrial gross

50. PREMISES CONDITION:

Lessor, at its sole cost and expense, shall provide the following
improvements to the Premises:
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

(a) Approximately 755 square feet of improved office area that will include
HVAC, windows, doors, light fixtures, electrical and plumbing systems.
Office layout to be mutually agreed between Landlord and Tenant.

(b) Approximately 1,000 square feet of production area with HVAC, drop
ceiling and tile floor.

TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE:

Landlord shall provide tenant improvement allowance of up to half of the
total cost for mutually agreed upon build-out in addition to the 755 square
feet provided in the offering rate. The Landlord's improvement allowance
will be capped at $20,000.00 and amortized over five (5) years at an
interest rate of nine (9%) percent and added to the monthly base rent.

Space to include five (5) offices, administrative open area, conference
room coffee bar/kitchen area.

FIRST RIGHT OF REFUSAL:

Tenant shall be given the first right of refusal to lease the adjacent
Suite E. Once the Landlord has received an acceptable, true lease offer
from another party, Tenant will have forty-eight (48) hours to accept the
Premises with the same terms and conditions of the third party offer.
Tenant's acceptance of the Premises must be given to Landlord in writing.

OPTION TO EXTEND LEASE:

Tenant shall be given one (1) five-year option to extend this Lease. The
rental rate will be negotiated by Landlord and Tenant six (6) months prior
to the expiration of the original term. In order to exercise the option to
extend the Lease, the Tenant must notify Landlord in writing six (6) months
in advance of the expiration of the original lease term.

ITEM 4.2 (A):

The common area operating expenses shall be capped at $.05 per square foot
per month in year (1) one, escalating at a fixed rate of three (3%) percent
per year over the term of the lease.

ITEM 6.2:

Western States Group agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and Local
agencies governing blood plasma. Including the FDA, ADRA, OSHA, and the
San Diego County Health Department.
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ITEM 9.6:

In the event of damage to the Premises which impairs the Lessee's ability
to use the Premises for the business purposes intended, then the amounts
payable by Lessee for Base Rent, Common Area Operating Expenses and other
charges payable under the terms of this Lease Agreement shall be reduced
(abated) in direct proportion to Lessee's ability to use such facilities
until use is restored. By way of explanation, if fifty (50%) percent of
the Premises occupied by Lessee are damaged such that Lessee cannot use
fifty (50%) percent of the Premises herein leased, there shall be a fifty
(50%) percent reduction in the amounts payable under the terms of this
Lease until such damage is repaired and Lessee is again able to use the
Premises leased herein.
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AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

LESSOR: LESSEE:
DEL ORO GATEWAY PARTNERS, L.P. SERA CARE, INC.
By: /s/ William A. Shirley By: /s/ Michael Crowley, Jr.
William A. Shirley Michael Crowley, Jr.
Date: Date:
_2_
EXHIBIT A

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS WARNING AND DISCLAIMER
(SALE AND/OR LEASE OF PROPERTY)

Re: 4095 Calle Platino, Suite F

Various materials utilized in the construction of any improvements to the
Property may contain materials that have been or may in the future be determined
to be toxic, hazardous or undesirable and may need to be specially treated,
specially handled and/or removed from the Property. For example, some
electrical transformers and other electrical components can contain PCBs, and
asbestos has been used in a wide variety of building components such as fire-
proofing, air duct insulation, acoustical tiles, spray-on acoustical materials,
linoleum, floor tiles and plaster. Due to current or prior uses, the Property
or improvements may contain materials such as metals, minerals, chemicals,
hydrocarbons, biological or radiocactive materials and other substances which are
considered, or in the future may be determined to be, toxic wastes, hazardous
materials or undesirable substances. Such substances may be in above- and
below-ground containers on the Property or may be present on or in soils, water,
building components or other portions of the Property in areas that may or may
not be accessible or noticeable.

Current and future federal, state and local laws and regulations may require the
clean-up of such toxic, hazardous or undesirable materials at the expense of
those persons who in the past, present or future have had any interest in the
Property including, but not limited to, current, past and future owners and
users of the Property. Owners and Buyers/Lessees are advised to consult with
independent legal counsel or experts of their choice to determine their
potential liability with respect to toxic, hazardous, or undesirable materials.
Owners and Buyers/Lessees should also consult with such legal counsel or experts
to determine what provisions regarding toxic, hazardous or undesirable materials
they may wish to include in purchase and sale agreements, leases, options and
other legal documentation related to transactions they contemplate entering into
with respect to the Property.

The real estate salespersons and brokers in this transaction have no expertise
with respect to toxic wastes, hazardous materials or undesirable substances.
Proper inspections of the Property by qualified experts are an absolute
necessity to determine whether or not there are any current or potential toxic
wastes, hazardous materials or undesirable substances in or on the Property.
The real estate salespersons and brokers in this transaction have not made, nor
will they make, any representations, either express or implied, regarding the
existence or nonexistence of toxic wastes, hazardous materials, or undesirable
substances in or on the Property. Problems involving toxic wastes, hazardous
materials or undesirable substances can be extremely costly to correct. It is
the responsibility of the Owners and Buyers/Lessees to retain qualified experts
to deal with the detection and correction of such matters.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT DISCLOSURE

The United States Congress has enacted the Americans With Disabilities Act (the
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"ADA"), a federal law codified at 42 USC (S) 12101 et seqg., which became
effective January 26, 1992. Owners and lessees are subject to this law which,
among other things, is intended to make business establishments equally
accessible to persons with a variety of disabilities. Under this law,
modifications to real property improvements may be required by owners and
lessees. Owners and lessees may delegate between themselves costs and
responsibilities for meeting the requirements of the law but the fact that
responsibilities have been allocated does not reduce or negate liability to an
individual with a disability who files and wins a lawsuit. Broker strongly
recommends that owners and lessees consult design professionals, architects or
attorneys to advise them with respect to the law's applicability and to prepare,
if necessary, any language in leases or other contracts. The undersigned
acknowledge that Broker is not qualified as an expert in this matter.

OWNER BUYER/LESSEE:
Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P. The Western States Group, Inc.
By: /s/ William A. Shirley By: /s/ Michael Crowley, Jr.

William A. Shirley Michael Crowley, Jr.
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

A-1
EXHIBIT C

DEL ORO GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTRE
TENANT RULES & REGULATIONS

1. Use of Leased Premises. The premises shall be used only for manufacturing,
processing, storage, wholesale, office, laboratory, professional, and research
and development activities or for such other uses as may be permitted under the
PD-I zone in effect in the City of Oceanside. There shall not be permitted any
junk or salvage yard or any other use which will be offensive to adjoining
tenants or the neighborhood by reason of odor, fumes, dust smoke, bright lights,
noise, visibility or pollution or will be hazardous by reason of danger of fire
or explosions.

2. Use of Common Areas. The Common Area shall be used only for vehicular
loading, vehicular parking and vehicular and pedestrian movement within the
Property. No business is to be conducted by any tenant in any Common Area space
and no storage of any kind will be allowed except with prior written permission
of the owner. Tenant will be charged for special cleanups if required as a
result of tenant's activities.

3. Parking. Each tenant shall be allocated 3.0 parking spaces per 1,000
square feet of leased space. All vehicles must be parked in designated parking
spaces and kept clear of all designated loading areas and fire lanes.

4. Restrictions on Conduct of Business. The permitted uses described in
Paragraph 1 above shall be conducted under the following conditions:

A. Noise. No tenant shall produce noise at such levels as will be
offensive to adjoining tenants or to the neighborhood.

B. Vibration. Equipment creating earthshaking vibrations shall be set
back a sufficient distance from demising walls and shall be so mounted as to

eliminate vibration hazard or nuisance beyond tenant's demising walls.

C. Smoke. No tenant shall discharge into the atmosphere any air
contaminant producing a public nuisance or hazard.

D. Toxic or Noxious Matter. No tenant shall discharge into the sewer
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system or storm drain any toxic or noxious matter in such concentration as to be
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, welfare or cause injury or
damage to neighboring property or business.

E. Odorous Matter. No tenant shall emit odorous matter in such quantity
as to be readily detectable beyond its leased premises.

F. Fire and Explosive Hazards. Storage, utilization or manufacture of
active burning materials shall be so accomplished as to be accessible to the
automatic sprinkler system installed by owner. Materials which produce
flammable or explosive vapors or gases under ordinary weather temperatures shall
not be permitted except where required for emergency equipment or incidental to
a principal operation such as paint spraying. In such cases, adequate
protection shall be provided in conformance with the City Building Code.

G. Glare or Heat. Any operation producing intense glare or heat shall be
performed so as not to create a public nuisance or hazard.

H. Air Pollution. No tenant shall discharge into the air pollutants or
contaminants sufficient to create a nuisance, and no processes which by their
nature are likely to cause air pollution shall be undertaken or permitted unless
there is available an adequate, economically feasible method of controlling the
emission of contaminants, and such controls are applied by tenant.

I. Hazardous Waste. All hazardous waste materials must be properly stored
and promptly disposed of by tenant in accordance with all applicable
governmental regulations. Tenant is responsible for obtaining and keeping
current required governmental permits. Tenant may be required to purchase
special insurance covering owner from any liability resulting from storage of
hazardous waste materials.

5. Signs. No billboards or outdoor advertising of any sort will be permitted.
All signs shall be of standard design in accordance with Owner's Sign Criteria
provided tenant. All signs proposed by tenant must be approved by Owner in
writing.

6. Access. Lessor reserves the right to refuse access to any persons Lessor,
in good faith, judges to be a threat to the safety, reputation, or property of
the Industrial Center and its occupants.

7. Rules & Regulations. Lessor reserves the right to make such other
reasonable rules and regulations as it may from time to time deem necessary for
the appropriate operation and safety of the Industrial Center and its occupants.
Lessee agrees to abide by these and such other rules and regulations.

Tenant Date

EXHIBIT D

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

DEL ORO GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTRE
LOT B - RANCHO DEL ORO - OCEANSIDE, CA.

SE LION COMMERCE CENRE
LOT 29 - CARLSBAD OAKS EAST BUSINESS PARK - CARLSBAD, CA.

D-1

DEL ORO GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTRE

SIGN CRITERIA
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GENERAL

A. All proposed exterior signs shall be in accordance with the City Of
Oceanside and the Rancho Del Oro Technology Park Guidelines

B. All typeface shall be optima and a maximum of ten inches with logos a
maximum of twelve inches in height.

C. Signage shall not be illuminated.

D. All letters and/or logos shall be individually formed plastic letters with
integral black color mounted to building face.

E. No fascia mounted or free-standing signs shall be permitted.
F. Individual tenant ground signs are not permitted.

TENANT IDENTIFICATION

A. Tenant identification signage shall be located as indicated on Exhibit A.
B. Maximum sign area, per sign, shall not exceed five square feet.
Date Tenant

D-2

FIRST AMENDMENT TO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL LEASE - MULTI TENANT - GROSS
DATED APRIL 16, 1998 BY AND BETWEEN DEL ORO GATEWAY PARTNERS, A CALIFORNIA
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, AS LESSOR, AND THE WESTERN STATES GROUP, INC., AS LESSEE.

RECITALS

1. Both parties agree that DEL ORO GATEWAY PARTNERS, L.P., as Lessor, and
THE WESTERN STATES GROUP, INC., as Lessee, entered into a lease agreement dated
April 16, 1998 for the premises located at 1935 Avenida Del Oro, Suite F,
Oceanside, California.

2. LESSEE desires to expand the premises of the lease to include Suite E.

NOW THEREFORE, this First Amendment dated January 6, 1999 shall serve to modify
the terms and conditions of the above referenced Lease. DEL ORO GATEWAY
PARTNERS, L.P. and THE WESTERN STATES GROUP, INC. hereby agree to the following:

1. Expanded Premises:

The premises shall be expanded an additional 5,760 sg. ft. to include Suite
E (approximately 5,760 sg.ft.). The new premises of Suites E and F total
approximately 10,798 sqg.ft.

2. Monthly Base Rent for Suite E:

March 1, 1999* to September 7, 1999 ** $3,744.00/month (.65 x 5760 Sq.
Ft.)

September 8, 1999 to September 7, 2000 $3,856.32/month
September 8, 2000 to September 7, 2001 $3,972.00/month
September 8, 2001 to September 7, 2002 $4,091.16/month
September 8, 2002 to September 7, 2003 $4,213.89/month

*Should tenant improvements specified below not be completed by March 1,
1999, Lessee shall pay one half rent until complete.

**The Annual Anniversary Date and Ending Date for Suite E are intended to
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match with the Anniversary Date and Ending Date for Suite F in the Second
Addendum to the existing lease Dated April 16, 1998.

3. Common Area Operating Expenses:

The common area operating expenses shall be capped at $.05 per square foot
per month in year (1) one, escalating at a fixed rate of three (3%) percent
per year over the term of the lease.

4. Early Occupancy:

Lessee shall be given early occupancy of Suite E approximately January 6,
1999.

5. Tenant Improvements:

Lessor shall provide the tenant improvements shown on the attached space
plan dated January 5, 1999.

All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unchanged.

LESSOR: LESSEE:
DEL ORO GATEWAY PARTNERS, L.P., THE WESTERN STATES GROUP, INC.,
a California Limited Partnership a California Corporation
/s/ William A. Shirley /s/ Michael Crowley, Jr.
William A. Shirley Michael Crowley, Jr.
Date Date

_l_
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EXHIBIT 10.7.1

ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT is made and entered into as
of October 19, 1999 by and between Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P., a California
limited partnership ("Assignor"), and Arthur Kazarian, Trustee for General Wood

Investment Trust ("Assignee").

WHEREAS, Assignor and Assignee entered into that certain Letter of
Intent ("Agreement") dated September 16, 1999 for the sale and purchase of
certain property, commonly known as 1935 Avenida Del Oro, Oceanside, CA , (the
"Real Property") including all personal property (the "Personal Property") and
intangible property (the "Intangible Property").

WHEREAS the "Intangible Property" includes the "Leases" (the term
Leases shall also include Rental Agreements) and "Deposits" as said terms are
more particularly defined in this Assignment and Assumption Agreement;

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign, transfer, set over and deliver to
Assignee all of Assignor's right, title and interest in and to the Leases and
Deposits as hereinafter provided; and

WHEREAS, Assignee desires to assume the duties and obligations of
Assignor with respect to the Leases and Deposits.

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, and in consideration of the promises and conditions contained
herein, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Assignor does hereby assign, transfer, set over and deliver unto
Assignee all of the Assignor's right, title and interest in and to the
following:

a. Any and all leases, rental agreements, tenancies, licenses and
other rights of occupancy or use of or for any portion of the Real Property or
the Personal Property (including all amendments, renewals and extensions
thereof), to the extent same are in effect as of the date of this Assignment and
Assumption Agreement (collectively, "Leases"); and

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

b. Any and all refundable tenant security deposits and other
deposits, and interest thereon, in Assignor's possession as of the date of this
Agreement with respect to said Leases (collectively "Deposits").

2. Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment of the Leases and
Deposits and hereby assumes all duties and obligations of Assignor under the
Leases, and Deposits, now in effect on the Property. Assignee shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless Assignor from and against any all "Claims" asserted
against or incurred by Assignor as a result of any acts or omissions of
Assignee, occurring on or after the effective date of this Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, in connection with any duties or obligations of Assignee
under the Leases, and Deposits.

3. Assignor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Assignee from, and
against any and all "Claims" asserted against or incurred by Assignee as a
result of any acts or omissions of Assignor, occurring prior to the effective
date of this Assignment and Assumption Agreement, in connection with any duties
or obligations of Assignor under the Lease and Deposits.

4. "Claims" means claims, demands, causes of action, losses, damages,
liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees, whether
suit is instituted or not).

5. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors in interest
and assigns.

6. The Effective Date shall be the date on which the Grant Deed conveying
title to the Property, to Assignee, is recorded.

-1-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be
executed on the day and year first above written.

ASSIGNOR: ASSIGNEE:

Del Oro Gateway Partners, L.P., a /s/ Arthur Kazarian
California limited partnership - ———-
Arthur Kazarian, Trustee for General
Wood Investment Trust
By: Real Estate 2, LLC, a California
limited liability company

By: /s/ John M. Tworoger

John M. Tworoger
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Its: Managing Member

SECOND ADDENDUM TO LEASE DATED APRIL 16,

1998

1. Acknowledgment of Lease Commencement and Anniversary Date:

The undersigned parties acknowledge that the Lease described below is in
full force and effect and that Tenant has taken possession of the space.

Date of Lease
Landlord:
Tenant:

Suite No:

Square feet of rentable area:
Building Address:
City/County/State/Zip:

April 16, 1998

Del Oro Gateway Partners,
The Western States Group,
F

5,038 Square Feet
1935 Avenida Del Oro,
Oceanside,

L.P.
Inc.

Suite F

San Diego County, CA 92056

The commencement date of the initial Lease term as set forth in paragraph
1.3 of the above Lease shall be adjusted as follows:

Commencement date (month, day, year): September 8, 1998
Annual Anniversary date (month, day): September 8
Ending date (month, day, year): September 7, 2003
2. Premises - Section 1.2 (a) Premises is now amended to reflect the correct
street address as: 1935 Avenida Del Oro, Suite F
3. All other terms and conditions of the lease remain the same.

The entire Lease is hereby affirmed and incorporated herein.

LANDLORD

TENANT

(To be signed upon occupancy)

By: /s/ William A.

Shirley

(To be signed upon occupancy)

By: /s/ Michael Crowley, Jr.

William A. Shirley

Title:

Michael Crowley, Jr.

Title:

Date Signed:

Date Signed:
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MASTER SEPARATION AND DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

This Master Separation and Distribution Agreement (this "Agreement")
is entered into as of June 10, 2001, by and between SeraCare, Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("SeraCare"), and SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc., a California
corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of SeraCare ("Life Sciences").
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings
ascribed to such terms in Article IX hereof. SeraCare and Life Sciences are
sometimes referred to herein individually as a "party" or collectively as the
"parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SeraCare is simultaneously herewith entering into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") with Instituto Grifols,
S.A., a company organized under the laws of Spain ("Grifols"), pursuant to which
SeraCare will merge with SI Merger Corp., a Delaware corporation and wholly-
owned subsidiary of Grifols (the "Merger"), provided that all of the conditions
precedent to the Merger set forth in the Merger Agreement have been satisfied;

WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of SeraCare and Life Sciences have
determined that, in connection with and prior to the Merger, it is appropriate
and desirable for SeraCare to contribute and transfer to Life Sciences, and for
Life Sciences to receive and assume, substantially all of the assets and
liabilities associated with the Life Sciences Business not currently held by
Life Sciences (the "Separation");

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of SeraCare has determined that it is
appropriate and desirable on the terms and conditions contemplated hereby to
distribute to the holders of its common stock, $0.001 par value, by means of a
pro rata distribution immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, all
of the shares of Life Sciences common stock (the "Distribution"), provided that
all of the conditions precedent to the Distribution set forth in this Agreement
are satisfied; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to set forth herein the principal
transactions to be effected in connection with the Separation and the
Distribution and certain other matters relating to the relationship and the
respective rights and obligations of the parties following the Distribution.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual
covenants and agreements set forth below, the parties hereto, intending to be
legally bound, agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
SEPARATION

SECTION 1.1 Separation Date. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement,

or in any agreement to be executed in connection with this Agreement, the
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effective time and date of each transfer of property, assumption of liability,
license, undertaking, or agreement in connection with the Separation shall be
12:01 a.m., Pacific Time, immediately before the consummation of the Merger, or
such other date and time as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of SeraCare
(the "Separation Date").

SECTION 1.2 Closing of Transactions. Unless otherwise provided herein,
the closing of the transactions contemplated in Article II shall occur by the
lodging of each of the executed instruments of transfer, assumptions of
liability, undertakings, agreements, instruments or other documents executed or
to be executed with Proskauer Rose LLP, 1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036
("Proskauer"), to be held in escrow for delivery as provided in Section 1.3 of
this Agreement.

SECTION 1.3 Exchange of Secretary's Certificates. Upon receipt of a
certificate of the Secretary of SeraCare in the form attached to this Agreement
as Exhibit A, SeraCare shall deliver to Life Sciences all of the items required
to be delivered by SeraCare hereunder pursuant to Section 2.1 of this Agreement
and each such item shall be deemed to be delivered to Life Sciences as of the
Separation Date upon delivery of such certificate. Upon receipt of a
certificate of the Secretary of Life Sciences in the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit B, Life Sciences shall deliver to SeraCare all of the items
required to be delivered by Life Sciences pursuant to Section 2.2 hereunder and
each such item shall be deemed to be delivered to SeraCare as of the Separation
Date upon receipt of such certificate.

ARTICLE IT
DOCUMENTS AND ITEMS TO BE DELIVERED
ON OR BEFORE THE SEPARATION DATE

SECTION 2.1 Documents To Be Delivered By SeraCare. On or before the
Separation Date, SeraCare will deliver to Life Sciences all of the following
items and agreements (collectively, together with all agreements and documents
contemplated by such agreements, the "Ancillary Agreements") :

(a) A duly executed General Assignment and Assumption Agreement
(the "Assignment Agreement") substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit C;

(b) A duly executed Trademark License Agreement substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit D;

(c) A duly executed Employee Matters Agreement substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit E;

(d) A duly executed Tax Matters Agreement substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit F;
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(e) A duly executed Supply and Services Agreement substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit G; and

(f) Such other agreements, documents or instruments as the parties
may agree are necessary or desirable in order to achieve the purposes hereof.

SECTION 2.2 Documents to be Delivered by Life Sciences. As of the

Separation Date, Life Sciences will deliver to SeraCare all of the following:

(a) In each case where Life Sciences is a party to any agreement
or instrument referred to in Section 2.1, a duly executed counterpart of such
agreement or instrument.

ARTICLE TIT
THE DISTRIBUTION AND ACTIONS PENDING THE DISTRIBUTION

SECTION 3.1 Transactions Prior to the Distribution. Subject to the
conditions specified in Section 3.3, SeraCare and Life Sciences shall use their
reasonable commercial efforts to consummate the Distribution. Such efforts
shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, those specified in this
Section 3.1.

(a) Registration Statement. Life Sciences, with the cooperation
and assistance of SeraCare, shall prepare a Form 10 Registration Statement (the
"Form 10 Registration Statement") in order to register the common stock of Life
Sciences under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange
Act"), and will, as soon as practicable following the date hereof, use its
commercially reasonably efforts to promptly file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "Commission") the Form 10 Registration Statement and
such amendments or supplements thereto as may be necessary in order to cause the
Form 10 Registration Statement to become and to remain effective as required by
law, including, but not limited to, such amendments to the Form 10 Registration
Statement as may be required by the Commission or federal, state or foreign
securities laws. SeraCare and Life Sciences shall also cooperate in preparing
and filing with the Commission any registration statements or amendments thereof
which are required to reflect the establishment of, or amendments to, any
employee benefit and other plans necessary or appropriate in connection with the
Separation, the Distribution or the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

(b) Information Statement. SeraCare and Life Sciences shall
prepare and mail, prior to the Distribution Date, to the holders of common stock
of SeraCare, such information concerning Life Sciences and the Distribution and
such other matters as SeraCare and Life Sciences shall reasonably determine are
necessary and as may be required by law (the "Information Statement"). SeraCare
and Life Sciences will prepare, and Life Sciences will, to the extent required
under applicable law, file with the Commission any such documentation which
SeraCare and Life Sciences reasonably determine is necessary or desirable to
effectuate the Distribution, and SeraCare and Life Sciences shall each use its
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reasonable commercial efforts to obtain all necessary approvals from the
Commission with respect thereto as soon as practicable.

(c) Option Plan. SeraCare and Life Sciences shall cooperate in the
preparation and adoption by Life Sciences of a stock option plan (the "Option
Plan") .

(d) Board of Directors. SeraCare and Life Sciences shall appoint
those persons listed on Schedule 3.1(d) hereto to the Board of Directors of Life
Sciences (to the extent that such persons do not currently serve in such
capacity) .

(e) Other Actions. SeraCare and/or Life Sciences, as appropriate,

shall take those actions set forth on Schedule 3.1 (e) hereto.

SECTION 3.2 The Distribution.

(a) Delivery of Shares for Distribution. Subject to Section 3.3
hereof, on or prior to the date the Distribution is effective (the "Distribution
Date"), SeraCare will deliver to the distribution agent (the "Distribution
Agent") to be appointed by SeraCare to distribute to the stockholders of
SeraCare the shares of common stock of Life Sciences held by SeraCare pursuant
to the Distribution for the benefit of holders of record of common stock of
SeraCare on the Record Date, a single stock certificate, endorsed by SeraCare in
blank, representing all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Life
Sciences then owned by SeraCare, and shall cause the transfer agent for the
shares of common stock of SeraCare to instruct the Distribution Agent to
distribute on the Distribution Date the appropriate number of such shares of
common stock of Life Sciences to each such holder or designated transferee or
transferees of such holder.

(b) Shares Received. Subject to Section 3.3, each holder of common
stock of SeraCare on the Record Date (or such holder's designated transferee or
transferees) will be entitled to receive in the Distribution a number of shares
of common stock of Life Sciences equal to the number of shares of common stock
of SeraCare held by such holder on the Record Date.

(c) Options and Warrants Received. Subject to Section 3.3, each
holder on the Record Date of stock options (the "SeraCare Options") or warrants
(the "SeraCare Warrants") to purchase the common stock of SeraCare will be
entitled to receive in connection with the Distribution new options or warrants,
as applicable, (i) to purchase a number of shares of Life Sciences Common Stock
equal to the number of shares underlying the SeraCare Options or SeraCare
Warrants held by such holder on the Record Date, with an exercise price equal to
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the Calculated Exercise Price, and (ii) to purchase a number of shares of
SeraCare Common Stock equal to the number of shares underlying the SeraCare
Options or SeraCare Warrants held by such holder on the Record Date, with an
exercise price equal to the Adjusted Exercise Price.

(d) Obligation to Provide Information. Life Sciences and SeraCare,
as the case may be, will provide to the Distribution Agent all share
certificates and any information required in order to complete the Distribution
on the basis specified above.

(e) Conditions. SeraCare and Life Sciences shall take all

reasonable steps necessary and appropriate to cause the conditions set forth in
Section 3.3 to be satisfied and to effect the Distribution on the Distribution
Date.

SECTION 3.3 Conditions to Distribution. The obligations of the parties to

to consummate the Distribution shall be conditioned on the satisfaction, or
written waiver by SeraCare, of the following conditions:

-4 -

(a) Government Approvals. Any material governmental approvals and

consents necessary to consummate the Distribution shall have been obtained and
be in full force and effect.

(b) Registration Statement. The Form 10 Registration Statement

shall have been filed and declared effective by the Commission, there shall be
no stop-order in effect with respect thereto, and the Information Statement
shall have been mailed to the holders of Common Stock of SeraCare..

(c) No Legal Restraints. No order, injunction or decree issued by

any court or agency of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or
prohibition preventing the consummation of the Distribution or any of the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be in effect.

(d) Separation. The transfer of the Life Sciences Assets and

assumption of the Life Sciences Liabilities shall have been effected pursuant to
Section 1.1 of the Assignment Agreement.

(e) Option Plan. The Option Plan shall have been duly adopted.

(f) Board of Directors. The Board of Directors of Life Sciences

shall consist of the persons listed on Schedule 3.1 (d).
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(g) Other Actions. The actions set forth on Schedule 3.1(e), and
such other actions as the parties hereto may, based upon the advice of counsel,
reasonably request to be taken prior to the Distribution in order to assure the
successful completion of the Distribution, shall have been taken.

(h) No Material Adverse Effect. No events or developments shall
have occurred subsequent to the Separation Date that, in the judgment of the
Board of Directors of SeraCare, would result in the Distribution having a
material adverse effect on SeraCare or on the stockholders of SeraCare.

(i) No Termination. This Agreement shall not have been terminated.

(J) Merger. All conditions precedent to the Merger (other than
Section 9.1 (e) of the Merger Agreement with respect to the Distribution) shall
have been satisfied or waived by the party for whose benefit such condition
exists and each of the parties to the Merger Agreement shall be prepared to
close the Merger immediately after the Distribution.

SECTION 3.4 Sole Discretion of SeraCare. SeraCare shall, in its sole and
absolute discretion, determine the date of the consummation of the Distribution
and all terms of the Distribution, including, without limitation, the form,
structure and terms of any transaction(s) and/or offering(s) to effect the
Distribution and the timing of and conditions to the consummation of the
Distribution. In addition, SeraCare may at any time and from time to time until
the completion of the Distribution modify or change the terms of the
Distribution, including, without limitation, by accelerating or delaying the
timing of the consummation of all or part of the Distribution. Life Sciences
shall cooperate with SeraCare in all respects to

-5-—

accomplish the Distribution and shall, at SeraCare's direction, promptly take
any and all actions necessary or desirable to effect the Distribution.
Notwithstanding this Section 3.4, SeraCare agrees that it shall not take any
actions that are inconsistent with this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements.

ARTICLE IV
NONCOMPETITION AGREEMENTS

SECTION 4.1 Life Sciences Noncompetition Agreement. Life Sciences agrees
that, commencing on the Distribution Date and for a period of five (5) years
thereafter, Life Sciences shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries not to,
engage in the SeraCare Protected Business (as herein defined) in the United
States (the "Noncompetition Territory"). The term "SeraCare Protected Business"
means owning and/or operating plasma collection facilities.

SECTION 4.2 DNonsolicitation. To protect SeraCare against any efforts by
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Life Sciences to cause employees of SeraCare to terminate their employment with
SeraCare, Life Sciences agrees that for a period of two (2) years following the
date hereof, no officer or director of Life Sciences will (i) solicit any
employee of SeraCare to accept employment with Life Sciences, or (ii) assist any
other entity in hiring any such employee, and for such two year period Life
Sciences will use reasonable efforts to prevent employees or affiliates from
making solicitations referenced in (i) or (ii) above.

ARTICLE V
MUTUAL RELEASES AND INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 5.1 Life Sciences Release. Except as provided in Section 5.3 to
this Agreement, effective as of the Separation Date, Life Sciences does hereby
release and forever discharge SeraCare and each member of the SeraCare Group
from any and all Liabilities whatsoever, whether at law or in equity (including
any right of contribution), whether arising under any contract or agreement, by
operation of law or otherwise, existing or arising from any acts or events
occurring or failing to occur or alleged to have occurred or to have failed to
occur or any conditions existing or alleged to have existed on or before the
Separation Date, including in connection with the transactions and all other
activities to implement any of the Separation and the Distribution.

SECTION 5.2 SeraCare Release. Except as provided in Section 5.3 to this
Agreement, effective as of the Separation Date, SeraCare does hereby, for itself
and as agent for each member of the SeraCare Group, release and forever
discharge the Life Sciences and each member of the Life Sciences Group from any
and all Liabilities whatsoever, whether at law or in equity (including any right
of contribution), whether arising under any contract or agreement, by operation
of law or otherwise, existing or arising from any acts or events occurring or
failing to occur or alleged to have occurred or to have failed to occur or any
conditions existing or alleged to have existed on or before the Separation Date,
including in connection with the transactions and all other activities to
implement any of the Separation and the Distribution.

-6-

SECTION 5.3 ©No Impairment. Nothing contained in Section 5.1 or Section
5.2 shall impair any right of any Person arising under this Agreement or any
Ancillary Agreement, in each case in accordance with its terms.

SECTION 5.4 ©No Actions As To Released Claims. Life Sciences agrees, for
itself and as agent for each member of the Life Sciences Group, not to make any
claim or demand, or commence any Action asserting any claim or demand, including
any claim of contribution or any indemnification, against SeraCare or any member
of the SeraCare Group, or any other Person released pursuant to Section 5.1,
with respect to any Liabilities released pursuant to Section 5.1. SeraCare
agrees, for itself and as agent for each member of the SeraCare Group, not to
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make any claim or demand, or commence any Action asserting any claim or demand,
including any claim of contribution or any indemnification, against Life
Sciences or any member of the Life Sciences Group, or any other Person released
pursuant to Section 5.2, with respect to any Liabilities released pursuant to
Section 5.2.

SECTION 5.5 1Indemnification by Life Sciences. Except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements, Life Sciences
shall indemnify, defend (including but not limited to the payment of reasonable
attorneys' fees and expenses) and hold harmless SeraCare, each member of the
SeraCare Group, Instituto Grifols, S.A. and its affiliates and each of their
respective directors, officers and employees (the "SeraCare Indemnitees") from
and against any and all Liabilities that any third party seeks to impose upon
the SeraCare Indemnitees, or which are imposed upon the SeraCare Indemnitees,
and that (without duplication) primarily relate to, arise out of or result from
(1) the Life Sciences Business prior to the Separation Date; (ii) the Life
Sciences Business after the Separation Date; (iii) any Life Sciences Liability
or any Life Sciences Contract; (iv) any breach by Life Sciences or any member of
the Life Sciences Group of the Separation Agreement or any of the Ancillary
Agreements; or (v) any Liabilities arising in connection with or resulting from
the Form 10 Registration Statement or the Information Statement. This Section
5.5 shall not apply to any amounts actually recovered from any third party
and/or covered by any insurance policy by SeraCare in respect of the related
loss, subject to the obligation to make interim payments set forth in Section
5.8 below.

SECTION 5.6 Indemnification by SeraCare. Except as otherwise provided in
this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements, SeraCare shall, for itself
and as agent for each member of the SeraCare Group, including Instituto Grifols,
S.A. and its affiliates, indemnify, defend (including but not limited to the
payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) and hold harmless Life
Sciences, each member of the Life Sciences Group and each of their respective
directors, officers and employees (the "Life Sciences Indemnitees") from and
against any and all Liabilities that any third party seeks to impose upon the
Life Sciences Indemnitees, or which are imposed upon the Life Sciences
Indemnitees, and that (without duplication) relate to, arise out of or result
from (i) the Life Sciences Business prior to the Separation Date to the extent
that such items are the responsibility of SeraCare pursuant to this Agreement or
the Ancillary Agreements; (ii) the SeraCare Business or any Liability of the
SeraCare Group other than the Life Sciences Liabilities; or (iii) any breach by
SeraCare or any member of the SeraCare Group of the Separation Agreement or any
of the Ancillary Agreements, including, without limitation, the obligation to
pay any Excluded Liabilities. This Section 5.6 shall not apply to any amounts
actually recovered from any third party and/or covered by any insurance policy
by Life

Sciences in respect of the related loss, subject to the obligation to make
interim payments set forth in Section 5.8 below.
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SECTION 5.7 1Indemnified Party. The party entitled to indemnification
hereunder (the "Indemnified Party") shall promptly notify the party obligated to
provide indemnification ("the Indemnifying Party") of any claim for which
indemnification is sought pursuant to this Agreement in writing and in
reasonable detail and accompanied by reasonable supporting documentation. With
respect to any claim made by a third party against which an Indemnified Party is
seeking indemnification hereunder, the Indemnifying Party shall have the right,
at its own expense, to participate in or assume control of the defense of such
claim, and the Indemnified Party shall fully cooperate with the Indemnifying
Party subject to reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred as
a result of such request by the 